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Design Concept &S

This cover design is themed with
‘Merge and Innovate to Lead”.

This innovative design concept illustrates two water
droplets coming together, indicating droplets of water
merging to form a vast ocean. This symbolises that
Everbright Water has accumulated its experience and
expertise over a long operating history, and it is now
leveraging technological innovation to drive its stable
development. The clear and bright water droplets
represent the company’s clear development strategy
and that its drive to achieve sustainable development will
bring long-term benefits and efficiency for the company.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
S AT

China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an environmental protection
company focusing on water environment management. The Company is
listed on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the “SGX” or the “SGX-ST”) (stock code: U9E) with its direct controlling
shareholder being China Everbright International Limited (stock code:
00257.HK, “Everbright International”).

The Company is principally engaged in water environment management,
sponge city construction, river-basin ecological restoration, water supply,
waste water treatment, reusable water, waste water source heat pump,
sludge treatment and disposal, research and development of water
technologies, and engineering and construction, etc. The Company’s
geographical footprint spans across East, Central, South, North, Northeast
and Northwest China, including Beijing, Jiangsu, Shandong, Shaanxi,
Henan, Hubei, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Liaoning and Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region. As at 31 December 2017, the Company
invested in and operated water treatment projects with a designed daily
water treatment capacity of 5.34 million m3,

With the experienced management team and strong support from
Everbright International, the Company will seize opportunities and strive
to emerge as a leader in China’s water environment management sector.

PEMAKZERAT ( "HKKS" 5 "Fa8" , EREHMELASSHR "F&E
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
S ERKERE

DEAR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,

In 2017, the global market progressed cautiously against the
backdrop of a complex, ever-changing and divided environment.
Nevertheless, ecological restoration remained a focus for all
the countries across the world. Meanwhile, China is not only the
world’s major economy, but also the main participant, contributor
and leader in the global ecological conservation. In China, pollution
control has been named as one of the three tough battles that the
country must fight in the coming years. This signifies the Chinese
government’s determination and belief in environmental protection
and management. Undoubtedly, this will become a driving force
for the future development of the environmental protection industry
and an important indication that the golden era of the environmental
protection industry will continue.

-1 i

WANG TIANYI
EXX

Non-Executive Director and Chairman
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Amid the ever-changing market demand and the upward trend of
the industry, the Group adhered to its management philosophy of
“Integrity, Pragmatism, Innovation and Efficiency”, and forged ahead
steadily and with certainty, in order to achieve the stable deployment
and development of all its business areas. In the course of its
business development, the Group adhered to the “Technology Leads
Development” ethos, strengthened the research and development
(“R&D”) team and increased its investment in technology R&D,
which greatly enhanced the Group’s core technology capability.
In addition, the Group continued to improve its management
systems and the efficiencies of its management and operations,
which grew in tandem with its business development. As a result,
the Group achieved long-term improvements in the scale and
efficiency of the business.

The Group also explored new investment and financing models and
achieved good results. During the year under review, the Group
successfully issued the initial tranche of its first RMB-denominated
corporate bonds, which broadened its financing channels and
helped to optimise the Group’s financial structure. In addition, the
issuance provided support to the healthy and stable development
of the Group.

As a corporate focusing on environmental protection, the Group
has been proactively pursuing its actions towards greater social
responsibility by engaging in philanthropic work and working with its
stakeholders to improve both the ecological and living environment.
During the year under review, the Group’s project companies
actively organised and participated in various types of environmental
education and awareness programs, and charitable and welfare
activities. The Group also welcomed visitors and exchanges
with people from all social circles, with the goal of spreading
advanced environmental technologies and environmental protection
philosophies to a wider population. The Group was dedicated to put
its social responsibility and business value into practice, in order to
build a “Beautiful China”, which is the national ecological strategy.
In 2017, the Group’s project companies received a total of 900 visiting
groups, consisting more than 20,000 people from all walks of life.
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he _group will establish a strong foothold
n the Chi_np market, leverage opportunities
along the Belt and Road Initiative, and
i
continue to pursue development driven by
technology and innovation.
. .
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Looking ahead, as China positioned ecological conservation as the
country’s “sustainable development strategies” and has issued a
series of environmental protection policies to support ecological
and environmental management, the Group believes that the water
environment industry will continue its robust growth. Key national
strategic plans, such as the ecological environment management of
the Yangtze River Economic Belt and the development of the green
Belt and Road Initiative, will open up the opportunities and potential
for the industry development. The Group will establish a strong
foothold in the China market, leverage opportunities along the Belt
and Road Initiative, and continue to pursue development driven
by technology and innovation. The Group will further enhance its
investment and financing channels, and strengthen its competitive
advantages in the areas of investment, market expansion, operation
and management, so as to provide strong support and safeguard
for the next round of development.

For the year under review, riding on the good momentum of the
industry trends, the Group achieved satisfying results, with higher
revenue and profits, backed by steady operational performance and
financial position. In line with the belief of sharing the Company’s
fruitful results with shareholders, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recommended a final dividend of S$0.0049
per share to shareholders for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 (final dividend for FY2016: S$0.0037 per share).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest
appreciation to the Company’s shareholders, the Board members
and our business partners for the continued trust and support.
| would also like to take this opportunity to thank the management
team and employees for their unwavering commitment and hard
work in contributing towards the growth of the Group. With the
strong support and rich resources of the “Everbright” brand,
| believe that the Group is well-positioned to strive for market
opportunities, embark on development driven by technology and
innovation, promote business synergy and resource sharing, devote
to the water industry, and work on areas such as comprehensive
management of water environment, comprehensive utilisation of
water resources and comprehensive protection of water ecology,
so as to enhance the Group’s scale, strength and excellence, and
continuously to deliver value to our stakeholders and give back to
the society.

WANG TIANYI

Non-Executive Director and Chairman

22 March 2018
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CEO’S STATEMENT & BUSINESS REVIEW
S R R ML SRR

DEAR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,

Over the past year, the central government of People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) has focused an unprecedented attention on
the water environment management industry, while the topic of
ecological conservation has been escalated to a new level as
the “sustainable development strategies” of the country. In the
meantime, the country’s efforts in ecological and environmental
protection have been gradually taking effect. A number of key
policies, such as “Water Pollution Prevention and Control Plan
for Major River Basins (2016-2020)", the newly amended “Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC” and the “Special
Plan on Scientific and Technological Innovation in Environmental
Sector for the 13th Five Year Plan Period”, were launched one
after another, continuously guiding a regulated and systematic
development of the water environment management industry.
The government also developed an environmental governance
system in which “government takes the lead, enterprises assume
main responsibility, and social organisations and the public also
participate”. This system provides directions for future development
of the environmental protection industry.

»
‘AN XU‘SONG
ZEH

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer '
HITEFFE S

-

BRHSFRE,

EpUE E—F, FEPREFIKIAZRENE
MEEXTHIZE, ESHEREZS LFE
"RERKKERRITEN" NEE, B
i, ERESHRBERIFIOANREZREENR.
(ERmEKSRMaME (2016-2020) ) .
FHETHY (P ARIEMEXKISREE) .
( "+=h" NETHRHEIFEIAL) FE
BEBURAIBLELEEAT, SRERS|KIARIGIRIT LAY
e, RANWARRE. MBIFEEN LI
&, RWAER HFERMLIREESS"
AEMSIRIRIAR, TRAMRITIES | T RFK AR
:SpsICIR

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

08 | dmyrksamas

L



In 2017, amid the wide-ranging market opportunities, the Group
actively looked for opportunities to improve, and therefore realised
business growth in terms of scale and efficiency, as well as achieved
breakthroughs in technological and business areas. The Group
continued solidifying its strength and market competitiveness in
areas such as technology R&D, market expansion, engineering
construction, operations management, financing innovation and
risk control. It helped the Group to maintain a good development
momentum, with notable improvement in the scale and quality of
its operation and management. During the year under review, the
Group’s revenue increased by 44% from 2016 to HKD3.592 billion;
gross profit grew 36% from 2016 to HKD1.231 billion; profit rose by
56% from 2016 to HKD581 million; profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company increased by 47% from 2016 to HKD513 million;
and earnings per share stood at HKD0.196. The Group maintained
a reasonable debt level and good financial position in 2017. As at
31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio was 52.7%.

During the year under review, the Group continued to deepen its
“Technology Leads Development” ethos, optimised its organisation
structure, strengthened efforts in recruiting talent, further promoted
its industrial-academic collaboration model, and improved its R&D
system. As a result, the Group achieved a series of key technological
breakthroughs and accomplishments, some of which have been
successfully applied to the Group’s projects, greatly enhancing the
technological proficiency and construction quality and progress
of the construction works. These technologies also improved
the quality and efficiency of the projects in operation. In 2017,
the Group’s technology research and innovation achievements
received a number of recognitions at provincial and municipal
levels. In addition, the Group was granted 21 patents and filed
59 patent applications in 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the total water treatment capacity of the
Group was 5.34 million m?day. It had 68 projects in operation,
5 projects completing construction, 4 projects under construction
and 2 projects in preparatory stage in the area of waste water
treatment; 4 water environment management projects under
construction, which involve sponge city construction and a series
of ecological restoration works; 1 water supply project under
construction; 5 reusable water projects in operation; 2 waste water
source heat pump projects and 2 sludge treatment and disposal
projects in operation; and a total of 87 kilometers of pipeline network
and 10 pump stations, totalling 94 projects. In 2017, the Group
treated an aggregate of 1,187,615,000 m? of waste water.
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In terms of market expansion, the Group proactively explored
market opportunities and new business models, while solidifying its
existing markets and business areas. During the year under review,
the Group expanded its business scope to new areas, such as
water supply and standalone pipeline network, and also expanded
its geographical presence to the water environment management
markets in Hubei Province and Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, marking its first project in the Southern region of China.
In 2017, the Group secured 14 new projects, which commanded a
total investment of approximately RMB6.081 billion.

In terms of project construction, the year under review marked
an important year for the Group, with 11 projects commencing
construction and 14 projects completing construction, both
setting a new record. The Group also amended and improved a
number of systems and protocols, which tightened the rules and
standards of the project construction process. Additionally, the
Group fully streamlined the Environmental, Safety, Health and
Social Responsibility (‘ESHS”) Management System and Risk
Management System, which ensured a safe, smooth and efficient
process of project construction.

In terms of project operation, during the year under review, as the
ESHS management system and risk management system were
further implemented, coupled with the implementation of the pilot
programme of the “Intelligent Water” information management
system, the Group achieved remarkable improvement in operations
management. Having multiple projects been effected tariff hikes
with a range from 8% to 86%, this boosted the overall operation
income of the Group. In addition, the Group received approvals for
special subsidies of approximately RMB49.70 million in 2017.
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CEQO’S STATEMENT & BUSINESS REVIEW

In order to support its sustainable development, during the
year under review, the Group explored new investment and
financing models. It received approvals from the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and China Securities Regulatory Commission to issue
RMB-denominated corporate bonds of up to RMB2.5 billion in
aggregate principal amount in a single or multiple tranches to
qualified investors in the PRC. The initial tranche of the bonds
was successfully issued in July 2017, with a principal amount of
RMB1 billion and a coupon rate of 4.55% for a five-year maturity.
In the meantime, the Group also explored opportunities to replace
short-term borrowings with long-term ones, so as to improve its loan
structure, reduce its financing cost, and financially guarantee for
the Group’s healthy development in the future.

In 2017, the Group was motivated and moved forward steadily, and
therefore achieved satisfying results. This was due to the strong
collaboration and diligent efforts of the Board, all the management
and staff of the Group. | would like to take this opportunity to
express my earnest appreciation to shareholders of the Company,
the Board, the management and staff, as well as people from all
social circles who have provided long-term support to the Group.
In the year ahead, with the industry embracing its upward trends
and backed by Everbright International, the Group will pull
together and strive to maintain its momentum of “making steady
progress and forging ahead for the future”, increase investment
in R&D, continue to explore new business models, enhance
synergetic effects, improve management systems, and diversify
investment and financing channels, in order to work its way through
opportunities and challenges towards a larger market share and
stronger industrial influence.

AN XUESONG

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

22 March 2018
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SINGAPORE OFFICE

9 Battery Road, MYP Centre
#20-02 Singapore 049910

RN A=

IR ERERISMYPHIL
#20-02= #B4%: 049910

HONG KONG OFFICE
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CORPORATE OUTLOOK

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Amid the nation-wide efforts to promote ecological conservation —
the country’s “sustainable development strategies” — and its vision
of building a “Beautiful China”, China had progressively rolled
out a number of major ecological environment conservation and
management policies, such as the “Belt and Road Ecological and
Environmental Cooperation Plan”, the “Ecological Environment
Management Plan for the Yangtze River Economic Belt”, and
the “Special Plan on Scientific and Technological Innovation in
Environmental Sector for the 13th Five Year Plan Period”. These
policies provide a clearer, more detailed and standardised
structure on the macro level and sub areas for the management
and protection of the ecological environment. At the same time,
with an objective to build an ecological environment management
system in which “government takes the lead, enterprises assume
main responsibility, and social organisations and the public also
participate”, the Chinese government further defined each of the
roles played by the government, enterprises, social organisations
and the public in achieving the environment restoration, thus
providing tactful guidance for environmental protection companies
to position themselves in future development.

The emphasis placed by China on water environment management
had reached an unprecedented level. In 2017, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Plan for Major River Basins (2016-2020)",
the newly amended “Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC” and many other water environment management policies,
were issued. Through these policies, the Chinese government has
set various specific governance objectives and timelines, such as
“by the end of 2020, all urban areas are expected to be equipped
with waste water treatment and recycling facilities” and “by 2030,
all black and odorous water bodies in cities are expected to be
eliminated”. These demonstrated the government’s firm commitment
to tackle water environmental pollution. Under the strong leadership
and swift actions from the government, the water environment
management industry is expected to continue its significant growth.
The continuous roll-out of policies focusing on specific areas, also
serves as guidance on the standard and sound development of the
water environment management industry, thus further facilitating
the industry’s rational growth.
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The Group will maintain its momentum
of “making steady progress and forging
ahead for the future”, while striving
towards becoming a leader in China’s
water environment management industry.

FEEBLURFSL, HREHEE, BOKIKHA
FREKIMR A IR TUR AR EE.

Furthermore, the adoption of the public-private partnership (“PPP”)
model the water environment management industry continues to
bring a positive influence to this industry. Through the aggregation
of government and social capital, it takes on the large-scale and
sophisticated water environment management projects, resulting
in a transformation of the business focus of the whole industry.
In 2017, the governments at central and local levels in China
introduced a series of policies to promote the PPP model. These
policies would broaden the financing channels of PPP projects in
the future, provide more support in channeling social capital into
areas such as public services, and guide social capital to achieve
a healthy development through PPP projects.

L5, BAFHSEAREGE ( "PPP” ) 1&3l(F
FEERSIN KRB AR T N ERI SRS,

BEEEZEA IR, BYRGBRMT
S8R, FEIMEXR. GEHUREESHKNER
EmE, #EHBEMIISEONEE. £=F
—t&FE, hREMITEAFREE SRR
PPPIEZIRIBIR, BEAEARFHE—LAPPPIIE
HEMARE, MMEBFHANAHRSFTEH
RHESSS, BSHSBEAN B PPPIIELH
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CORPORATE OUTLOOK

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the new year, given the Chinese government’s dedication to
promoting a sound ecological environment, the environmental
protection industry inthe country is expected to remain an investment
highlight with significant growth potential, despite of many
uncertainties that might affect the market and the macro-economic
environment. Meanwhile, the water environment management
industry is also expected to continue its robust development.

From a policy perspective, China will further enhance the
implementation of more environmental protection policies in
the coming year, the results of which will gradually become
more obvious. More environmental management policies are
expected to be introduced to serve as a guidance for the future
development of the industry. With the introduction of more detailed
policies and regulations and the continuous improvement of the
market mechanism, the water environment management industry
standards will continue to be tightened. As a result, it will generate
better development opportunities for the enterprises with strong
capabilities in areas such as project investment, construction,
operations management, technology development and equipment
manufacturing, and will in turn promote the healthy and sound
development of the entire industry.

Looking ahead, as an environmental protection company focusing
on water environment management, the Group will proactively follow
the policies issued at all levels, devote its efforts on comprehensive
management of water environment, comprehensive utilisation of
water resources and comprehensive protection of water ecology,
continuously explore new business areas, strengthen its R&D
capability, enhance the corporate management proficiency with
intelligent and information systems, further promote its talent
development strategies, and optimise financing channels and
financial structure, with an aim to enhance its overall strengths, turn
potential into profitability and transform challenges into opportunities.
The Group will maintain its momentum of “making steady progress
and forging ahead for the future”, while striving towards becoming a
leader in China’s water environment management industry.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
S EEENR

MR. WANG TIANYI
Non-Executive Director and Chairman

FRNFTE
FTESEREFK

Mr. Wang is the Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company as well as a member of the Nominating Committee.
Mr. Wang is also the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of China Everbright International Limited.

Mr. Wang was formerly the Dean of Shandong Academy of Science
and the Deputy Mayor of Ji'nan City, Shandong Province. Mr. Wang
had been the Vice President of Yantai University in Shandong
Province, and the Dean and Professor of the Economic Management
Faculty of Yantai University.

Mr. Wang is currently a part-time professor of Tsinghua University
and the Co-Director of the Center for Public-Private Parnership at
Tsinghua University. He is also a member of PPP Business Advisory
Board of the United Nations Economic Commission for Europe,
a member of the China Council for International Cooperation on
Environment and Development, and a member of China Business
Research Centre Advisory Council of the National University of
Singapore.

Mr. Wang holds a Doctorate degree in Economics, a Master’s
degree in Management and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronics from
Tsinghua University. He had pursued advanced studies at Harvard
University and University of California in the United States.

FRENFRFTAHTESREEK, BBER
SFR. ERETHTENAEFRERAFTIT
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Mr. An is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
of the Company. Mr. An is also the Deputy General Manager of
China Everbright International Limited.

Mr. An has comprehensive experience and knowledge in mergers
and acquisitions, project investment and management, accounting
management and risk management. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. An worked at the Municipal General Office of Jingzhou, Hubei
Province, China Everbright Bank Ltd. and Guangdong Technology
Venture Capital Group Ltd.

Mr. An holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Jinan
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant in China and also a
Certified International Internal Auditor.

MR. AN XUESONG
Executive Director and CEO

RENFE
TESREH
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EYRERERATRISEE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
S EBEERRR

. CAl SHUGUANG .
ecutive Director

(R

Mr. Cai is the Executive Director of the Company. B RNAR N EHITESE.

Mr. Cai was formerly the Executive Director and the Deputy General &4 HhEYCAERERABHMITE=SEFEER
Manager of China Everbright International Limited. He was also M2, HINSEHERYISEEEERADES
previously the Deputy General Manager of Shenzhen Kingway — £&38,

Brewery Limited.

Mr. Cai graduated from the Department of Computer Science of AN FEEAFTENRSFR, FiEER
Fudan University and holds a Master of Business Administration IR ENIFEAZ T EEEmMITEA. HES
degree from the University of Ballarat in Australia. He holds the BRITEITERFR, mAeSESIEBESIMESER
title of Senior Engineer. Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive EHEBEEERE N TR,

knowledge in corporate management and project planning.
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MS. XU NAILING
Executive Director

FBRet
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Ms. Xu is the Executive Director of the Company. She is also the
Deputy Chief Financial Officer of China Everbright International
Limited.

Ms. Xu was formerly the Deputy General Manager of Operational
Risk Management Department of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd (Head
Office) and the Assistant Governor of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
(Guangzhou Branch). She also worked in China Everbright Bank
Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou Branch) as the General Manager of Operation
Planning Management Department, Legal and Compliance
Department and Operational Risk Management Department.

Ms. Xu graduated from the Department of Finance, Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics, China. She holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Xiamen University. Ms. Xu
holds the title of Senior Economist in China (specialising in Finance).

BELTARRNEWTES, BIFAFENAERR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
S EEENR

Mr. Zhai is the Independent Director of the Company, the Chairman
of the Nominating Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zhai is also the Independent
Non-Executive Director of China Everbright International Limited
and the President and Partner of Primavera Capital Group.

Mr. Zhai has extensive experience and knowledge in banking,
capital market and management. He was formerly Managing
Director of Goldman Sachs Asia LLC and Chief Representative of
Goldman Sachs Beijing Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr.
Zhai worked at the International Department of the People’s Bank
of China in Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the People’s
Bank of China Representative Office for the Americas based in New
York.

Mr. Zhai holds a Master's degree in International Relations from
Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration degree
from New York University and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Peking University.

-

R. ZHAI HAITAO
dependent Director
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MR. LIM YU NENG PAUL
Independent Di&ctor

WiilRBsE
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Mr. Lim is the Independent Director of the Company, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nominating Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

y o

Mr. Lim has over 25 years of banking experience with international
investment banks including Morgan Stanley, Deutsche Bank,
Solomon Smith Barney and Bankers Trust. He is currently the
Managing Director and Head of Private Equity of SBI Ven Capital
Pte Ltd., and the Independent Director of Golden Energy and
Resources Limited (listed on SGX) and Nippecraft Limited (listed
on SGX).

Mr. Lim holds a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science
from the University of Wisconsin, Madison, United States. He is also
a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
S EEENR

Ms. Cheng is the Independent Director of the Company. Ms. Cheng
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee.

Ms. Cheng has more than 20 years of experience in the insurance
industry and is an Associate of the Australian Insurance Institute.
She has been involved in major overseas insurance projects,
particularly in the Asia Pacific region, and is actively involved in
utilising insurance as a financial tool for project development. Ms.
Cheng is currently the head of the Insurance Division of AsiaOne
Insurance Agency Pte. Ltd. in Singapore and Executive Director
(Principal Representative) of the Cambodia Branch of AsiaOne
Insurance Agency Pte. Ltd. She also headed the Business
Development Department of Aon Insurance Brokers, the biggest
broking house in Asia, and managed the insurance division of the
Singapore Technologies Group.

Ms. Cheng completed her insurance study at the Australian
Insurance Institute.

MS. CHENG FONG YEE

Ihﬂdependent Director
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MS. HAO GANG
Independent Director
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Ms. Hao is the Independent Director of the Company.

Ms. Hao is currently an Associate Professor at the Department
of Management Sciences, the Assistant Dean of the College
of Business, and the Co-Director of CityU-Tsinghual EMBA/
MPA (Public-Private Partnership) dual degree programme at the
College of Business, City University of Hong Kong. Prior to that,
she took a number of roles at the City University of Hong Kong,
mainly responsible for university development and international
programme, amongst others. Ms. Hao also worked in Techno-
Economic Research Institute of National Economic Commission of
the PRC and participated in a number of major national investment
and research projects in China.

Ms. Hao holds a Doctorate degree in Decision Sciences and
Operations Management from University of Pittsburgh in the United
States, a Master’s degree in Industrial Administration from Tianjin
University and a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics from Sichuan
University.
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KEY MANAGEMENT
S BEENR

MR. LUO JUNLING
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Luo is the Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”) of the Company.

Mr. Luo has rich experience in accounting management and
operations management. Mr. Luo was formerly the Vice President
of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Luo worked with
China Construction Bank (Fujian Branch), Fujian Guang Min Road
Bridge Construction Co., Ltd., and Fujian Min Xing Accounting Firm.

Mr. Luo holds a Bachelor’'s degree in International Accounting from
Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant and a Certified Tax Agent in the PRC.
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MR.YUYIPING
VICE PRESIDENT

Mr. Yu is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Yu has rich experience in project management and team
development. Mr. Yu was formerly the Vice President of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Limited, the General Manager of
Sichuan Everbright Environmental Investment Company Limited
and the General Manager of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Ji'nan) Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu also worked with the People’s Bank of China
(Zigong Branch) and Huaxi Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yu graduated from the Department of Ideological and Political
Education of Henan Normal University.
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MR. TAO JUNJIE
VICE PRESIDENT

Mr. Tao is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Tao has rich experience in engineering construction and
operations management. Mr. Tao was formerly the General
Manager of China Everbright Water Investments Limited and the
Plant Manager of Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2).
Mr. Tao also worked with Shandong University of Architecture and
Engineering.

Mr. Tao holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering from
Wuhan University of Technology and aMaster’s degree in Architecture
and Civil Engineering from Xi'an University of Architecture and
Technology. He also holds the certificate of Certified Supervision
Engineer and the title of Engineering Technology Researcher.
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MR. WANG YUEXING
VICE PRESIDENT

Mr. Wang is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in engineering construction and
operations management. Mr. Wang was formerly the Deputy
General Manager of Everbright Environmental Protection Technology
Development (Beijing) Limited and Everbright Environmental
Protection Engineering (Shenzhen) Limited and the Plant Manager of
Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1).

Mr. Wang holds a Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering
from Tsinghua University, a Master of Business Administration
degree from Shandong University and a Bachelor’'s degree in Civil
Engineering from South China University of Technology. He also
holds the titles of Certified Cost Engineer and Certified Senior
Engineer.
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KEY MANAGEMENT
S BEENR

MR. WANG GUANPING
VICE PRESIDENT

Mr. Wang is the Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in technology management and
research and development. He was granted several invention
patents and utility patents. Mr. Wang was formerly the Assistant
Dean of Everbright Environmental Research Institute, Chief
Technology Officer of China Environmental Protection Science &
Technology Holdings Limited, Vice Chief Engineer of Shenzhen
Liyuan Water Design & Consultant Limited and Chief Engineer of
Operation Branch of Wuhan Kaidi Water Services Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering
from Tsinghua University, a Master’s degree in Municipal Engineering
from Tongji University and a Bachelor’s degree in Water Supply and
Sewerage Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology. He holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer.
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MR. ZHANG GUOFENG
CEO ASSISTANT

Mr. Zhang is the CEO Assistant of the Company.

Mr. Zhang has rich experience in project investment, operations
management and mergers and acquisitions. He was formerly the
General Manager of the Investment Development Department at
Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Limited, the Deputy
General Manager of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited and the
Supervisor of Everbright Environmental Energy (Xintai) Ltd.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Qingdao University of Science and
Technology. He is a Certified Management Accountant and a
member of the Association of International Accountants.
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MR. SUN LINBO
CEO ASSISTANT

Mr. Sun is the CEO Assistant of the Company.

Mr. Sun has rich experience in infrastructure construction and
project operations management in the environmental protection
industry. He is also the General Manager of Everbright Water
(Ji'nan) Limited.

Mr. Sun holds a Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering from
Shandong University. He holds the titles of Certified Cost Engineer
in China and Engineering Technology Application Researcher.
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MS. PENG PEI
LEGAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Peng is the Legal Counsel and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Peng was a practising lawyer
at the Singapore office of Allen & Gledhill LLP. Her areas of
practice included mergers and acquisitions and derivatives. She
participated, as a core member, in a major research project of the
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC on disregarding the corporate
entity to propose the relevant judicial interpretations. Report of
the research project became a book entitled “Rules, Theories
and Practices of Disregarding the Corporate Entity” published by
People’s Court Press in April 2009.

Ms. Peng holds Master of Laws degrees from New York University,
National University of Singapore and Tsinghua University and
a Bachelor of Laws degree from Tianjin University. She is called
to the PRC Bar and the State Bar of California, United States.
Ms. Peng is also an associate member of Chartered Secretaries
Institute of Singapore and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Company has long been committed to “maintaining stable
operations and ensuring compliant discharge”. It aims to foster
harmony between its projects and the neighbouring communities,
and drives sustainable development of our society through
high-standard environmental performance, technology innovation,
advanced operation, and the assurance of discharge compliance.

China places a strong emphasis on green development, ecological
management and ecological conservation through “13th Five-
Year Plan for Eco-Environmental Protection” and the newly
amended “Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”,
bringing forth unprecedented opportunities for enterprises in the
environmental protection industry. Through our innovative business
strategies, the Company keeps abreast of the latest policy trends
and seizes opportunities for growth. During the year under review,
the government strongly promoted the PPP model, offering positive
signals to the water environment management industry in areas
including waste water treatment, river-basin ecological restoration,
sponge city construction, etc.

We believe that stakeholders provide valuable insights to our
business development, which support us in developing sustainable
and long-term strategies. Therefore, we maintain continuous
dialogue with stakeholders through transparent and open channels,
for instance, our stakeholder engagement plan which covers the
entire project lifecycle. The plan helps us to identify priority issues in
all our project operations and the associated sustainability concerns.
The effectiveness of our stakeholder engagement activities is also
evaluated throughout different project stages in achieving higher
operation efficiency.

This is an abstract of our Sustainability Report 2017. The full
Sustainability Report 2017 is prepared by adopting the most
updated Global Reporting Initiative’s (“GRI”) Sustainability Reporting
Standards and in accordance with the SGX Listing Rules (711A and
711B) — Sustainability Reporting Guide. The full sustainability report
will be available in Chinese and English at the Company’s corporate
website (www.ebwater.com) and the SGX's website (www.sgx.com)
in May 2018.
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INTEGRATED PROJECTS

Throughout years of experience in waste water treatment, the
Company has strengthened its position inthe water environment
management industry. Our vision goes beyond waste water
treatment, thus we are determined to diversify our business
through exploring innovative development models. During the
year under review, the Company successfully secured Hubei
Suizhou Integrated Water Environment Restoration PPP Project
and Guangxi Nanning Shuitang River Integrated Restoration
PPP Project. They are integrated river-basin ecological
restoration projects with the aim to improve water quality as
well as the ecological environment of the river basins. The
projects which comprise works such as river regulation, waste
water interception, river ecological restoration, sponge city
construction, environmental landscaping and information
management.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Since 2016, the Company has fully implemented the
Environmental, Safety, Health and Social Responsibility
("ESHS”) Management System and Risk Management System
in order to improve the delicacy, standard and system of the
Company’s management as well as to enhance the Company’s
risk control capability, thus managing environmental and social
impacts associated with its projects in a more effective manner.
The two-pronged approaches have resulted in a comprehensive
system that integrates pre-event identification and assessment,
event inspection and audit, and post-event appraisal, forging
ahead with a long-term protection system as well as a healthy
platform to promote sustainable development of the Company.
These systems have also enhanced employees’ management
capabilities in day-to-day operations and controlling risks at
source. In 2017, the Company continued to optimise those
two systems, fostered the implementation of the systems
through its subsidiaries, and organised awareness-building
activities (including competitions on ESHS knowledge and
project managers’ forums), so as to make greater efforts in
environmental and social impact management.
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Apart from the internal management systems, the Company
has also been actively reviewing its environmental and social
performances against internationally recognised standards. In
particular, since 2016, we have been reporting to International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”) on our environmental and social
performance in accordance with the “Environmental, Health
and Safety Guidelines” of IFC applicable to the general and
industry sector.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANGE

The Company, as an environmental service provider, is well
aware of the environmental and social impacts brought
by our operations. We strive to maintain high industry
standards through advanced technologies, which allow us
to utilise resources in an efficient manner and achieve better
environmental performance.

WASTE WATER AND WASTE MANAGEMENT

In order to provide high quality waste water treatment services,
we have set a high standard for our projects. All effluents
discharged from our waste water treatment plants comply with
“Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plant” (GB18918-2002) as well as other relevant
requirements stated in the environmental impact assessment
reports approved by the government. During the year under
review, the Company treated approximately 1,187,615,000 m?
of waste water and reduced approximately 319,000 tonnes of
chemical oxygen demand (“COD”) discharge.
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COD REDUCTION IN THE PAST THREE YEARS | i3fE=FICODRHIE
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The Company has been striving to recycle water resources
to reduce fresh water demand of downstream users. Our
reusable water projects purify effluent from waste water
treatment plants and turn it into reusable water for power
plants and general industrial use in accordance with “Reuse of
Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality Standard for Industrial
Uses” (GB/T19923-2005) or equivalent. During the year under
review, our reusable water projects produced over 11,061,000 m®
of reusable water.

SLUDGE

Sludge is an unavoidable by-product of waste water
treatment process. To reduce the environmental impact of
sludge disposal, the sludge generated from our projects is
treated in accordance with applicable national students
such as “Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant” (GB18918-2002), as well as
IFC’s “General Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines”
and “Environmental, Health, and Safety Guidelines for Water
and Sanitation”. The treated sludge can be further processed
to produce compost, while sludge designated for disposal
is dewatered to reduce its water content and volume, thus
alleviating the burden on landfills. In 2017, 90.36% of the total
sludge generated from our projects were recycled.
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SLUDGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL METHODS | ;Sii B4 &%
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ENVIROMENTAL CERTIFICATIONS

To ensure that our operations meet international standards and
would not lead to secondary pollution, all of our projects have
obtained or are applying for relevant management standard
certifications, including 1SO 9001 Quality Management
System, ISO 14001 Environmental Management System, and
OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System. These certifications serve as recognition to our
safe, reliable and up-to-standard operations, demonstrating
our strong sense of social and environmental responsibility.
In the future, we will continue bringing greater contributions to
environmental and ecological conservation.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company upholds the principle that occupational health
and safety is not only its core corporate culture, but also its
solemn commitment to every employee. Since 2016, we have
implemented the ESHS Management System to supervise
health and safety related issues in a systematic approach.
This system also covers our supply chain, where suppliers’
environmental, social, health, and safety performances
are included into our evaluation criteria. To further promote
safety behaviour amongst employees, we set up clear safe
production guidelines, provide employees with advanced
tools and personal protective equipment, and conduct regular
safety inspections.

Every project of the Company is assigned with a safety
management team led by the general manager and other
department heads of the project, to supervise and manage
all health and safety issues arising from various stages
throughout the project’s life cycle. The team is also responsible
for organising emergency drills and exercises to improve
the employees’ crisis response capability. In addition, we
provide annual medical check-ups and occupational disease
surveillance to safeguard our employees’ health. Moreover,
we have set up an Employee Protection and Safety Fund,
which can be disbursed upon application to provide support
to employees who suffer from accidents or diseases, to relieve
financial burden of employees’ families.

We regularly conduct employee health and safety trainings with
topics including emergency response planning, operational
hazards, first aid, legal, and other relevant topics. The forms
of training include video, seminar, forum, and competition, etc.
Through a variety of training and activities, our employees are
fully aware of safety in production. With all these efforts, the
injury rate of the Company’s employees was 0.22* during the
year under review.
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* Injury rate (IR) = Total number of work-related injuries/Total working hours x 200,000
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

The Company firmly upholds its people-oriented development
strategy with attention to employees’ training and development.
In maintaining proximity to talent, we have established
a “talent pool”, forming a framework with development
ladder for talents supported by a replacement mechanism.
We also implement innovative training approaches. For
instance, our Zhangqgiu project company launched its first
“apprenticeship programme” during the year under review.
Under this programme, the reputable “masters” with abundant
experience and technical know-how, will transfer knowledge
to the “apprentices” through structured training programmes
with continuous assessments. This programme helps
employees to build technical skills, as well as steering them
along their career paths. Furthermore, the Company arranges
its management personnel and technical leaders to enrol
the CEO Course and the Engineering Master Programme at
Tsinghua University; the Company also arranges new hires to
join execution trainings, helping them to integrate into the new
team and developing their sense of recognition towards the
Company'’s corporate culture.

We strongly believe that enhancement of business capacity
is a cornerstone of corporate strategic management.
Diversified and practical training programmes are valuable
in fulfilling various development needs of our employees,
hence to improve their job satisfaction. Therefore, our
trainings are tailored based on staff's positions, skills and
management requirement. Furthermore, we organise
overseas exchange activities with industry peers, and invite
external professional bodies to conduct training sessions
for our projects’ management and technical staff, allowing
our employees to grasp the latest developments of the
industry. Our comprehensive capacity building programme
allows employees to excel in technical skill competitions. For
instance, our Ji'nan project’s representative won the first place
in “Shandong Province Municipal Water Supply and Drainage
Industry Occupational Skills Competition”. This achievement
recognises our efforts in building a competitive and quality
team. During the year under review, the average training hours
per employee of the Company was 69.52*.
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* The average training hours per employee covers Everbright Water's headquarters, Hong Kong and Singapore offices, and all

operating projects.
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PHILANTHROPY

As an enterprise focusing on environmental protection,
we always encourage and support our employees to
participate in charitable activities to fulfill our corporate social
responsibility. Our employees have been actively supporting
activities organised by community groups. For example,
employees of our Suzhou project company participated in
the “Walking Gesang Flower” walkathon to raise funds for
the Gesanghua Western Development Camp Project, which
aims at supporting students from the underprivileged areas
in Western China to broaden their horizons. Additionally, our
employees from our Ji'nan project company volunteered in
the “Love Spring City, Drive in a Civilised Way” initiative, by
acting as traffic controllers to assist in regulating the traffic and
advising drivers to drive responsibly.

In addition, our employees have been enthusiastic in
organising charitable activities such as donations, caring
visits, and environmental protection campaigns. For example,
in response to the poverty alleviation initiative organised by
the municipal government of Dezhou City, our Dezhou project
company has been organising internal fundraising activities
since 2014 to provide financial assistance to reduce poverty,
help the elderly and provide education aid to the needy
students. These actions have made the project company
consecutively nominated as the “Leading Enterprise in
Charity Donations” of Dezhou City; in support of the “Double
Outreaching and Promotion” activity initiated by the CPC
Lianyungang Municipal Committee, our Lianyungang project
company visited rural villages to gain first-hand understanding
of the poverty situations of farming households, coordinated
the implementation of poverty alleviation policies, and
delivered supplies and warm regards to the farmers in need.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

The Company accords high priority in environmental education
by devoting its resource, talents and technologies to educate
the public on environmental protection issues. During the year
under review, our project companies in various provinces
participated in different national environmental science
and technology activities such as events themed with the
“National Science Popularisation Day” and the “World Water
Day”. In particular, our Ji'nan project company participated
in the 2017 National Science Popularisation Day Promotion
Exhibition organised by Ji'nan City Science and Technology
Institute, promoting environmental protection as well as waste
water and sludge treatment processes to the public. Our Xinyi
project company co-organised the activity “Loving Nature and
the City under the Blue Skies - joining hands with children
in protecting the environment” with the local government
and public organisations. During the activity, 20 left-behind
children were invited to visit our waste water treatment project
and were motivated to study and protect the environment. In
addition, many of our project companies switched off their
non-essential lights to support the “Earth Hour 2017” and
encouraged their employees and the local communities to
save energy and cut emissions through collective efforts.

Many of our projects also serve as the “National Science
Education Base” and the “National Environmental Education
Social Practice Base for Secondary and Primary Schools”.
Our projects welcome visitors from overseas, teachers and
students from various educational institutions as well as
people from all social circles for site visits, and share our
professional skills and experience with them every year. We
hope that these activities can nurture the new generation’s
sense of responsibility towards environmental protection,
as well as establishing connections between the Company
and the society. For example, our Dalian Siergou Waste
Water Treatment Project participated in the first “Dalian City
Environmental Protection Open Day”, which attracted local
residents, environmental organisations and media to visit the
project. The project staff introduced waste water treatment
process as well as the plant operation during the tour,
offering visitors with a better understanding on the Company’s
business nature and the associated environmental benefits
of the Company’s operations. Over 20,000 visitors visited our
projects during the year under review.
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JOINING HANDS TOWARDS THE SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) are a series of
United Nations’ (“UN”) international development goals, which
aim at improving the three dimensions of development issues
— social, economic and environmental — in an integrated
approach from 2015 to 2030, moving towards a path of
sustainable development and creating a fairer and a more
environmentally friendly world with all countries.

The Company mainly focuses on water environment
management services and water restoration, which help
alleviate the water resources crisis. Overall, the Company’s
vision is aligned with the SDGs. We will continue to play
a proactive role in implementing various SDGs through
development of environmental protection projects, proper
control of discharges, and organising volunteering events and
poverty reduction measures.
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THE SUMMARY BELOW DEPICTS HOW OUR ACTIVITIES CONNECT WITH THE 17 SDGS.
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NO
POVERTY
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1
No Poverty
KR5S

End poverty in all its
forms everywhere
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We regularly organise donation activities such as “Daily
Donation for Care” and “Daily Donation for Love”,
providing scholarship to the needy students and financial
assistance to the underprivileged families.

B IERRENEENGIIN "SRRI 7 "SERMERL
NREFERMRFSNARERER ISR,

ZERD
HUNGER

({4
W

Zero Hunger

B

End hunger, achieve
food security and
improved nutrition
and promote
sustainable
agriculture

IR, SCHURAR
2, MEEFRRIE
AT RL

Our sludge produced from waste water treatment process
can be utilised to produce compost for agricultural use.
This helps farmers reduce their reliance on chemical
fertilisers. In 2017, a total of approximately 698,000 tonnes
of sludge generated from our projects were recycled.
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GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING
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Good Health and
Well-being
RiFfERESEIL

Ensure healthy lives
and promote well-
being for all at all
ages
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We hold safety and health as one of our core values. Apart
from implementing stringent health and safety guidelines,
we also provide medical check-ups and occupational
disease surveillance to safeguard all of our employees’
health. In 2017, 2 cases of work-related injury were
reported.
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QUALITY
EDUCATION

U i
Quality Education
RE#E

Ensure inclusive and
quality education

for all and promote
lifelong learning
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We proactively organise educational programmes
and public visits to our project facilities, offering
every individual with opportunities to understand how
environmental facilities tackle pollution and improve the
living environment of the communities. We received more
than 20,000 visitors in 2017.

BAVRIREDHEENHT BB RIEHARSM, ARRIE
NS THEMRRME IR S RN A E XAEEMR. 3
MNTF—F—CFHEF T#8IE 20,0008 5%,

GENDER
EQUALITY

Gender Equality
HRIFE

Achieve gender
equality and
empower all women
and girls

SRS, 1ERRT
BT ERINEE

We ensure that our human resources management structure,
including compensation, training opportunity and career
prospect, is not gender biased, in order to achieve gender
equality.

HAVHRFANOANERETELRN, WFHHKTE. 55Nk
FAVBIRSAZIERIRN, AMSEIMEEIFE.

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

Clean Water and

Ensure access to
water and sanitation
for all

FFTA NREUKHIAE
BPEFANEHITAR

e

We help prevent water pollution by turning waste water
into water that complies with relevant environmental
regulations. The treated water can be used by downstream
communities. We purified a total of about 1,187,615,000
m? of waste water in 2017.

BN KEXAFTEREENNKE, HTBELEXE
B, \NmBLEKESR, B#IOIFTIE—EEHE2HKTYS
1,187,615,0003Z /5 HKA557K.

Clean Energy
SFEREERER

Sanitation
mnkKE P EIRNE
Ensure access to Our waste water source heat pump projects offer energy-
affordable, reliable, efficientheating and cooling services for homes by utilising
sustainable and thermal energy abstracted from waste water. In 2017,
modern energy for approximately 600 households and 250 departmental
all units were benefited from our heating and cooling systems.
HRANIRIGRIBEER BAIRGSKIFRARGRINE NS 7K FHEEREE AP RIS EERT
8. AIERFNATHFERAYER WMEEREIRIRS., F-F—tF, 96007 ZEEF250 MR
BEIR PNUZETEANHPLISRE.
Affordable and
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DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

i

Decent Work and
Economic Growth
FEI(EMEFIgK

Promote inclusive
and sustainable
economic growth,
employment and
decent work for all

{EHFFA. BEMAR
SRRFERK, (B
DRYEFERAAIAA
SRISURE TAE

Most of our projects are located in suburb areas, thus
our operations can foster local economic development
through offering of job opportunities and improved
infrastructure services.

AL RIB A FHaBX, EtFAIMNEETLURMS
AN SR EEEERIRNE, MTEZitEtARE.

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Industry, Innovation
and Infrastructure

Ak, CUERFNEGEZHE

Build resilient
infrastructure,
promote sustainable
industrialization and
foster innovation

IR SR EES
REAIRIE, (EHER
BEMNTFEI
1, HERDBUHT

We leverage our strong research and development
capabilities to maintain stable operation of our projects
and achieve positive outcomes. For instance, our effective
facility maintenance programme has reduced the number
of unscheduled shutdown due to internal reasons to O.

A MEBNSRAKRIR A SL 4RI B AR IS  TANSEIEIR MRy
BXER. BN, FIEMENRFELHETHIERRERRES 1ZE93F
HEEEMRDEOR.

We are currently constructing our first fully underground
waste water treatment project. The innovative approach
offers good opportunities to release valuable land
resources for beneficial uses to the community.

HANBRIEEXEA LTS — et FUSKGETE. %8l
MR E T ESNIER, STIELIBEERTHXAY
ﬁﬁj@o

1 0 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

A

(=)

v

Reduced Inequalities

HOFFE

Reduce inequality
within and among
countries

WD ERIEFIERZ
AR

We pay special attention in adopting methods to ensure that
our operations do not affect the dignity, rights, livelihood,
or culture of indigenous people. The local ethnic minorities
can be benefited equally as the Han majority from the
environment water management services provided by us.

BAWSBIRERBGELBREE A 2N RERIRAIE™.
A, AETESUE. SRS NEREBREFZ BT )
RERIGMRI GRS .

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
SR CEERE

45



SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES

Sustainable Cities and
Communities

AiFERTH SHK

Make cities inclusive,
safe, resilient and
sustainable

#REE. &£, Al
R EREIFNAT LAY
THFRIASEX

Our sponge city projects improve cities’” ability to absorb,
store, infiltrate and purify rainwater for more effective
drainage and rainwater reuse, thus reducing pollution
and enhancing the flood resilience level of the city. The
total land and surface water catchment of our Zhenjiang
Sponge City Project amounts to approximately 33.5 km?
in total.

FAIRTEMETHI R SERHAIRK. 7K, BIK. 17KEE
7, EERGSHEIRMK, MRS REIESHHEMmIT
BEHD. BRIBAIRE LSRR ARt B = o B
493355 1.

1 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

Responsible
Consumption and
Production

AREEESEF

Ensure sustainable
consumption and
production patterns

RAAFERHERTNE
FE

Sludge is a unavoidable by-product of waste water
treatment. We minimise our environmental impact by
arranging professional third parties to turn sludge into
useful materials for the production of compost, brick, or
energy via incineration. In 2017, a total of approximately
698,000 tonnes of sludge generated from our projects
were recycled.

SRR SRR E R m. RS =0E
WSS REIKFF BN T A/ e, fek, SRERRAR
RORMARE, MTDREEARRIE, —F—t5E, $#£9698,000
eI B AR A SR B AR .

13 oo

Climate Action

SIx{350

Take urgent action
to combat climate
change and its
impacts

%Téﬂy'}%%l"ibf“ VXSS
T REFD

We develop and operate waste water treatment facilities
that are effective and climate-resilient, thus safeguarding
the quality of water essential for agriculture, domestic and
industrial use. The number of unscheduled shutdown due
to internal reasons was 0 in 2017.

HRRRIEEBMEEN FESRRYSKEIRRNE, MR

R, REMTIAIRKKE FF—tF, HMNERB
JRES | ERHRRIFIESHCR AR,
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14 II.3IIEFII.50W WATER

Life below Water
KTED

Conserve and
sustainably use the
oceans, seas and
marine resources

CRIFROET 5 4F P
EFRIRARR AT
ZRRE

Through a series of waste water interception and river
ecological restoration works, we have rehabilitated
polluted urban rivers and revitalised fresh water
ecosystems. At present, our river ecological restoration
works under construction and in preparatory stage are
19.0 km in length.

B —RIREKESRTEESAETEE, BIEETRS
FAUETAE, FIRE TRAPIES. Bal, BATRIE
NEEMRIMEESGETEHK19.02E,

15 HII;ELAND

Life on Land

Rkt

Sustainably manage
forests, combat
desertification, halt
and reverse land
degradation, halt
biodiversity loss

fRiP. IREFEERT RS
SR AR S RS,
IR ETERM, Bhia
FoRlt, SN
iR, BHEMSHE
MERITER

Our integrated river restoration projects improve the health
of river ecosystems, including riparian habitats. Our river
ecological restoration works under construction and in
preparatory stage are expected to conserve 3.58 km? of
riparian zone.

RS S TEAERE NS TEESRARE, LhaE

WEER. BRI TEERESENRITEESEET
EBRBE3.58F A ABRTAFERM .

16 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

0

Peace, Justice and
Strong Institutions

E. EXSEANE

Promote just,
peaceful and
inclusive societies

IR, B8t s
PMBHAREER R, ik
AT AEBRERIEE)E,
ERREIBM. R
MBS

We strive to promote a peaceful and inclusive working
environment. Our “Code of Conduct” and “Compliance
Manual” prohibit issues such as corruption, bribery,
conflict of interest and discrimination within our working
environment. In 2017, the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on us relating to anti-corruption.

BB HD TR BEINI AR, R0 "Bl
M "EAFM" BIEATNEBHNES. =W, FImRsRFL
MFNE, TF—tF, ERBRAE, FATFRMTE
AR ERAE RIS EEN T,

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

Partnerships for
the Goals

Revitalise the
global partnership
for sustainable
development

IGEFITFR, EiRA
FERRBEBRKHERR

We have been cooperating with international institutions,
such as IFC, to promote sustainable development by
ensuring that our operations can meet their standards and
guidelines.

BA—BEMIFCEERIWEEME, FHERENNEEHEES]
AOPNERGES |, MTEEHAT AR,

(i BHREIMAI KRR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to ensure investor confidence in the
Company as a trusted business enterprise. The board of directors
(the “Board”) and the management team (the “Management”)
will continue to uphold good corporate governance practices to
enhance long-term value and returns for shareholders and protect
shareholders’ interests.

This report outlines the Company’s corporate governance
practices for FY2017 with specific reference made to the principles
and guidelines of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the
“Code”), which forms part of the continuing obligations of the
Listing Rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”).

The Board sits at the top of the Company’s governance
framework. To execute its responsibilities, the Board delegates
specific functions to various sub-committees, namely, the
Nominating Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Management Committee. These
sub-committees function within written terms of reference and
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular basis.
Each of these sub-committees (“Board Committees”) reports its
activities regularly to the Board.

(A) BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s conduct of its affairs

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of
the Company. Its key responsibilities include providing leadership
and supervision to the Management of the Group with a view to
protecting shareholders’ interests and enhancing long-term
shareholders’ value.

The Board’s principal functions include the following:

(1)  providing entrepreneurial leadership, setting strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the necessary financial and
human resources are in place for the Group to meet its
objectives;

(2) reviewing and approving corporate strategies, financial
objectives and direction of the Group;

(3) establishing a prudent and effective control system to
assess and manage risks, including safeguarding of
shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets;

(4) establishing goals for Management and monitoring the
achievement of these goals;

(5) ensuring the Management’s leadership of high quality,
effectiveness and integrity;

RABHATERSENATNRE, BRIRE
EXNEANBDRE—REGEROEUFTHED. &
REWEFS ( "ERR" ) MEEEN ("B
HEE" ) BHEERFRIFNATIAESLE, LR
BARATRIKHMEMRARRER, RIFRERIIN

T,

AREWA T AN TE_F—CtUBREENAE
RELE, BRsE T _F—_F ERETN
( "AFaEFW" ) NRNFAES], ZTHE
RIS ZERAT ( "#ikFR" ) £
AL SRRORREE LSS HUERERS .

EERMUTAATREERNE. EFSTIR
NANENZERSFKITHEESSRIRMKIRE, XL
ENERZBEREERS. FHERZ. #Hit
ZREUNEEZRZ. SENERIEERE
MERBRBEFIZRPIEIE, ZFRBEIEFIZEE
HER. 8N ENERSBEHREFRIORT
1E.

(R) EFEREM
EFE2M9EF
BEESEMNTATNRBNRIIAR. EFRHY

FERREASMNEFEANEERER, LURFP
BRI AR T BRI EBN B,

EFESEERREELUTAS:
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(2) HRFHUERERANTIEEE. WSBiR
MERESE;
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FINE, EIERERR AR SER S
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(6)  reviewing the Management’s performance;

(7)  approving annual budgets and investment and divestment
proposals;

(8) reviewing the internal controls, risk management, financial
performance and reporting compliance;

(9) identifying the key stakeholder group and recognising that
their perceptions affect the Company’s reputation;

(10) setting the Group’s value and standards (including ethical
standards), and ensuring that obligations to shareholders
and other stakeholders are understood and met;

(11)  considering the sustainability issues, such as environmental,
health, safety and social factors, as part of its strategic
formulation; and

(12) assuming responsibility for corporate governance.

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment,
and are obliged to act in good faith and consider at all times the
interest of the Company.

The Board meets regularly, at least on a quarterly basis.
Ad-hoc meetings are held at such times, as and when required, to
address any specific significant matters that may arise. Notices of
Board meetings, together with detailed meeting materials for each
agenda (including board papers and explanatory or background
information), are generally sent to the Board one week earlier to
ensure that the Directors have sufficient preparation time for the
meetings. During the Board meetings, the relevant Management
personnel may be invited to make presentation and answer
the Directors’ queries on the relevant agenda, and the Directors
are free to discuss and openly challenge the views presented
by the Management and other Directors. The Chairman of the
Board ensures that each agenda is allocated sufficient time for
discussion and each Director is given sufficient opportunity to
express his/her opinions. Where necessary, the Company also
engages external consultants to provide professional opinions on
specific projects or corporate exercises to facilitate the Board’s
decision-making process. The Board’s decision-making process is
an objective one. In FY2017, the Board held 7 meetings in total.

(6) ERIIEEERIS

(7)) HWEFEMEIRSHERS,

(8)  EHIINERES. KEEE. WSWESRMHR
REGHIE

9) KRIKRBEFHOERHE, FOMBINEE
SXEREFETERN;

(10) HIEAERAMENITE (BIEERR
i) | WRASEFIEFAET 7T RRM
HAtishERINSS,

(11)  7EHEABRAY 5 ST AR (AR
5. #FE. REMH2ER)

(12) ABEREEENEE.

FTENESNEMRR, RIFRIZATHE, B
MRS TEFRELUR LT EAHE R,

EESTEREAEN, BIFEELEH K.
WEFRE, EEHARNEFHEHIRN, 171
HJREHINEAREARRE. EESRISVGENLL
RAXTERSWNERNFASNEY (BFE5
SWRLNBRIERER) BETRNEHRE
—RAREEER, IHRESMEFAERIME
EEEEN. EEESNRWEE, BXEEE
AREZEAEELMHRAREEEEZSH
BXWERHNAE. SEAEFaaN TR
HAS, WEEREENEMESNENATAERE
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BEEENN. AT —tUBREES, EF5—
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The number of meetings and the Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nominating Committee, held during FY2017,
are as follows:

E_E—tURFES, FARAEFNESES.
HIIERS. FMERSMESZRSMZWR

HFEERLHEERIN TR

Board Audit Remuneration Nominating
£ HIERS FHERS RBERS
Directors/ Board Members Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
EEJEE S SIORE | HRERE | SIN0RE | HERE | SW0RE | WERE | SRS | HEIRE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRUGEHE 7 7 N.A. N.A. N.A. NA. 1 1
Mr. An Xuesong REMERE 7 7 NA. NA. NA. NA. NA. N.A.
Mr. Cai Shuguang BEBLSEY 7 5(1) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. NA. N.A.
Ms. Xu Nailing® BRI 7 5@ NA. NA. NA. NA. NA. NA.
Mr. Zhai Haitao Big5rt 7 7 4 4 2 2 1 1
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul #8854 7 7 4 4 2 2 1 1
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee — MRUNLZ T 7 7 4 4 2 2 NA. N.A.
Ms. Hao Gang® NIz L® - xC) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Notes: B

N.A. — Not a Member of the Board Committee

™ Mr. Cai Shuguang was appointed as Executive Director of the Company

with effect from 23 February 2017. Following such appointment, 5 Board
meetings were held in FY2017.

@ Ms. Xu Nailing was appointed as Executive Director of the Company

with effect from 23 February 2017. Following such appointment, 5 Board
meetings were held in FY2017.

e Ms. Hao Gang was appointed as Independent Director of the Company

with effect from 16 March 2018. Meetings were held prior to her
appointment and therefore she was not in attendance.

In lieu of physical meetings, written resolutions were also
circulated for approval by members of the Board. The Company’s
Bye-laws also provide for meetings by way of telephone, electronic
or other communication facilities.

The Board approves a document, known as the Board Authority
Matrix, with guidelines setting forth the matters reserved for the
Board’s decision and clear directions to Management on matters
that must be approved by the Board. The Board Authority Matrix
is reviewed by the Board at least once a year and revised
accordingly when necessary. The matters reserved for the Board’s
decision include but are not limited to change in share capital,
acquisitions and disposals of assets with value exceeding certain
threshold, venturing into non-core business, setting up of joint
venture, corporate or financial restructuring, obtaining borrowings
exceeding certain threshold, appointment of key management
personnel, decision on major legal actions, share issuance
and dividends, financial results, annual budget and corporate
strategies. The Board will provide directions to the Management of
the Group’s business divisions through presentations at Board and
Board Committee meetings.

NA. - FEIZZERSHIZER
@ BB EEH —F—tF —H —+=HEHE
ENLLERIITEE. BREE T, —F
— R FEREF T HREFRDK,

BB TH _—F—tF_F 1+ =HERE
EARL TR TER, GEKETE, —F
— B FEREF T A RAEFLLN,

2)

@ PRI+ EH —F—/\F=F 17 AR TS
FLEmTEE, FWNBFTES, HERE
BE, EREESN.
EESUBEIRASESS R PBEREERER
HRARRIZEANESTESN. NEEEBH
ETEFSSWNALIEE, BHENEEMbET
HBF.

EFEMWET RN "EFSTIRBER" /Y
X, BT BLEMKRBAEEERR
R, EXHEET T EERE—NEWRIES], BB
WY PBLENEREFTE LREFEHH., F5
SELBFRWEESNRBRBTHT, 7
L EIMRNZERMHER. RBLEFIR
RNSMEFEENRT: BRATE, BIHER
HRR WS E. HEAIRR OIS, '
vERARE. EAEMSER. REEIHER
HREL. EEXREEAR, WEXEEHE
RORR. RITROIRERE. MWSER FE
MEMEIEES. SESREESEERIWA
BEERRENZERRAENEARENSES
REFARWSSER JEEFBARITAE.
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The current members of the Board are familiar with the Group’s
business operations and corporate governance practices. In
particular, a majority of the Directors (including a majority of
Independent Directors) have more than eight years’ experience
serving as an executive officer or a director of a company in the
environmental protection industry. The Nominating Committee
(“NC”) ensures that new Board appointees are provided with
trainings and information to familiarise themselves with the
Group’s business, strategic goals and directions and corporate
governance practices.

Upon the appointment of a new Director, the Company will provide
a formal letter to the Director, setting out his/her duties and
obligations. Such Directors are given appropriate briefings when
they are first appointed to the Board. Appropriate orientations are
conducted for all new Directors appointed to the Board to ensure
that they are familiar with the Company’s business, operations,
governance practice and regulatory requirements. The Company
Secretary or the external lawyers also provide trainings to the
new Directors on his/her duties and responsibilities as a Director
and the ongoing obligations of the Company as an SGX-listed
company.

The Company provides ongoing education on Board procedures,
corporate governance practices and industry developments to
all Directors. The Company also invite external experts (such as
auditors, lawyers, sustainability consultants, technical experts or
other professionals) to provide regular trainings to the Directors
and the Management on legal, financial, technical and business
topics, depending on the Company’s development needs. The
Management further provides regular updates on changes in
the relevant laws, regulations and changing commercial risks to
enable the Directors to make well-informed decisions and to
ensure that the Directors are competent in carrying out their
respective roles and responsibilities. At the same time, the
Directors are encouraged to keep themselves abreast of the latest
developments relevant to the business of the Group.

Besides that, the Directors have the opportunity to visit the
Group’s operational facilities and meet with the Management to
gain a better understanding of the Group’s business operations.

Board Composition and Balance

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, with half being
Independent Directors. The Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Annual Report are:

i Mr. Wang Tianyi (Non-Executive Director & Chairman);
ii) Mr. An Xuesong (Executive Director & CEO);

iii)  Mr. Cai Shuguang (Executive Director);

iv)  Ms. Xu Nailing (Executive Director);

v Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director);

vi)  Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director);

vii)  Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Director); and

viii) Ms. Hao Gang (Independent Director).

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

EENRRNY T RAERANWSIEENAEIAE
Hxp, BiAMES, FAFFHULNES (8
BRI ERIRYESR) BERMRTIAIATIE
FTEBARKESEBI/\F. REERSH
RNERRZAXBININGEE, E2T7HEIER
AOMLSS. Skig BRI RLAR AB)G ST,

EREHESFH, ARFSRZESKE—MDIE
TURUBSER, Hp IRt/ iR ERAHRRET
AIXSBHERE. MEEEEBERMAESSH
BEZE)IMLSNE. AATAMEHEE
AUESERAUSIFWSNERE, LULHR{D
MNAEFALETWSE. BE. QELERURGE
B3R, REMPBEINPRITIFEERHITE
ill, EETREANEENRIINSHIRELARA
NEWERFRZAT LA BN B TROFERIE NS,

RARFFE AR ERRHEXERTSER.
NENRESEEAI TR RAIZ)I. ARENEEIS
SMEREZR (LLANEELHIm. 2RI, ALk M
B, RAERFEMEWATLT) WEFNEE
B rEiE)l, HIIRERZERE. M5,
A, mlEdE, BRRRTAATNRRES
X, EEEREHREERER. ENNERE
BUAR AR LXBG, (FESIELES
DEREEHIEM EMHIRE, WHIRES(IE
BITEHSBENAGMERE. RN, AREhEHR
SRR SRR S ERAIRA TR,

BRitZHh, BRI BINSSNAEREER
EFSEEENEES, IMEEFT RAER

A SSEERIR.
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EESHIBR/\RESHERE, Hh—¥F M E
E., HEAFERSEH, A 80NFESESHTY
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(i) FBYERE (PUTEE)

(iv) RIREE (WITEE) ;

(v) EBERE RYEE) ;

(vi)  #MEIRESRE (RMYEE) ;

(vii)  FBRUNEZE (H37EE) ;

(viii)  #RILZE (RIZEE) .
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The independence of each Director is assessed and reviewed
annually by the NC. The NC adopts the Code’s definition of
what constitutes an independent director in its review. The Board
and the NC consider an independent director as one who has no
relationship with the Group, its related companies, its 10%
shareholders or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably
perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s
independent business judgment with a view to the best interest of
the Company and the Group’s affairs.

Each Independent Director is required to complete a Director’s
Independence Checklist annually to confirm his/her independence
based on the guidelines as set out in the Code. For FY2017,
the NC has determined that all the Independent Directors are
independent. In particular, Mr. Zhai Haitao is also an independent
director of the Company’s controlling shareholder Everbright
International, but he is not involved in the daily management and
operation of Everbright International. The NC determined that Mr.
Zhai Haitao is independent in character and judgment and his
role as independent director of Everbright International will not
affect his judgment as Independent Director of the Company. Mr.
Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee were appointed as
Independent Directors of the Company in July 2007. Since then,
the Company experienced changes in controlling shareholders and
the management teams twice. The current controlling shareholder,
Everbright International, only gained control of the Company in
December 2014 and the current management team and executive
officers joined the Company following that change. Thus, although
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee served the Board
beyond nine years from the date of their appointment, both the NC
and the Board held the view that they remain independent in both
character and judgement. In addition, Ms. Hao Gang, who was
appointed in March 2018, has no relationship with the Company,
its related corporations, its controlling shareholders or its officers
that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere with
the exercise of her independent business judgement. Therefore,
the NC considered Ms. Hao Gang to be independent. The Board
will undertake more rigorous review annually on the independence
of any Director who has served the Board beyond nine years,
and in doing so, the Board will also take into account the need for
progressive refreshing of the Board. The Board has determined
that it is of an appropriate size to facilitate effective decision
making, and to meet the objective of having a balance of skills and
experiences, taking into account the size and scope of Company’s
operations.

REZRSEBFMLIHESEESRAIRIILE.
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The current Board comprises business leaders, industry experts,
professionals and academia experts, with accounting, financial,
business, management and academic backgrounds. A majority
of the Directors (including a majority of Independent Directors)
have more than eight years’ experience serving as an executive
officer or a director of a company in the environmental protection
industry. This composition and diversity of the Board enables the
Management to benefit from a diverse and objective external
perspective, on issues raised before the Board. The Board reviews
its composition, expertise and experience annually to determine
if the Directors, as a group, provide an appropriate balance and
diversity of skills. Each Director has been appointed based on
the strength of his/her caliber, expertise, experience and his/her
potential contribution to the Group and its businesses. Profiles of
the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 27 of this Annual Report.

The Board is able to exercise objective judgment on corporate
affairs independently from the Management. No individual or group
of individuals is allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
Currently, half of the Board members are Independent Directors.
The Board is thus of the view that there is sufficiently strong
independent element on the Board to enable independent exercise
of objective judgment on corporate affairs of the Group, taking
into account factors such as the size and scope of the affairs and
operations of the Group.

Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) play
an important role in the Board’s decision-making process. They
constructively challenge and assist to develop proposals on
strategy, and review the performance of the Management in
meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance. In particular, the Chairman ensures that each
of the Independent Directors is given sufficient time to express
his/her opinions during the Board meetings. The Independent
Directors meet at least once a year without the presence of the
Management.

Chairman and CEO

The Board recognises the Code’s recommendation that the
Chairman and the CEO should be separate persons to ensure that
there is an appropriate balance of power and authority within the
Company.

The Non-Executive Chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang
Tianyi and the CEO is Mr. An Xuesong. The Chairman bears the
responsibility for the effective conduct of the Board whilst the CEO
bears the executive responsibility for the operations of the Group’s
business. The Chairman and the CEO are not related to each
other.
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The Chairman is responsible for exercising control over the quality
and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management
and the Board and ensuring compliance with the Group’s
guidelines on corporate governance. The Chairman ensures that
Board meetings are held regularly in accordance with the agreed
schedule of meetings and sets the agenda of the Board meetings.

The Chairman also builds constructive relations within the Board
and between the Board and the Management, and facilitates
the effective participation of Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Directors) by promoting a culture of openness and
debate of the Board. The Chairman further ensures effective
communication with shareholders and promotes high standards of
corporate governance.

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group and chairs the Management Committee. The CEO works
with the Board for strategic planning, business development and
charting the growth of the Group.

The Board is of the view that there are sufficient safeguards and
checks to ensure that the process of decision-making by the Board
is independent and based on collective decisions without any
individual exercising any considerable concentration of power or
influence.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee (“AC”), the Remuneration
Committee (“RC”) and the NC are chaired by Independent
Directors, and half of the Board currently consist of Independent
Directors. The AC and the RC both comprise only Independent
Directors and the majority of the NC members are also
Independent Directors. The Company currently has no Lead
Independent Director. Considering the Company’s current
business operations and Board size of eight members with half
being Independent Directors, the Company is of the view that the
appointment of a Lead Independent Director for the year under
review is not necessary. Nevertheless, the Board will annually
examine the need for such appointment.

Board Membership
The NC comprises:
(i) Mr. Zhai Haitao (NC Chairman & Independent Director):

(i) Mr. Wang Tianyi (Non-Executive Director & Chairman of
Board); and

(i)~ Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director).

Majority of the NC, including the NC Chairman are Independent
Directors.
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The key terms of references of the NC are as follows:

(1)  establishing procedures and making recommendations to
the Board on all Board appointments and re-nominations
with regards to each Director’s contribution and
performance, his/her attendance at meetings of the Board
or the Board Committees (where applicable), participation,
candour and any special contributions;

(2)  reviewing and determining annually whether a Director is
independent, bearing in mind the considerations set out in
the Code;

(3)  deciding whether or not each Director is able to and has
adequately carried out his/her duties as a Director of the
Company, taking into consideration the Director’s number
of listed company board representations and other principal
commitments;

(4) developing a process for evaluation of the performance
of the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and the
Directors; and

(5) reviewing training and professional
programmes for the Board.

development

Where a vacancy arises under any circumstances, or where it is
considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a
new Director with particular skills, the NC, in consultation with the
Board, determines the selection criteria and selects candidates
with the appropriate expertise and experience for the position.
Besides the qualification and experience of each candidate, the
NC takes into consideration the candidate’s ability to increase the
effectiveness and the diversity of the Board and to add value to
the Company’s business in line with its strategic objectives. Before
appointment of any new Director, the NC conducts an interview
with the candidate and holds a meeting to discuss the candidacy
(and the independence, where applicable) of the candidate.
If appropriate, the NC makes recommendation to the Board on the
proposed appointment. The Board will then review and discuss
the candidacy of the candidate, and if appropriate, approve the
appointment of the new Director. The Company makes immediate
announcement on any new appointment of Directors on the
SGXNET.

In considering the re-appointment of a Director, the NC evaluates
such Director’s contribution and performance, such as his/her
attendance at meetings of the Board or the Board Committees
(where applicable), participation, candour and any special
contributions. Upon the NC’s recommendation, the Board
will review and approve the re-nomination of a Director for
re-appointment for the shareholders’ approval at annual general
meetings.
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All Directors (including the Chairman of the Board and the CEO)
are subject to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws whereby:

(@) each Director shall retire at least once every three years
and shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Zhai Haitao, Mr.
Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee are subject
to retirement pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 86(1)
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
The NC recommended that all of them be nominated for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM; and

(b)  any Directors appointed by the Board shall retire at the next
AGM of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election.
Ms. Hao Gang is subject to retirement pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-law 85(6) at the forthcoming AGM. The NC
recommended Ms. Hao Gang be nominated for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM.

The NC conducts an annual review of the Directors’
independence. The NC is of the view that Mr. Zhai Haitao, Mr.
Lim Yu Neng Paul, Ms. Cheng Fong Yee and Ms. Hao Gang are
independent and that, no individual or small group of individuals
dominates the Board’s decision-making process.

All Directors are required to declare their board representations.
When a Director has multiple board representations, the NC will
consider whether the Director is able to adequately carry out his/
her duties as a Director of the Company, taking into consideration
the Director’s number of listed company board representations, the
efforts and time required for his/her other board representations
and his/her other principal commitments.

The NC has reviewed and is satisfied that all Directors, who sit
on multiple boards, have been able to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company to adequately discharge
their duties as Directors of the Company, notwithstanding their
multiple board appointments. The NC did not recommend setting
of limit as to the number of listed board representations that every
Director can hold, as the time and efforts required for each board
representation may vary, depending on the type of directorship
(executive or non-executive). The Board will determine the
maximum number of listed company board representations which
any Director may hold as and when required.
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There is no Alternate Director on the Board.

The dates of initial appointment, last re-election/re-appointment

and other directorship of each of the Directors are set out below:

EFESTIRBIRIESR.

BMEESHYIRBE. £

R8s/ R EBELL

FABER A B EERSAIFBINT:

Director Position Date of Initial | Date of Last | Membership Directorship/ Chairmanship
£ nss Appointment Re-Election | of Board both present and those
MIRES(EEER E—RiEE Committee held over the preceding
[=): BESEIIEZERS | three years in other listed
Z2= company
BEIfRI=HBEES/ESK
Hitt EH AT
Mr. Wang Tianyi Non-Executive | 12 Dec 2014 25 Apr 2017 | NC Member Present:
FRVUESE Director and —EUF —E—tF BEERERR China Everbright International
Chairman +—B+—H mBE_+HH Limited (listed on HKSE)
FHTES oiE:
REEK HECAERERAT
(EEBERAT L)
Mr. An Xuesong Executive 12 Dec 2014 25 Apr 2017 | Management None
RENTE Director and —FE —F—tF Committee Tz
CEO +—-B+=H MEZ+HH | Chairman
WITES EERRSTER
FREH
Mr. Cai Shuguang | Executive 23 Feb 2017 25 Apr 2017 | None Present:
2y vived Director 3t —FtF % None
WTES “BZ+=H MA=+HH IE:
7
Over 3 preceding years:
China Everbright International
Limited (listed on HKSE)
BI=FEAFER:
PENAERERAT
(E&BEAT L)
Ms. Xu Nailing Executive 23 Feb 2017 25 Apr 2017 | None None
(FIi=3%n Director 3t —3—tF % 7
PTES “_B~+=H WBE—+HH
Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent 14 Aug 2015 25 Apr 2016 | NC Chairman Present:
sy e Director “E-1F ZZ—"E | AC Member China Everbright International
JR7ER J\B+1H MA—+HH | RC Member Limited (listed on HKSE)
REZERSER IiE:
HIIZERE2ZER HECAERERAT
FHERRER (EBEBELAT L)
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Director Position Date of Initial Date of Last | Membership Directorship/ Chairmanship
- ns2 Appointment Re-Election | of Board both present and those
MIREBEERR E—RiEE Committee held over the preceding
=)t} SESEIIEZERS | three years in other listed
Z= company
BRIfiR = FBEES/ESER
Hitt Eh AR
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Independent 31 July 2007 25Apr 2016 | AC Chairman Present:
Paul Director “FEEF —E—NE NC Member 1. Golden Energy and
N ey EER tB=+—H MME—+%HH | RC Member Resources Limited (listed
I RREER on SGX)
REZREER 2. Nippecraft Limited (listed
FHEREER on SGX)
WE:
1. Golden Energy and
Resources Limited
(TE#3FR L)
2. Nippecraft Limited
(TEf3EFr L)
Over the preceding 3 years:
None
BI=SEAUERR:
%
Ms. Cheng Fong Independent 31 July 2007 25 Apr 2016 | RC Chairman None
Yee Director “EFEEF —EF—RE AC Member ¥
FBRULZZE WTEE tB=+—H MWE—+hH | FMERSERE
B EREER
Ms. Hao Gang Independent 16 March 2018 | N.A. None None
MRzt Director —F)\F NEF 7% 7
BUES =HB+7"H
Board Performance EFERITT

The Board and the NC have adopted a formal process for the
evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, the Board
Committees and the contribution by each individual Director to the
effectiveness of the Board. Following the end of each financial
year, each of the Directors is requested to complete a Board
Evaluation Questionnaire and a Director Self-Appraisal Form.
Each of the NC members is also requested to complete a Board
Committee Appraisal Form. The performance criteria for the Board
as a whole include, amongst others, the Company’s financial
performance for that financial year, an evaluation of the size and
composition of the Board, the Board’s access to information,
accountability, Board procedures and Board performance in
relation to discharging its principal responsibilities in terms of the
financial indicators as set out in the Code. The assessment criteria
for an individual Director include, amongst others, attendance,
adequacy in meeting preparation, generation of constructive
ideas, leadership, keeping abreast of industry developments,
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and contribution in specific areas. The evaluation criteria for
the Board Committees include, amongst others, committee
composition, the contribution in assisting the Board for better
decision-making, sufficiency of expertise of committee members,
chairman’s performance in discharging responsibility, quality of
Board Committee’s communication with the Board. To facilitate
the candour in providing feedback by the Directors in the appraisal
process, all completed appraisal forms are sent to the Company
Secretary directly for summarisation, and then the appraisal
summaries (on a no-name basis) and findings are circulated to
the NC for analysis and discussion during the NC meeting. The
NC will then report its findings and recommendations to the
Board for discussion with a view to enhancing the effectiveness
of the Board. The Board discusses and determines the areas for
improvement and enhancement of the Board’s effectiveness as
well as its implementation.

Following the review, the NC assessed the Board’s performance
as a whole, the Board Committees’ performance and the
contribution by individual Directors in FY2017, and is of the view
that the Board’'s performance as a whole, the Board Committees’
performance and the contribution by individual directors are
satisfactory.

No external facilitator was used in FY2017.

Access to Information

To enable the Board to function effectively and to fulfill its
responsibilities, the Management strives to provide the Board
members with adequate information for Board meetings and
update the Board on an ongoing basis.

The Board is generally furnished with detailed Board papers
(including related materials, background or explanatory information
of each agenda) one week prior to any Board meeting to enable
the Directors to sufficiently prepare for the meetings. The Directors
will also request for additional information or clarification from the
Management, if necessary, before or during the meetings. The
Board is also informed of any significant developments or events
relating to the Company timely. All disclosure documents issued
by the Company (such as announcements, press releases, analyst
briefing presentation slides, reports) are provided to the Board
before or upon such release. Forecasts and internal financial
statements are also provided to the Board and any material
variance between the projections and actual results are disclosed
and explained to the Board.
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The Directors are given separate and independent access to the
Management to address any enquiries and also have separate
and independent access to the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary attends all Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings and ensures that they are conducted in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company and that the applicable rules
and regulations are complied with. The appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary is subject to approval of the Board.
The Company Secretary, under the direction of the Chairman,
ensures good information flows within the Board and the Board
Committees and between the Management and Non-Executive
Directors. The Company Secretary also advises the Board on all
governance matters, facilitates orientation to the new Directors,
arranges for trainings and professional development of Board
members, as required. The current Company Secretary is also the
Group’s Legal Counsel, who is a licensed lawyer and a member of
Chartered Secretaries Institute of Singapore.

When necessary, the Directors can seek independent professional
advice, concerning any aspect of the Group’s operations or
undertakings in order to fulfill their roles and responsibilities as
Directors, at the Company’s expense.

(B) REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
The RC comprises:

(i) Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (RC Chairman & Independent
Director);

(ii) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director); and

(i)~ Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Director).

The key terms of references of the RC are as follows:

(1)  recommending to the Board, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Board, for endorsement, a remuneration
policy framework and guidelines for remuneration of the
Directors and key management personnel of the Group;

(2)  recommending remuneration packages for the Directors and
the key management personnel (including but not limited to,
Directors’ and key management personnel’s fees, salaries,
allowances, bonuses and benefits-in-kind);

(3)  reviewing the obligations of the Group arising in the event of
termination of the service contracts of the Directors and key

management personnel; and

(4)  administering the share incentive plans of the Group, if any.
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The RC is responsible for ensuring that a formal and transparent
procedure is in place for developing an appropriate executive
remuneration policy and a competitive framework for determining
the remuneration packages of Directors and key management
personnel. The RC recommends for the Board’s endorsement, a
framework of remuneration, including but not limited to, Director’s
fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-
kind for each Director and key management personnel. No
Director is involved in any decision-making relating to his/her own
compensation.

The Company engaged Aon Hewitt Singapore Pte Ltd (“Aon
Hewitt”), a third-party remuneration consultant, following the end
of FY2017 to benchmark the remuneration of the Company’s
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the key
management personnel against the industry peers in Singapore
and Hong Kong. There is no relationship between the Company
and Aon Hewitt that will affect the independence and objectivity of
Aon Hewitt. The RC made recommendations on the Company’s
remuneration framework and remuneration packages for Directors
and key management personnel, taking into account Aon Hewitt's
findings.

The RC reviews the Company’s obligations arising in the event
of termination of Executive Directors and key management
personnel’s contracts of services to ensure that such contracts of
service contain fair and reasonable termination clause.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Under the framework developed by the RC, the RC uses the
following factors to determine the Directors’ remuneration:

(1)  qualifications and experience of the Directors required by
the Company;

(2)  for Independent Directors, the general level of fees earned
by each Director in his/her professional capacity or billed by
professionals in their industry;

(3)  time spent in preparing for meetings and actual attendance;

(4) indirect costs and expenses incurred by the Directors;

(5) such remuneration as may be considered fair and
reasonable, having regard to the nature and size of the
business of the Company;

(6) level of remuneration which is directly linked to the extent
of involvement and participation in and contribution to the
business of the Company;

(7)  the level of commitment and the ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to the business of the Company; and

(8) where special circumstances justify, the payment of
additional remuneration.
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Annual reviews are carried out by the RC to ensure that key
management personnel are appropriately rewarded, giving due
regard to the financial health and business needs of the Group
without being excessive and thereby maximise shareholders’
value. The Group’s remuneration framework, remuneration
packages and bonus distribution plans for the Directors and key
management personnel in each year are reviewed and discussed
by the RC, which comprises three Independent Directors, before
submitting to the Board for endorsement.

The Executive Directors have entered into service agreements
with the Company. Their compensation consists of basic salary,
fixed allowance and performance-linked bonus. The bonus of
the Executive Directors and the key management personnel are
dependent on the Group’s performance and such individual's
performance and contribution to the Company in that year. In
particular, the Company sets up a bonus pool and an objective
bonus determination mechanism for the Executive Directors and
the key management personnel at the beginning of each financial
year, which is reviewed and approved by the RC and endorsed
by the Board. To incentise the Executive Directors and the key
management personnel to successfully manage the Company, the
performance-linked bonus makes up a substantial portion of their
total remuneration in a financial year. Amount of the performance-
linked bonus for each Executive Director and key management
personnel is linked to the achievement of certain key financial
indicators of the Company in that financial year and the annual
appraisal result of him/her.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation
packages appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the Directors
and the key executives.

The Independent Directors receive directors’ fees according to
their level of contributions and other factors such as effort and
time spent for serving on the Board and the Board Committees,
as well as the responsibilities and obligations of the Directors. The
Company recognises the need to pay competitive fees to attract,
motivate and retain the Directors without being excessive to the
extent that their independence might be compromised.

Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval by the
shareholders at the AGMs of the Company.
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Disclosure on Remuneration

A breakdown of the remuneration of the Directors and the key
management personnel (who are not Directors) for FY2017 is set

FHENaHE =

ESNXBEEAR CREEES) £E=F—
WA B RIS ENBAARR 0T -

out below:

a) The level and mix of each Director’s remuneration are as  a) EBEEENFEKERESIT:
follows:

Remuneration Band and Directors’ Salary Bonus  Benefits Total

Name of Director Fee% % % in kind % %

IR R BEMR% THE%  ER% TWEN%  Bit%

S$$750,000 to below S$1,000,000

750,0008F114% T 1,000,0005F /I TIA T

Mr. Wang Tianyi FRNEE - 45 54 1 100

S$$500,000 to below S$750,000

500,0008F 138 7TZE 750,000 % TIA T

Mr. An Xuesong TEMTE — 42 53 5 100

S$$250,000 to below S$500,000

250,0008F 3% TTE500,0005T B TIA T

Below S$$250,000

250,00083%7TLL T

Mr. Cai Shuguang il e g _ - - 100 100

Ms. Xu Nailing® (FIbis g - — - 100 100

Mr. Zhai Haitao BEERE 94 — — 6 100

Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul MERES L 88 - - 12 100

Ms. Cheng Fong Yee AR L 85 - - 15 100

Ms. Hao Gang® Pk g — - - - -

(1)

2)

©)

During FY2017, in addition to his executive directorship with the
Company, Mr. Cai Shuguang was also the Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of Everbright International, the Company’s
controlling shareholder. The remuneration of Mr. Cai Shuguang which he
received from Everbright International during FY2017 already reflected
his effort and time spent on the Company’s affairs and his contributions
to the Company. Therefore, during FY2017, Mr. Cai Shuguang only
received allowances from the Company for his aftendance at the Board
meetings, the amount of which was minimum.

During FY2017, in addition to her executive directorship with the
Company, Ms. Xu Nailing was also the Deputy Chief Financial Officer
of Everbright International, the Company’s controlling shareholder. The
remuneration of Ms. Xu Nailing which she received from Everbright
International during FY2017 already reflected her effort and time
spent on the Company’s affairs and her contributions to the Company.
Therefore, during FY2017, Ms. Xu Nailing only received allowances from
the Company for her attendance at the Board meetings, the amount of
which was minimum.

Ms. Hao Gang was appointed as a Director in March 2018, thus did not
receive any remuneration from the Company in FY2017.

(1)

2)

3)

HE_E—CHMHFES, BRTHERLETEER
1TEFLIIS, BB TTLWRERLBIRIERR
FICAEFAIRI TEFFRESEE, FIEESE
EHE_F— I EEM A E 5 RARAITEH
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Blt, E—F—tYHFES, FECEER
MEL BTN T L BRIEFLLUGENL.
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The Board believes that it is not in the best interest of the
Company to fully disclose precise remuneration given the highly
competitive industry conditions for the environmental water
sectors, particularly in China. The disclosure of the Directors’ and
the key management personnel’s remuneration based on the
remuneration bands set out in this report is appropriate.

b) The level and mix of each key management personnel’s

BESEE, £THMRKSITL, TERERE
AEMRKSTURIERIRS IR, ROKERR
AF AR S AN BNRAFE. RIEFRSH
AUFEMEE IR E SRR EEARNFMER
BAteE.

b) HXBEEAR CREEER) A9FHEX

(who is not a Director) remuneration in bands are as FEFHBESUWT:
follows:
Benefits

Remuneration Band and Name of Key Management Salary Bonus in kind Total
Personnel % % % %
FhEMIRE IR EEA RIS I&E% RE% SEYEF% 2it%
S$$500,000
500,0003f 508 TIA T
Mr. Luo Junling BRI E 42 50 8 100
Mr. Yu Yiping £—FhE 51 41 8 100
Mr. Tao Junjie MRS E 49 43 8 100
Mr. Wang Yuexing FE 51 41 8 100
Mr. Wang Guanping FaFRE 45 45 10 100
Mr. Zhang Guofeng sKEISSTE 33 61 6 100
Mr. Sun Linbo FRIRS R 45 50 5 100
Ms. Peng Pei EZikeamn 60 33 7 100

The aggregate amount of the total remuneration paid to the
abovementioned key management personnel is S$1,971,000.

There are no employees of the Group who are immediate
family members of a Director and whose remuneration exceeds
S$50,000 during FY2017.

The China Everbright Water Limited Employee Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders at the
Company’s special general meeting (“SGM”) held on 27 October
2011. The Group has granted options to the Directors and the
key executives under the Scheme on 15 November 2013 and the
options granted have been fully exercised by the employees and
the Directors of the Company.

The Scheme will continue to be in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of adoption till 27 October 2021.

As at 31 December 2017, there was no outstanding share option
granted under the Scheme, which had not been exercised.

XHELEAXRBERARNFHDE N
1,971,000 IN3KTT.

E_T—tFUBREFEARN, F1MFEEFERYER
BEREHR R THAEGET 50,0003 I TTHE
AYIEHZ.

PENAKSERLBRTRRGEIITL ( "H8
Ritkl" ) ERFE_F—F+B-1+tHA
FAREHBIREKRS R, AEBRILT
WE—F—=Ft+—RBthARESNEEEE
AREFTHN, ZFERITHINEHFAE
RILIREEEEI TG,

HIROT RS 4RaR ARy, EA+E, BRI
Rz Hics| " " —F+HA"+tHlE.
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(C) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
value and returns for shareholders. In the discharge of its duties
to shareholders, the Board, when reporting the Group’s financial
performance via SGXNET announcements and the Annual Report,
has a responsibility to present a fair assessment of the Group’s
financial performance, position and prospects. The Management
currently provides the Board with detailed management accounts
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects on a quarterly
basis and/or when requested. Such reports provide key business
indicators and major issues relevant to the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. Directors have access to the Management
at all times.

In line with the Listing Rules of the SGX, the Board provides a
negative assurance statement to the shareholders in its quarterly
financial statements announcements, confirming to the best of its
knowledge that nothing had come to the attention of the Board
which might render the financial statements false or misleading in
any material aspect.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Group’s internal controls and management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance to the
integrity and reliability of the financial information and to safeguard
and maintain the accountability of the assets. While no cost
effective internal control system can provide absolute assurance
against loss or misstatement, the AC, with the participation of
the Board, has reviewed the adequacy of the Group’s internal
controls and systems to ensure that they are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, operational
controls are in place, business risks are suitably managed, proper
accounting records are maintained and the integrity of financial
information used for business and publication is preserved.

The internal auditors conduct annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s key internal controls including financial, operational,
compliance, information technology and sustainability risks
management. The external auditors during the conduct of their
normal audit procedures may also report on matters relating to
internal control. Any material non-compliance and recommendation
for improvements are reported to the AC. The AC also reviews and
continues to monitor the effectiveness of the actions taken by the
Management on the recommendations made by the internal and
external auditors in this respect.

(©) S{EHFEET
HEF
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Based on the work performed by the internal and external
auditors, the AC reviews the findings from the internal and external
auditors on the Group’s internal controls and the Management’s
responses to the auditors’ recommendations for improvement to
the Group’s internal controls and discussions with the auditors
and Management. The Company may, from time to time, appoint
external advisers to facilitate the Company to assess and identify
the key risks and the related key controls established by the
Company. The most recent engagement of such external adviser
was for the financial year ended 31 December 2015, during
which KPMG Services Pte. Ltd. had determined that the Group’s
internal controls were adequate and effective enough in mitigating
key risks of the Group. The AC will review the needs for the
engagement of such external adviser in reviewing the Group’s
internal control system on an annual basis, and if needed, will
make such recommendation to the Board.

In addition, the Company have implemented two major
management systems to address risks in different aspects of
the Company, namely the Risk Management System and the
Environmental, Safety, Health and Social Responsibility (‘“ESHS”)
Management System. The Risk Management System provides
the procedures for risk identification and assessment, risk register
compilation, risk tactics development, risk event management,
risk event reporting, and the review and audit of such system.
The Company updates its risk register on a quarterly basis. Any
material findings on the risk management will be escalated to
the AC and the Board. The ESHS Management System provides
a series of standard operating procedures to address the
environmental, safety, health and social responsibility risks.

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO
that the financial records of the Company have been properly
maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the Company’s operations and finances; and regarding the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The risk management is subject to the AC and no other dedicated
committee at the Board level is set up. Nonetheless, a Risk
Assessment Committee is set up by the Company to assist the
Management Committee in making decisions on new investment
projects. In relation to the investment project which is subject to
the Board’s approval, the Risk Assessment Committee’s findings
and recommendations will also be submitted to the Board for
consideration. More details about the Risk Assessment Committee
are set out in paragraphs below in this Corporate Governance
Report under sub-section “Internal Management”.
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The Company’s Legal and Risk Management Department is
responsible for summarising the risk management results of each
department and regional management centre and assessing the
potential material risks confronting the Group according to the risk
management program of the Group, formulating and implementing
the risk management plan for the next year. The Legal and Risk
Management Department is also responsible for maintaining and
updating the Company’s register of risks.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with the
adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in addressing financial, operational, compliance and
information technology controls and sustainability risks as at
31 December 2017 and that Management has taken efforts to
minimise the risk of recurrence of such lapses.

Audit Committee
The AC comprises:

(i) Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (AC Chairman & Independent
Director);

(ii) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Director); and

(i)  Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Director).

The Board considers Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul, who is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and has extensive and practical financial
management knowledge and experience, is well qualified to chair
the AC.

Majority of the AC have an accounting or finance background.
The members of the AC, collectively, have recent and relevant
accounting or related financial management expertise or
experience to discharge the AC’s responsibilities.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its
terms of reference. It has full access to, and the co-operation
of the Management and full discretion to invite any Director or
any key executive to attend its meetings. The AC has adequate
resources, including access to external auditors, to enable it to
discharge its responsibilities properly.

The AC met four times in FY2017 and relevant Directors and
Management members were invited to attend the meetings.
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The functions of the AC include:

a)

reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and
judgements so as to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any announcements relating to
the Group’s financial performance;

reviewing and reporting to the Board the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls, comprising
financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls, including procedures for entering
into hedging transactions (such review can be carried out
parties);

reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function;

reviewing the scope and results of the external audit, and
the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

making recommendations to the Board on the proposals
to the shareholders on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors;

reviewing any interested person transactions as defined in
the SGX Listing Rules;

reviewing potential conflicts of interest, if any, including
reviewing and considering transactions in which there may
be potential conflicts of interests between the Group and
interested persons and recommending whether those who
are in a position of conflict should abstain from participating
in any discussions or deliberations of the Board or voting
on resolutions of the Board of the Shareholders in relation
to such transactions as well as to ensure that proper
measures to mitigate such conflicts of interest have been
put in place;

reviewing the rectification measures and internal control
measures relating to regulatory issues involving the Group’s
licences, permits or certificates etc;

reviewing the investments in our customers, suppliers and
competitors made by the Directors, controlling shareholders
and their respective associates who are involved in
management of the Group or have shareholding interests
in similar or related business of the Group and making
assessments on whether there are any potential conflicts
of interests and ensuring that proper measures to mitigate
such conflicts of interests have been put in place;

Bt

a)

b)

Q)

d)

e)

f)

9)
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j) reviewing the statements to be included in the annual report
concerning the adequacy of internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems;

k) monitoring the implementation of outstanding internal
control recommendations and/or observations highlighted
by the external auditors in the course of their audit of the
statutory financial statements;

1) reviewing whistle-blowing investigations within the Group
and ensuring appropriate follow-up action, if required;

m) planning and overseeing the implementation of the
measures in respect of the legal representatives of the PRC
subsidiaries;

n) undertaking such other reviews and projects as may be
requested by the Board, and report to the Board its findings
from time to time on matters arising and requiring the
attention of the AC; and

0) generally undertaking such other functions and duties as
may be required by statutes or the SGX Listing Rules, or
by such amendments as may be made thereto from time to
time on a quarterly basis.

The AC meets with the internal auditors and external auditors
separately, at least once a year, without the presence of the
Management to review any matter that might be raised.

The AC and the external auditors have discussed the significant
issues in financial reporting throughout the year at the AC
meetings. As set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
83 to 89, the following significant issues were discussed with the
management and the external auditors and were reviewed by the
AC:

)

k)

0)
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Significant issues

EAEIR

How the issue was addressed by the AC

HitERSEEXER LIBRSGZ

Service concession arrangements
and revenue recognition

ARSI HERMINFA

The key area reviewed by the AC on revenue recognition was the service
concession arrangements of water treatment plants under IFRIC 12. The
AC received confirmation from the Management that consistent accounting
policy was applied throughout the year for recognising revenue under
IFRIC 12. The AC assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the Group’s independent financial model consultant. The AC also
considered the approach, methodology and key assumptions applied to
the financial model for the determination of the fair value of construction
services. The AC is satisfied with the appropriateness of the methodology
applied and the reasonableness of the key assumptions used.

HIFERSREERVSRESERERSIEES 1 2SHRABASZNEETE
7R RIIRSBETEENST . B ERSCIREERWA, HETHAS
IHFEREEMRVSREEFEEZERRIERE 12SHIARARB—HHRTHE
R, FIIRRSUIHETAEEAR VS ERMAINER. EORENME. =it
ERENE R THERERSHAMERBIASIN. TEREERIR. it
EREMATRALEZ G EEERMEHERRRZ GIEERR TS,

Recoverability of trade and other
receivables

IRz ER R E At MW TR TR AT Wz [ 14

The AC and the Board receive regular updates from the Management
on the progress of trade and other receivables collection and repayment
schedule discussions with customers in the year. The AC is satisfied with
the attention and effort taken by the Management on the receivables
collection. Besides taking into account the opinion and findings from
the Management and the external auditors, the AC also considered the
appropriateness of the provision held against the carrying values of trade
and other receivables in relation to the creditworthiness of customers.
The AC is satisfied that no provision for doubtful debts was considered
necessary as at 31 December 2017.

HitERENEES B EEEEIRGE XA SE RN Bt M KGRI E]
ARHEREZ P TIERERER. FiFERASHEEEE KRNI
BIRRERATHIEN. BERTEEERIIMPHEIHMRIENA LIS, &
HERSBIREZ P IEREESRE T MK Bt MUK E BT R
BENAERE, FIIERRSINATAR T _E—tF+-B=+—HZ R
THERS.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

ERE

The AC considered the approach and methodology applied by the
Management on both the assessment for impairment indicators and the
impairment assessment of goodwill. In addition to considering opinion
and findings from the Management and the external auditors, the AC also
reviewed the approach used in the valuation and the reasonableness of
key assumptions used in the cash flows forecast, including future revenue
growth rate, operating margin, terminal growth rate and discount rate
based on their knowledge of the business of the Group and the industry.
B ERSFE T B ETAEEFURAEERENT R BRI EEE,
% R T EEEMIMPRIHPNENMAIN, FtRERIAMRIEENAERRIZ
TNV SR T B THE RN E RS R ETUN FERN EERIR AR
NBKE, ZEMEER, KEPEKERGENSEMHTEHE,

The AC is satisfied with the appropriateness of the methodology applied
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions used.
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Following the review and discussions, the AC recommended to the
Board to approve the full year financial statements for FY2017.

During the financial year under review, the AC has reviewed and
noted that there were no non-audit services provided to the Group
by the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, and thus is satisfied
that the independence and objectivity of the external auditor
will not be prejudiced. The AC is pleased to recommend their
re-appointment.

The fees paid or payable to the external auditor is set out on page
128 of this Annual Report.

The AC is satisfied that the Company has complied with Rules
712, 715 and 716 of the SGX Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of its external auditors for FY2017 and in making the
above-mentioned appointment recommendation.

The Company has put in place a whistle blowing policy (the
“Policy”) to provide an avenue to all Directors and employees to
report any concern or complaint regarding financial reporting and
questionable accounting practices; criminal offences, unlawful and/
or unethical acts, fraud, corruption, bribery and blackmail; failure to
comply with legal or regulatory obligations and concealment of any
of the abovementioned issues.

During the financial year, there was no whistle blowing report
received by the AC regarding the above-mentioned concerns.

An e-mail address and a special telephone number are set up
to allow whistle blowers to contact the AC Chairman directly. All
concerns or irregularities raised will be treated with confidence
and every effort will be made to ensure that confidentiality is
maintained throughout the process.

The AC is guided by the terms of reference which stipulate its
principal functions.

The AC meets regularly with the Management and the external
auditors to review auditing and risk management matters and
discuss accounting implication of any major transactions including
significant financial reporting issues. It also reviews the internal
audit functions to ensure the adequacy and an effective system of
control is maintained in the Group.

On a quarterly basis, the AC also reviews the interested person
transactions and the financial results announcements before their
submission to the Board for approval.

The AC is well informed by the Management and the external
auditors of change to accounting standards, the SGX Listing Rules
and other regulations which could have an impact on the Group’s
business and financial statements.

No former partners or director of the Company’s existing audit firm
is a member of the AC.
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Internal Audit

The objective of the internal audit function is to provide an
independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls and provide reasonable assurance to the AC and the
Management that the Group’s risk management, controls and
governance processes are adequate and effective.

The AC approves the recruitment, removal, evaluation of the
internal auditors.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department (“IA”) to
strengthen the internal audit function and promote sound risk
management, including financial, operational, compliance,
information technology controls, sustainability and good corporate
governance.

The IA reports primarily to the AC Chairman and has full access to
the documents, records, properties and personnel of the Company
and of the Group. The IA reports to the AC on a quarterly basis
regarding the progress and major findings of the internal audit
process. The AC reviews at least annually the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company and
ensures that the Company’s internal audit team is formed by the
sufficient number of personnel with relevant qualifications and
experience.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a
system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s businesses and assets, while the Management is
responsible for establishing and implementing the internal control
procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.

IA's main scope of work covers the review and evaluation
of processes and areas of concerns identified. |IA assists
Management in enhancing existing risk management initiatives
and carry out regular independent monitoring of key controls and
procedures. The findings and recommendations in relation to
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and process
improvements will be presented to the AC and the Management.

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function has adequate
resources to perform its functions effectively.

Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted
during reviews are reported together with recommended corrective
actions to the AC on a regular basis. In particular, the Company
had certain outstanding licenses and/or permits in relation to
its business and operations as at November 2014 (“Licenses
and/ or Permits”) as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
12 November 2014. The IA followed up on the status of such
Licenses and/or Permits and noted that the Company obtained the
following Permit during FY2017:
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Project Company (plant/project)
WE2E (I /LE)

Licenses and/or Permits obtained

BN{SAYVFRIIER/ skttt

Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited (formerly known as Nanjing
Golden Idea Water Development Co., Ltd.)

FHAKSE (AR) BIRAE (BABERSIEKSEEERAT)
(Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project)

(FATEISKALERTIR )

Construction Project Planning Certificate
2R TEMKIFAIE

The results of the internal audit findings are also shared with the
external auditors to assist them in their audit planning and also for
them to perform further checks on the weak areas identified.

(D) INTERNAL MANAGEMENT
The Management Committee comprises:

(i) Mr. An Xuesong (Chairman of the Management Committee
and CEO);

i) Mr. Luo Junling (CFO);

i Mr. Yu Yiping (Vice President);

iv)  Mr. Tao Junjie (Vice President);

v Mr. Wang Yuexing (Vice President);

vi)  Mr. Wang Guanping (Vice President);

Mr. Zhang Guofeng (CEO Assistant);

iii)  Mr. Sun Linbo (CEO Assistant); and

ix)  Mr. Niu Kesheng (General Manager of East Shandong
Regional Management Centre).

The Management Committee is responsible for the management
of daily business operations, formulating and implementing annual
work tasks and medium-term development plans for the Group.
The Management Committee is the decision-making authority for
the day-to-day operations, management and personnel matters.

The Management Committee holds meetings on a regular and
ad hoc basis. The Management Committee holds meetings at
least once a month and it also has a weekly communication
mechanism. The Management Committee reviews and
discusses, the Group’s investment proposals on new projects,
appointment and removal of key management personnel at
headquarter departments, regional management centres and
project companies, performance appraisals, status of financial
budget execution and the major works done and progress of the
headquarter departments and regional management centres, etc.
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To assist the Management Committee in decision making process,
the Company also established a Risk Assessment Committee
(“RAC”) and an Engineering and Technology Committee (“ETC”)
to assess the risks and make recommendations in undertaking
new investment projects and construction works. Any new
investment project, before submitted to the Management
Committee for consideration, will be reviewed by the RAC and
the ETC respectively. The Management Committee will then take
into account the findings and recommendations made by the RAC
and ETC. In relation to investment project with investment amount
exceeding certain threshold, Board’'s approval will be sought
before the definitive agreement is executed.

In relation to each meeting held by the Management Committee,
minutes duly signed by its chairman (being the CEQO) will be
retained by the Company as records.

(E) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholder Rights

To facilitate shareholders’ ownership rights, the Company ensures
that all material information is disclosed on a comprehensive,
accurate and timely basis via SGXNET, especially information
pertaining to the Group’s business development and financial
performance which could have a material impact on the share
price of the Company, so as to enable shareholders to make
informed decisions in respect of their investment in the Company.
To ensure a timely and equal disclosure to all its shareholders,
the Company also uploads all its press releases, analyst briefing
presentations and other disclosure documents which includes
material information on the SGXNET.

The Management supports the Code’s principle to encourage
shareholder participation. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the shareholders’ meetings to ensure a high level of accountability
and to stay informed of the Company’s strategy and goals. Notices
are despatched to shareholders, published in the Business Times
as well as uploaded onto the SGXNET. The Company also
prepares and uploads the Management’s presentation slides to be
used at the general meetings in advance. The Board welcomes
questions from shareholders who have an opportunity to raise
issues either informally or formally before or at the shareholders’
meeting. To facilitate the shareholders’ communication with the
Directors and the Management of the Company, a question and
answer session is held at all the general meetings before voting is
carried out.
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The Company conducts poll voting for all resolutions to be passed
in its general meetings. The rules, including voting procedures,
will be explained by the scrutineers in the forthcoming AGM. If any
shareholder is unable to attend general meetings, the Company’s
Bye-laws allow each shareholder to appoint up to two proxies to
attend and vote at all general meetings on his/her behalf. Meeting
minutes are prepared for all the general meetings (including the
details of the question and answer sessions therein) and are
properly maintained as the Company’s records.

In line with continuous disclosure obligations of the Company, and
pursuant to the SGX Listing Rules and the Bermuda Companies
Act, the Board ensures that shareholders are fully informed of all
major developments that impact the Group on a timely and equally
basis.

Information is disseminated to the shareholders on a timely basis
through:

(i SGXNET announcements;

(ii) press releases;

(i)  results briefing and analyst briefing presentations;

(iv)  Annual Reports; and

(v) Company’s website at www.ebwater.com, at which shareholders
can access information on the Group.

The Company does not practise selective disclosure of material
information. All materials on the quarterly and full year results
briefing for media and analysts are available on the SGXNET and
the Company’s website — www.ebwater.com.

All Directors are encouraged to attend the Company’s general
meetings. In the AGM for FY2016, all Directors (including the
Chairman and the CEO) and the CFO attended the meeting to
answer the questions from the shareholders. At the forthcoming
AGM, all Directors (including the Chairman of the Board, the CEO,
and the chairman of each Board Committee) and the CFO will
also be available to answer questions relating to the Company’s
performance and development as well as work of the Board
Committees. The external auditor and the Legal Counsel and
Company Secretary will also be present to assist the Directors in
addressing any relevant queries from the shareholders.

Our Management acknowledges that effective communication
with investors is of paramount importance to the Group. In order
to reinforce mutual understanding between shareholders and the
Company, we have established and maintained a number of ways
to strengthen our communication with investors.
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Measures that the Company has taken are as follows:

(@) making notifications on SGXNET about the dates on which
the Company’s quarterly and full year financial statements
are released, around two weeks prior to such release;

(b)  organising quarterly analyst briefings to explain our latest
published financial information as well as to provide our
business update when necessary;

(c) attending meetings or telephone conferences requested by
investors, shareholders or analysts on an ongoing basis
throughout the year to assist them in understanding the
latest updates relating to the Company;

(d)  organising road shows for our investors or potential
investors. This may be done solely by ourselves or
coordinated with investment bankers;

(e) organising site visits by investors or potential investors to
our projects; and

(f) ensuring important information of the Group will be
announced in a timely manner without delay.

The Company’s investor relations officer can also be reached via
ir@ebater.com to answer any questions which the investors may
raise relating to the Company’s business.

The Group does not have a policy on payment of dividends at
present. However, the Board has recommended a distribution
of a final dividend for FY2017 of S$0.0049 per share subject to
shareholders’ approval. The shareholders may elect to receive
dividends in the form of scrip in lieu of cash for the final dividend
for FY2017. Details of such dividend payments will be disclosed
via SGXNET when available.

(F) CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS

Shareholders are informed of shareholders’ meetings through
notices contained in annual reports or circulars sent to all
shareholders. These notices are also published in the Business
Times and posted onto the SGXNET. The Company also prepares
and uploads the Management’s presentation slides to be used at
the general meetings in advance.

If shareholders are unable to attend the meetings, the Bye-laws
allow a shareholder of the Company to appoint not more than two
proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

Resolutions at general meetings are on each substantially
separate issue. All the resolutions at the general meetings are
single item resolutions.
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All Directors (including the Chairman, the CEO and the respective
chairman of the Board Committees) are in attendance at the
Company’s AGM to address shareholders’ questions relating to the
Company’s development and the work of the Board Committees.

The Company’s CFO, the external auditors and the Legal Counsel
and Company Secretary are also invited to attend the AGM and
are available to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant
queries by the shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit
and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report.

The Board views the AGMs as the principal forum for dialogue
with shareholders, being an opportunity for shareholders to raise
issues pertaining to the resolutions tabled for approval and/or
ask the Directors or the Management questions regarding the
Company and its operations. Minutes are prepared for all the
general meetings (including the details of the question and answer
sessions therein) and properly maintained as the Company’s
records.

To have greater transparency in the voting process, with effect
from the 2014 AGM, the Company has conducted the voting of
all its resolutions by poll at all its general meetings. The detailed
voting results of each of the resolutions tabled are announced
immediately at the meeting. The total numbers of votes cast for or
against the resolutions are also announced after the meeting via
SGXNET.

(G) DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

In line with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX Listing Rules, the Group
prohibits its Directors and employees from trading in the
Company’s securities on short-term considerations. In addition, the
Group prohibits its Directors and employees from dealing in the
Company’s securities during the periods commencing two weeks
before the announcement of the Group’s first three quarters results
and one month before the announcement of the Group’s full year
results and ending on the date of the announcement of such
results; and when they are in possession of price-sensitive and
confidential information relating to the Group. The Company issues
quarterly reminders to its Directors and employees regarding
their obligations to observe the relevant laws in dealing in the
Company’s securities.

In addition, Directors, employees and connected persons are
expected to observe insider trading laws at all times even when
dealing in securities within the permitted trading period.

(H) MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts of the Group involving the
interests of any Director or controlling shareholder subsisting at
the end of FY2017, or entered into since the end of the previous
financial year.

FENES (BEESEK. RHURZEER
2NER) BBHEFARDNEERFAS, 7
EERFRENBERF AR RREMXEEIER
S TERIIAIRE.

FRENEREUSE. SMNEEETHMLARERRIA
RADWBOMBESNEEREAS, FiHIE
ERZFRFRHIEXHEITHFRE, SRS
IR ERSEFSHEANEE,

BEERNN, FERFASESKRFNENEERE
Fa, BERRRYRAZHENASTURIEH A
/BN AR BDREEEAEFHEEERD
e, FIBRNRFEASIIFAPELE (HH
BEREATHFS)  FHFARLEICRESE
RE.

AERRIFEEIMER, N—F—NFFERE
AEiE, AREFEIRFASHIFTARIIIR
RERREHNRRSN. BRFRRAIFIURIY
RRRERFEIER LIRS, HERY
RS MBS FBIISGXNETA S,

(G) IES%R5

TRIBHAAT EAHIIEE 1207 (19)RAMIE, A%
R IESSHR TRERBAATRIIES. L
s, AERABRIEHESMRATEAEBRR=1
ZENUSRHRINA N E2RERMNAERSF
WERARRRIRN— N BREZFW SRz BIXR
R Z A ATRIES, AHERSHAEREX
NSRS BAIREE R EAMERB A LT
AEsF. AREIBEEREEERRATAEXRT
RBANFPEFHINZETR, a8k
FRBHIBRERE.

s, BF. RIRKEKSRMERERAIIFRS
AYHAIE B R 4R &8 TIESFRIN B R 5 75 ERYE
=

H  EXEHE

E_T—tMBRFEY, FEAFRFEIRIE
HESFHIERRFANENEASE, B LM
FEHIE LSRR ERABRESHAIRIATERRT
i R EREIERIR N GEIIER S,
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

(1 INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all
transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely
manner to the AC and that transactions are conducted on
arm’s length basis and not prejudicial to the interests of the
shareholders. In particular, the Company generally requires
obtaining of at least two other quotations from unrelated
counterparties for similar services or products and will only enter
into transactions with an interested person if the terms are no less
favourable than those offered by the unrelated counterparties. In
relation to an interested person transaction with value in excess of
S$100,000, the entry into such transactions will also be subject to
review and approval by the CFO, the CEO, the Audit Committee or
the Board, depending on the contract value of such transactions.
The AC also reviews the summary of the interested person
transactions on a quarterly basis.

The Company currently does not have a general shareholders’
mandate for recurrent interested person transactions. The
aggregate value of the interested person transactions entered into
during the FY2017 in excess of S$100,000 is set out as follows:

() XREXALRZ

KRABHET RERA LR BRER, HRSXKEX
ATHITHIFE R ZER R LRI R R SFH
RZEXBWREAFRXZ BIRERERFNE.
BAMES, ARTEBEEEREDNBIINFARREM
KBRS B B TR EXAISE = 53R 1E RN TS
£, ARBIXRBKATRMHONBEERFS
FE=LRENFEAR A SSZREALTIHITRR
2. WTFEEBIL100,0005r 10K THIXKEEA L
RHMs, EERSFRZHLEITEENUSE. &
#. HUERSNESSNTEWIME, BIRE
RTZERXZNNME. FHERSBEEEHT
KEEATZZRICRES.

RATBRIFAREEMRRKATZZIIE
IR —RIERN. E—F—tFMRFESE
BtE1d 100,000 ANETTAIRIXA TR ZHIR LT
RAMEI TR

Name of interested person

KEAALRBR

Aggregate value of all interested
person transactions during
the financial year under review
(excluding transactions less
than S$100,000 and transactions
conducted under shareholders’
mandate pursuant to Rule 920) (S$)

EERVBEERAMBXRALIZS
RIS (£F]|MLPF100,0005700
g eEkiRiE LM 5920 R I T AR
HF—REENMRETHRZZERM)

Aggregate value of all interested
person transactions conducted
under shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 (excluding
transactions less than $$100,000
(S$)

1R _E N 559205 I FAR & —#%
THEINFT#ITRIKIRA TR Z R Rt
£8 ((B£%21F100,00057001E 7T
BIERSM)  (FRDOETT)

FEARKBAFREBIRAT

(¥rnngre)

China Everbright International 2,369,352 N.A.
Limited NER
FENKERERAT

China Everbright Bank Company 221,287 N.A.
Limited ER
PENARIRITROBIRAS

Everbright Securities Company 1,021,935 N.A.
Limited &R
FHERIEFRHBIRAT]

Sun Life Everbright Life 173,532 N.A.
Insurance Co., Ltd REA
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EFESFEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—tF A =+—HILRIREFE

We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of
the Company together with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.

BAIIRAARLBRFREARFR, EREET
F—tF+-A=t+—HLEVRFEZZH I
SRR,

In our opinion: FAPAS:
(@) the financial statements set out on pages 90 to 187 are  (a)
drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at
31 December 2017 and the financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
on that date in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards; and

BT EIOREFE 187TRZ WS IRECIRE
EfR SRS ENTFREERAAATR
MAEFARANTHE_F—EF+_8
=+—HZMSKRR, URAEREZZ
HIEFEZWEERN. NRTHEAER
=2; M

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds  (b)
to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they fall due.

TAFPEEZR, HIEEEERERE
ARENGERE DT RIERARS I TRE.

Directors -

The directors in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

FAFBRSEZ BERESNT:
EFXX

REMR
B¢ (F-FT—TtF-_R-+=A%EE)
®R (F-F—TtFE-R-t=RA%EE)

Wang Tianyi

An Xuesong

Cai Shuguang (appointed on 23 February 2017)
Xu Nailing (appointed on 23 February 2017)

Zhai Haitao Bigk
Lim Yu Neng Paul FfEIRE
Cheng Fong Yee FBRUK

Hao Gang (appointed on 16 March 2018) R (F2F—/\FE=B1+/BREEE)

EFEN

RIEESRNEICH, TAVKEESRE, §
FHIRBETANAHERKL TRV RS
PR AN, HEATERN:

Directors’ interests

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the
directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any
interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related
corporations, except as follows:

Holdings in which
directors are deemed
to have an interest

Holdings registered
in the name of directors

PAEERBXEITZIR EERMRENREZ RN

As at As at

As at 31/12/2017 As at 31/12/2017

Name of director and 11/2017 #EHETS—+t 11/2017 #EHETS—t

corporation in which BENSTEENE g#E"%T—+t HFt+-B=t+ #E"T+t SFt+TA=t

interests are held RASEH F£—B—H —B #£—B—H —AH
The Company b /NG|
Ordinary shares TEAR

Lim Yu Neng Paul FRAEBE - - 1,608,909 1,608,909

Cheng Fong Yee FBRUK 622,266 622,266 - -
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

Directors’ interests (cont’d)

None of the directors who held office at the end of the financial
year had interests in share options, warrants or debentures of the
Company or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at
the end of the financial year.

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests
in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21
January 2018.

Share options
Employee share option scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company established an employee
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) that entitles key
management personnel and controlling shareholders to purchase
shares in the Company at an exercise price determined by the
committee established to administer this share option programme
(“ESOS Committee”), comprising of independent directors and
two other directors (may be nominated by the Board) of the
Company.

Other information regarding the Scheme is as follows:

Options granted on 15 November 2013

° The exercise price of each option after shares consolidation
is fixed at S$0.64.

° The share option shall be exercised, in whole or in part,
from 16 November 2014 to 15 November 2023.

° All options are settled by physical delivery of shares.
° The options expire after 10 years.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of
the options, by virtue of such holding, to any rights to participate in
any share issue of any other company.

At the end of the financial year, details of the options granted
under the Scheme on unissued ordinary shares of the Company
are as follows:

EENE (8)

FYUBFEFHARER, EREFHLTEA
BIERREXATIZHN, IRV AN

=<
.

FUBEFEEERZAE—_F—tF—B—+—H
:3]12) PO b S 7 YN TP o B S 2 B

HAtY
RTHIRITRI

F-F—F+B=+tH, FLaTHERTH
itk (R ) WRFRREEARRER
RERIF], R EEPRNIT ARSI ZERS
( "RIBRHRIRRSE" ) FEEZTRUNE
WIAATRD, RTERGTIEZERSBEFA
BBV EERBIRBES (THEERIE
7).

T ASTHIBXRZ Bt

J TROGHBEEMNENZTRNEER
0.64FT KT,

J ME—F-NFt+—At+ BRE"F_
=F+—B+hRI4EERD TR,

J PRI LASER RS R BT E H.

J HIN T+ IREIE.

AAFREZHNARR T RSB AT GRS
BNMAENRSSHIRMARZHIRD KT,

TAVEFRLERE, BXRETIMALTR
RITEBEIRATR I BT
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EE )

Options Options
outstanding outstanding
Exercise at 1/1/2017 at 31/12/2017
Date of grant price per F-E—tF Options Options F-B—HF
of options share —BA—HBE%T granted exercised +=B=+—8
SR B BERITHUNMS fEZHBI CIFHEIN E1T{ERIR FERITEEZHR
15/11/2013 S$0.64 - - - -
—F=F 0.643 KT
+—B+HxH

There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries
under options granted by the Company or its subsidiaries as at the
end of the financial year.

Warrants

As at the end of the financial year, there were no warrants issued
by the Company to take up any unissued shares of the Company.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this statement
are as follows:

Lim Yu Neng Paul  (Chairman)
Zhai Haitao (Member)
Cheng Fong Yee (Member)

All members of the Audit Committee are independent and non—
executive directors. The Audit Committee carried out its functions
as required by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX”) Listing Manual and the Code of Corporate Governance.

Based on the internal control established and maintained by the
Group, the work performed by the internal and external auditors
(to the extent as required by them to form an opinion on the
financial statements), and the reviews conducted by management,
the Board, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee, is of the
opinion that the Group’s internal controls addressing financial,
operational and compliance risks were adequate as at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.

The Audit Committee held four meetings since the last directors’
statement. In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met
with the Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the
scope of their work, the results of their examination and evaluation
of the Company’s internal accounting control system.

TAVEFRLERE, AATSENBEATHRE
RIECRH IR R TRIRG.

IABRAUIE

BEAMBFELERE, SREHRKTEAA
EMR AT ZRRATRIGAPARBIL.

HitERS

TAFREEZH, FHERSRZERUT:

MERE  (ERE)
B85 (ER)
MBRK  (FER)

HItERSERERYARIRIFRITES.
HITERFEBITHINRKIESZZERAE
( "EN3ZPR" ) EHFEMRATRESTNAE
ZERRE.

RIEASERRMRSI N P 2 EBiEHl. PR Ih
BEHEIHPRITZTIE (EENMSREARERL
FTERAGEER) |, REBEHITZHEE, TH
RBAZBEFNFERERS ( "FERFEX
2" ) Lk, %52 (5HEHERRSEL—) A
7, FEBCHMEWS. EEREGHNRIZL
Bz BB,

BE—WEFSFPEZEALLE, FIHERS
BHAMRSN. HMETHREMS, FifERs

SRREZHNRAREITIISE, IFieET
1EeE. FEERMNAATARSIHERRS
TS,
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Audit Committee (cont’d)
The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

° assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the
internal and external auditors;

° quarterly financial information and annual financial
statements of the Group and the Company prior to their
submission to the directors of the Company for adoption;
and

° interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of
the SGX Listing Manual).

The Audit Committee has full access to management and is
given the resources required for it to discharge its functions.
It has full authority and the discretion to invite any director or
executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee also
recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews
the level of audit and non—audit fees.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor and has recommended to
the Board of Directors that the auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, be
nominated for re-appointment as auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Auditor

The auditor, Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness
to accept re—appointment as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Wang Tianyi
Non—Executive Director and Chairman

An Xuesong
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

22 March 2018

HItRRS (8)
HIIERSIFEHRA TSI

ARENTHARRREBRIMBERTHMR A
ZihEn;

] RIBEANTEEREI, FRFEFRK
RNEZFEMEFEHRFEMSRE, &

J KEEALRS (EXNFAT LHFME
nE) .

B ZRSULURSITHEEEN, FIAEETR
BEFTBMEIR. FiIFRRESBNEBERSTAE
ENEREBEARBEESN. FIHERASTNE
FEEHNEEERIHS, HEEHEITRIEFITRSZ
ERIKE,

BT Z RSN IR DRI A I RE
we, FIFERSCAESESEFRESREMst &
Young LLPERATRMSEFRIFEREFAS L
WEHIBENT AT,

Hitm

BiH@Ernst & Young LLPERREEZESHIRE
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M HEHIRE

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
HPEDEAKSBIRLEIRER

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China Everbright
Water Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) so as to
present fairly, in all material respects the consolidated financial
position of the Group and the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2017 and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
(ACRA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

W7 EHIHTRS
B2

HANSHUPENVEAKSHIRAT ( "|27" )
REMBAT (4R "R&EEl" ) NEEMSEK
x, MUSRREET -_E—tF+-A=1—
AREFNGEVZFINRR R R AT SRR
REEEZA ILFERERANGENGEENR,
SERERMGEIEnER, URGEMSER
FIHE, BEETESUERME.

BAVAA, ZFREAZGEMSRERRLT
SRR EAT HIERERM SRS
EVRIRERS, ARRRT T -F—tF+=
B=t+—BR&EHANGEUFSIKER R AT
SRREBEZBILFEREANGEMEE

0. sENaZIRGENERE.

EORIER

BAIERBEREREIHENNRERT T HITT
B, BHIHRER "HiHXMESRERITAISR
" BBoH—TER T RMNEXLEN TSR
£. RIEFINRESITTSEVEERRMA (it
R HSRSAEREETI) (T ) |
ERFAIFH IR S REEREREK,
BAVRII T REH, FET TRERSENE
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We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
HPEHEAKS BIRLEIRER

BNELEITTARS "EMTHmNMSRE
HITHISRE" MBOMIRRIERE, BIESXEXE
I EIEXRARE. By, FINFETITE
BIEFT ARSI AR S IREREAERXLT
RITHIERIHER. HRITHRITEFRER, 8
BN AR BATHTRIER, A
RRBINRREITRRA T E,

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial

statements.

The key audit matter
KHITEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRAIRYEE I NI ERIZ SRR

IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements
(“IFRIC 12”) and Revenue Recognition
EfFfUSHREMSIERZRRIRESE12S - BSIHFRE
HERRUINGRIA

The Group enters into service concession
arrangements with municipals in the People’s
Republic of China to build and/or operate water/waste
water treatment plants. The Group recognises the
consideration for the construction services as financial
assets and/or intangible assets for service concession
arrangements within the scope of IFRIC 12. As the
related amounts are material and the application
requires significant management judgement, we
identified this as a key audit matter.

RER ST BATER RS/ R NEIER/HIEEIT
RESFITFIN R, REANEERUSREEEZRRIERE
FT S ERENNRSFATEETHPIIRIERSIHNHIA
NEMER/BTHET. BTFSERUSREEEER
SERET _SHAXNKRAIZ NEMEAETEEER
EHEAHINT, FIMSZFETUATEIKEH TSI,

The Group applies IFRIC 12 in its recognition of
revenue from service concession arrangements, which
includes revenue relating to construction services,
operation income and finance income. Disclosure of
the revenue is included in notes 3.12, 4 and 5 to the
financial statements.
REAXAEMUSRGERERSEEE T ZSHIASR
FHRATINTHFE XA, BIEEERSIN. EEWAT
BB, WNBIHREESIRAEMSRRMNES. 12, FHiE450
BES.,

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition policies, evaluated the Group’s
process in assessing the applicability of IFRIC 12 and
also reviewed the associated agreements to assess
whether these agreements are appropriately identified
as service concession arrangements within the scope
of IFRIC 12.

BANHEREFARMINFABCRAGE S, AR
ERUSREIERERRIEES T _SERMRER, HE
BRI, LUHEIZF MU ESHE S A N B TERR
WHEREEBRZERRIERFE T -_STEENRSFITNE
HE.

We reviewed the progress report for projects under
construction and the reasonableness of the revenue
recognised using the percentage of completion
method. In addition, we considered the competence,
capability and objectivity of the independent consultant
and surveyors engaged by management.
BNExTERIEN THER SRR TSt AE
FIARGRIEWNRISIEM, o, FRAIEERTIHIE=T
TG R A TR, MHERE ORI M.

We reviewed management computation of amortised
cost of financial receivables and intangible assets
and allocation of consideration between financial
receivables and intangible assets and the related
revenue recognition and tested key management
estimates including discount rates used by comparing
to the relevant market interest rates to identify any
inappropriate estimates.

BS% T EEEN SR N KGRI & A9 RA T
8. SRMWERIS RS AN 2 B LARAERAMINGE
A WHEEREFHNEEGTT, SEEEEEERTI
KEHIFFIERHTIE, MASEEMGTESELSHE.
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HPEDEAKSBIRLEIRER

The key audit matter (cont’d)
KRS (48)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (cont’d)

AR IH IR RIZ RN (4E)

IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements
(“IFRIC 12”) and Revenue Recognition (cont’d)
EffYSREMSIBEERSIEE12S - RSIHFNE
HERUINGRIA (8E)

Construction service revenue is measured based on
the Group’s estimation of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction completed
during the year. Significant judgement is required in
determining the fair value of the construction services
and involves estimation of the total construction costs
and the margin for each contract. The Group engaged
an independent financial modeling consultant to assist
in the estimation of the fair value of the construction
services. The percentage of construction completed
during the year is estimated based on the survey of
work performed by independent surveyors with relevant
qualifications and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of construction
completed.

EEMNRITETRERERGTHRRERSHI R AMNER
FRFTITENESIHTE. BERERSOQSMNERT
EEBRFHERAN, SEHMYEIERENSEIERDH
Fid, SREFERMERVSEREH R ETHRIERS A
e, TiExIAas ERKIEEBRXERM TN
B RENFRHEIRS R, MBI REIEEER
gl

Recoverability of trade and other receivables

BIHS TR B EL R I T U [ 1

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
trade and other receivables amounting to
HK$805,859,000. As the recoverability assessment
of these receivables requires the Group to exercise
judgement after taking into consideration latest
developments arising from ongoing negotiations
with the customers, we identified this as a key audit
matter. Disclosures of the trade and other receivables
are included in notes 3.3, 4 and 17 to the financial
statements.

#E_T—CtFT_RA=1—H =EFNEEINEN
KGRI TR 8076 805,859,0005T, I FRIUGERIRAT L
EEMHME R EEERRIE S B P RFIR ST E
T, HIEZBTUAE IR EEITEI. MR Bt
KRR XM RS GG M S IRARMNGES.3, MHEARHM
17,

We engaged our internal specialists to review the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness of
certain key assumptions such as the margin used
and the industry comparable companies in the
determination of the fair value of the construction
services in the financial model.

A BB T X NERE S XMHET S ZRIE S M AR BRI
FARIR (ANERAIREHFHLEIEIRSS A s ERT AT
WAREEAT]) HEEIBHTER.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
related to service concession arrangements in the
financial statements.

BN T REFAEV S IRERD SRS HHERE
RUIES MRS M.

We requested direct confirmations and considered
receipts subsequent to the year end.

FAEUE 7 NGRS LA N A AT RIE A, FRE T
HAEREIFREIEDL.

We reviewed the ageing analysis of the debtors
and reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables to assess
the adequacy of the Group’s allowance against trade
and other receivables.

HA XS MTER TR LA N WA DT TE %, FHE%Z
T EEREX MW WEMERIE, LABRERERTHE T
RHAIARIAE.
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The key audit matter (cont’d)
KEHITTFIR (88)

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
HPEHEAKS BIRLEIRER

How the matter was addressed in our audit (cont’d)

FeAiIRYEEIH RIS RIZ SRR (48)

Recoverability of trade and other receivables (cont’d)

BIYHEER R EL RIS B £ 80 (£E)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

P ERUE

As at 31 December 2017, the goodwill carried
in the Group’s financial statements amounted to
HK$1,259,922,000. IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
requires goodwill to be tested annually for impairment
or more frequently when there is an indication that
the cash—generating unit (“CGU”) may be impaired.
This assessment requires the exercise of significant
judgement about the future market conditions, including
future cash flows to be generated from the continuing
use of the water/waste water treatment plants over
the service concession period. The determination
of the recoverable amount, requires judgement in
both identification and valuation of the relevant CGU,
we identified this as a key audit matter. The Group
allocates the goodwill to a group of CGUs, the water
environment management segment, for the purpose of
impairment testing.The impairment assessment was
determined using a value—in—use model based on the
discounted cash flows projections. Assumptions such
as estimated key financial data, the growth rate and
discount rate used to determine the discounted cash
flows required significant judgements by the Group.
Disclosures of goodwill are included in notes 3.5, 3.9, 4
and 12 to the financial statements.

BHE_T—CtF+_A=1—H =EFAMSBIREMEEHE
EFIAEM1,259,922,0007T, "EFSIHENE36S - B
FRE" BEXRUBESFHITRENL, HETRKBNE
FrHEsT ( "MEFFHERT ) TREHINRER N ERE
BHTRMEIR., AURERARE IR EHEAFINT,
BEERSIITEINIS/KR FF= R ERE. &
WERIEMNEE BMERNMESATFMERLERSIZERS
&) FENREFHBTARBIRMAEELAMT, BA)5Z
%ﬁﬂxiE?J?E&Eﬁﬁ%lﬁo RERETESRERST M

- KINGEERESEE, HTRENL. BENT5ER
l«/l?}"rf)uﬂ,@u.bibgﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁm@ﬁﬂ@%o HETE
REFMEEARIZ, WMTHAIKESEIE, BREMGIR
RE, HFEEREAMFHEXFINT. HERKEIIREYS
WRMHES.S, MEE3.9, HMEEARMET2,

We discussed with management about the status
of significant overdue individual debtors’ balances,
reviewed the settlement history and considered the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures regarding the
estimation involved in determining the provision for
doubtful debts.

S58EEH Ekﬁﬁﬂﬁ%)\%%‘ﬁ'rﬁ}ﬂﬂﬁm’e, EHE
RSEERIER, FEIRG T SRR S T ELARIR
KRR RS

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s
determination of the CGU.

BAIHE T REFAEEI S HRTES S,

We assessed the discount rate used by assessing
the cost of capital of the Company and comparable
organizations in the industry, and where relevant,
using our internal valuation specialists to independently
develop expectations for the discount rate, and
comparing the independent expectations to those used
by management.

HA G 7 =RERA NI L AT SE A AL SRR
EFRRMEEIR, FHZKREMYEE R TIR
HABHER S SRR R TR,

We reviewed the cash flow forecasts used, by
comparing them to recent performance and trend
analysis. We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the financial statements on
the impairment assessment, specifically on the key
assumptions that have the most significant effect on
the determination of the recoverable amount of the
goodwill.

BIETREANEERIMNEE, S&7 FrERrOTTum
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To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
HPEDEAKSBIRLEIRER

Other matter

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by another firm of Chartered Public
Accountants other than Ernst & Young LLP who expressed an
unqualified opinion on the statements on 24 March 2017.

Other information

The other information consists of the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Management is responsible for other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and
fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

° Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
HPEHEAKS BIRLEIRER
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Alvin Phua Chun Yen.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
22 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S GEEEINER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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Note 2017 2016
BiiE —T—t5F “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTIT
Revenue A 5 3,591,633 2,494,037
Cost of sales HERAR (2,361,046)  (1,588,385)
Gross profit EF 1,230,587 905,652
Other income =il PN 6 129,809 127,666
Administrative and other 1TBUR HAfh
operating expenses ZE#A (287,021) (298,250)
Finance income TASSWIN 7 12,463 7,631
Finance costs W55%R A 7 (241,391) (205,223)
Share of profit of an associate FrSEXE N EEF) 158 -
Profit before tax FREEIET 8 844,605 537,476
Income tax expense Fr{Sfi < 9 (263,812) (164,861)
Profit for the year FEERA 580,793 372,615
Other comprehensive income Hfth2milss
ltem that may be reclassified HiGnaeEH D
to profit or loss EiRmamE
Foreign currency translation HNTIREERN
differences 587,891 (598,600)
Total comprehensive income A FEL@RE
for the year 28 1,168,684 (225,985)
Profit for the year attributable to: FEFEERMGERT:
Shareholders of the Company AAERER 513,356 349,343
Non—controlling interests =2 e 67,437 23,272
580,793 372,615
Total comprehensive income for AEFEMNS
the year attributable to: 2EREEE:
Shareholders of the Company ¥ /N1 85N 1,070,925 (228,390)
Non—controlling interests JEI=pRIN R 97,759 2,405
1,168,684 (225,985)
Earnings per share SRR
Basic earnings per share (HK$) SREARF (Bm) 25 0.196 0.134
Diluted earnings per share (HK$) BREERT (Bm) 25 0.196 0.134

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
E_E—tF+_A=+—H

MBIRRE

Group Company
FEHR b, /N
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
BitiE —s—t% —EREF —s—tF ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BhHFx BT BhTT BTt
Non—current assets IEREhEr=
Property, plant and b, TER
equipment ’E 10 152,038 147,971 26 31
Intangible assets ToRE&ET= 11 1,489,718 1,259,449 - -
Goodwill BE 12 1,259,922 1,185,478 - -
Interests in subsidiaries  MBAENE 13 — - 11,700,251 9,190,573
Interest in an associate B AEING 14 1,445 1,327 = -
Other receivables Bt i K FR I 17 10,515 9,863 = -
Service concession SiRB4FE
financial receivables ENEXAY
SN I ERIT 15 10,313,724 8,179,732 - —
13,227,362 10,783,820 11,700,277 9,190,604
Current assets mEEEF~
Inventories =R 16 14,342 14,323 - —
Trade and other RIBIER R
receivables =0V EIND 17 805,859 588,739 1,834,010 2,096,933
Service concession 5RBERFE
financial receivables ENEXRSE
VT EIND 15 1,200,539 791,609 = -
Fixed deposit with =1PBULERE
maturity period HAIFK
over three months 18 83,125 — - -
Cash and cash MENMEE
equivalents il 19 2,716,692 1,902,741 27,783 30,716
4,820,557 3,297,412 1,861,793 2,127,649
Total assets Jok T 18,047,919 14,081,232 13,562,070 11,318,253

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
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R E

Group Company
¥ 35| P /NG|
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
BiiE —F—tF FE —E—tF —FREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT EhFr BhFIT
Current liabilities mahfafR
Borrowings R 20 1,903,722 1,521,407 1,356,402 756,892
Trade and other IVARLLEHYNE=
payables BRI T FRIT 21 1,553,565 937,238 155,531 20,655
Current tax liabilities BRERFR I AR 49,951 13,102 = -
3,507,238 2,471,747 1,511,933 777,547
Net current assets HRENErE 1,313,319 825,665 349,860 1,350,102
Non—current liabilities  JEif&ahfafE
Borrowings e 20 4,728,030 3,366,091 2,077,690 1,203,692
Deferred tax liabilities BBIERIN A R 22 1,270,846 1,051,692 - -
5,998,876 4,417,783 2,077,690 1,203,692
Total liabilities Bk 9,506,114 6,889,530 3,589,623 1,981,239
Net assets b 8,541,805 7,191,702 9,972,447 9,337,014
Equity attributable to ~ FATFRRHRR
shareholders of the (13T
Company
Share capital 55N 23 2,625,642 2,609,908 2,625,642 2,609,908
Reserves g 24 5,231,541 4,188,279 7,346,805 6,727,106
7,857,183 6,798,187 9,972,447 9,337,014
Non—controlling E|SElitv
interests 684,622 393,515 - —
Total equity 285 8,541,805 7,191,702 9,972,447 9,337,014
Total equity and N AR
liabilities 5k 18,047,919 14,081,232 13,562,070 11,318,253

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

RN E L B AN L, F N KIS =

‘SjusLue)e)s [eroueul 8y jo ped [edbsjul ue wioy sejou Aiojeueidxe pue sejoljod Bupunoosoe Buifuedwoooe oy

(891) - (891) - - - - - (891) - EHLWOR  sosuadxs anssi aleys
058°L¥ - 0S8°'Ly - - - - - 911'92 veL'Gl swisyos
YLy puapIAIp duds e o)
eV By 2Ry Juensind saleys Jo anss|
slapjoyaleys
[EpIE 0} suonnqL)sip
ERYEFRES pue Ag suonnqujuo9
£jinba ul
Apoaap pasiubooal
(YN h X -£5EH) ‘siapjoyaleys
LRI e Y}IM suoljoesuel]
¥89'89L°L  6G.°L6 G6'0L0°L 9S€'€lS - - - 695266 - - 32 Jeak ay} oy swoou
DNETE LY aAIsuayaidwod [ejoy
168°28G  2Te'0€ 696°266 - - - - 695°/66 - - S80UBJaYIP UONB|SUR))
MEEA =R 1IN Kousuno ubisio4
awooul
DXETNE aAIsuayaidwod Jayio
€6.'085  LE¥'/9 9Ge'elg  9geels - - - - - - VEEHY leak ay) Joj J01d
fiiye Jeak ayj Joj sawodul
DNETE LY aAIsuayasdwod [ejo)
20L'16L°L GlG'e6E  18L'86L'9 €¥8'¥¥L'T (181°2) z0e'62e’L  Ge9'ssl  (029'6L8)  00€'0¥Z'L 806'609'C H—E— L10¢
HY3—&°L Asenuep | 1y

Uty uddig  ufdign ufdign Lfdign Uddign L4dign U4dign U3dg ULdig:

000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$MH 000.$MH  000.$MH 000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$¥H  000.$MH
ReE  REEsEHE BE HERY SHHE SHUSEVE IHZF SHEHAG URGE 4] [3E-8 4
Ayinba s)salajul |ejol sBuluiea  soAlasal EYNELTT] aAlasal EYNELTT] wniwaid  |epdes dnoig

lejol  Buijjosuod pauielay  J9Yl0 snidins  fiojnje}g uonejsues;  aleys aleys

-UoN panquuo) Aauawuna
ubialo4
FRGHEY S

Kuedwoq ayj jo siapjoyaleys o} a|qeInqLRy

A
A\

gy | 93

—

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

. FENEENER

+—H LA FE

A=

e

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

BE—

RN E L B AN L, F N KIS =

‘SjusLue)e)s [eroueul 8y jo ped [edbsjul ue wioy sejou Aiojeueidxe pue sejoljod Bupunoosoe Buifuedwoooe oy

GO8'LYS'S TZ9'¥89  €81°2G8°, vev'6ssT (181°7) zoe'eze’t  66L'00z (15022 8%2'992°L ¢v9'629'C BH—=H"+
&L
- - - (vor'sy) - - 791Gy - - -
BYUTZETH
6LY18L  8¥e'e6l  (626°LL)  (LL9'eS) - - - - 8¥6'GZ veL'Sl i:paqe 173
RLHEZHES
(os¥'12)  (0st'Lz) - - - - - - - -
B2

HEZ—LFE
86Lvic  86L'ViT - - - - - - - -

PEHEEE
B
BN —2NED

(119'es) - (19'es)  (119'¢q)

L10C

laquiaoa(q 1§ WV
SAI9SaI

Aio)njeys o} Jajsuel]
siapjoyaieys

UM suofjoesuel; [e}ol

Jap|oyaieys
Buijjosuoo-uou e 0}

paJeoap SpuspiAlq
siapjoyaleys
Buijjosu0o-uou wouy

suoinquuod [eyden
paJejosp

PUSPIAIP 910¢ leuld

Udigt Uty Ufdg  Lfdign  Updyg  Ufdy  Lddg Ljdgt Uy UFdig:
000$¥H  000.$¥H 000.$¥H  000.$MH 000.$¥H  000$¥H  000.$¥H  000.$¥H  000.$MH  000.$MH

Rew  RodEHE HE HERY BHNE BWSEVE SHIF BHEY uRdgE 0 wH

Anba  sysaiayul lejoL sBujulea saAlesal  9AISSAI EYNELST anJesal  wnwaid  [eydeo
lejol  Buijjosuod pauielay  Jayio snidins  Aiojnje}yg uonejsues;  aleys aleys
-UoN panquuo) Rauawuno
ubialo4
LR ERA

Kuedwoq ayj jo siapjoyaleys o} a|qeInqLRy

A
A\

[3E-8 4
dnoig

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

94 | CaveiksmEin



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FE@ENER

+—H LA FE

_A.

HE—F—LFT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

RN E L B AN L, F N KIS =

‘SjusLue)e)s [eroueul 8y jo ped [edbsjul ue wioy sejou Aiojeueidxe pue sejoljod Bupunoosoe Buifuedwoooe oy

(bog'zs) - (boe'zs)  (vog'ze) - - - - - - SN paJejoap
FE—&£TIED puspIAIp GL0¢ [euld
Lev'oy - LTy'ov - - - - - 062°0¢ LLL'0) swieyos
YL puapiAip duos e 0}
eV By 2Ry Juensind saleys Jo anss|
slapjoyaleys
SR 0} suonnquysip
BT pue Ag suonnqujuo9
£jinba ul
Apoaap pasiubooal
(YtENh X -£5EH) ‘siapjoyaleys
LRI e Y}IM suoljoesuel)
(s86'sze)  sov'zc  (06e'8ze)  eve'eve - - - (eeL'LL8) - - B Jeak ayj Joj awoou
DNETE LY aAIsuayaidwod [ejoy
(009'868) (298'02)  (€€2'2/8) - - - - (ee2'228) - - S9oUBJAYIP LONE|SUE)
MEEA =R 1IN Kousuno ubisio4
awooul
BHETHE aAIsuayaidwod Jayio
Gl9'zLe  zli'ee eve'ere  eve'ere - - - - - - IV E By leak ay) Joj J01d
fiiye Jeak ayj 1oj sawodul
DINETE LY aAIsuayasdwod [ejo)
020'/62',L 1.0'9€C  €v6'090°L <2cl'zes’t (181°2) 80s'eve’L  Lie'lel  (288°1) 050012k 710'809°C H—H— 910¢
BT Asenuep | 1y

Utdig:  ufdign Ly ufdign Lfdign Uddign L4dign U4digt U3y U4dig:

000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$MH 000.$MH  000.$MH 000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$¥H  000.$MH
BiE  RBafEEE B HERY SHNE SHUSEVE ISHIFE SHBHANG URgGE 4] [3E-8 4
Ayinba s)salajul |ejol sBuluiea  saAlasal EYNELTY] EINEI:T] EYNELTT] wniwaid  |epdes dnoig

lejol  Bujjjosuod pauielay  13y)0 snidins  fiojnje)yg uonejsues;  aleys aleys

-UoN panquiuo) Aauauna
ubialo4
FREHEY Y

A

Kuedwog ayj jo siapjoyaleys o} a|qeInqLRy

\

gy | 95

—

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

. FENEENER

+—H LA FE

A=

e

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

BE—

RN E L B AN L, F N KIS =

‘SjusLue)e)s [eroueul 8y jo ped [edbsjul ue wioy sejou Aiojeueidxe pue sejoljod Bupunoosoe Buifuedwoooe oy

20161 GLG'e6E  /8L'86L'9 e¥8'tyLZ (1817 zog'ezz’L  Ge9'eslt  (0z9'628)  00£‘0¥C'L  806°609°C H—=H"+

&L
- - - (gLe've) - - 8LE'vE - - -

BUITT Y
199'0ZL  €£0'6sL  (99g've)  (vog'ze) - (90z'v1) - - 06Z'0¢ 768°L BN

LLHEIZEES
(oss'vL)  (osg'vL) - - - - - - - -

SRR

SHEZ—LRZE
€8G'69L  €8G'69L - - - - - - - -

e rptib e
(6sv'ze) - (68t'ce) - - (90z'v1) - - - (€82'8) A EEES]

910¢

19quie0sQ LE
oAI9Sal

Aio)njeys o} Jajsuel]
siapjoyaJeys

YUM suojfjoesuel; [e}o]

Japjoyaieys
Buljjosuoo—uou

e 0} pled spuspiAlg
slapjoyaleys
Buijjosu0o-uou wouy

suoinquuod [eyden

»oeg—Anq aleys

Uiy Uty Ufdg  Ljaig Uy Updy  Lddg Lfagt Uy Ufdig:
000$¥H  000.$¥H 000.$¥H  000.$MH 000.$¥H  000.$¥H  000.$¥H  000.$MH  000.$MH  000.$MH

Ry ROdEHE O HE HERY SHNE BWSEVE SHIF SN URagE 0 @

Aunba  sjsaiayul lejol sBujuiea saAI9sal  9AJISAI EYNELST anlesal  wnwaid  [eydeo
lejol  Buijjosuod pauielsy  19y)0 snidins  Aiojnje}g uonejsues;  aleys aleys
-UoN panquiuo) Kauauno
ubialo4
Ly oEt ERA

Kuedwog ayj jo siapjoyaleys o} a|qeInqLRy

A
\

[3E-8 4
dnoig

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

96 | CEveioksmEin



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017 = A o < — 1
e e IR IRER

2017 2016
—2—t#F “ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000

- i e BhTIT

Cash flows from operating activities SZEEHIMEHE

Profit before tax FRF BT 844,605 537,476
Adjustments for: SR
Depreciation of property, plant and ke, BRI
equipment il 14,960 14,986
Amortisation of intangible assets b1 3| 80,119 86,290
Gain on disposal of equity interest in HE—EEA TN
a subsidiary Wz — (402)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEM, TERIZEZ
plant and equipment (Wzz) /57 (23) 369
Share of profit of an associate N SEREAEEF (158) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate CETEIAY
changes =2l 16,842 (40,658)
Net finance costs e ped s 228,928 197,592
Operating cash flows before EEEETINNEE
working capital changes mMERE 1,185,273 795,653
Changes in working capital: BizRE&T:
Inventories 7R 861 (5,465)
Service concession financial SRSAFRENEFRR
receivables ERERIERIT (1,915,443) (934,982)
Trade and other receivables TR B ELAB R R I (173,252) 9,868
Trade and other payables AR R ELAth R AT FRIR 712,157 288,913
Cash (used in)/generated from SERIFR (RA) /£
operations RIS (190,404) 153,987
Income tax paid EfTATER (73,856) (133,792)
Net cash (used in)/generated from SEIEER (BA) /=%
operating activities RYIN £ /80 (264,260) 20,195
Cash flows from investing activities IREEMEHES
Proceeds from disposal of equity HE—EMfBELSINGEMNE
interest in a subsidiary, net of cash WS FER
disposed of - (1,195)
Interest received 2lFIER 12,463 7,631
Purchase of property, plant and TasEmll, Bk
equipment R’ (9,741) (11,864)
Proceeds from disposals of property, REYL. TERIREAE
plant and equipment BN 581 87
Purchase of intangible assets MSLTCH &= (221,411) (988)
Increase in fixed deposit with maturity =MBULEREAR SR
period over three months and HaZERIEN
balances in financial institutions (172,755) —
Net cash used in investing activities  REEHFAZIAAOME S (390,863) (6,329)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

S EEMERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—CF A =1+—HILARFE

2017 2016
—F—tF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTIT

Cash flows from financing activities S EMEHEE
Proceeds from borrowings PRGN EE I 3,104,036 4,431,374
Repayment of borrowings SN EIN (1,592,312)  (4,121,687)
Interest paid [SIREIS) (198,753) (205,223)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due IVANIEENIR)E=YN=IENI

to fellow subsidiaries GREZ>) /880N (154,928) 8,256
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due VAR SllT: e NS ENIT

to intermediate holding companies (iFi>) /18 (79,034) 3,711
Increase in restricted bank balances ZPRBIRI TG0 - (94,734)
Payments of share buy—back 2T AR [BIEAYFRIN - (22,489)
Dividend paid to shareholders XTI FRIRZRE (12,348) (11,877)
Dividends paid to a non—controlling EffIHzRRERZ

shareholder = - (14,550)
Capital contributions from IHERIRIRIER

non—controlling shareholders 214,798 169,583
Share issue expenses D RITZH (168) -
Net cash generated from financing BEEEE AR

activities R 1,281,291 142,364
Net increase in cash and cash M RIMSEMIIEIN

equivalents b0 626,168 156,230
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzNERINE

beginning of the year =21 1,359,401 1,288,550
Effects of exchange rate changes IR E RIS

on cash and cash equivalents EINERNm 88,845 (85,379)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZMEFMEEF N

of the year (note 19) (Fi#iE19) 2,074,414 1,359,401

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

2.1

2.2

23

Corporate information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempt
company with limited liability and is listed on the Mainboard
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST"). The immediate parent and ultimate controlling
party of the Group are China Everbright Water Holdings
Limited and China Investment Corporation, which are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the PRC
respectively.

The registered address of the Company is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is at 26™ Floor, Block A, Oriental
Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan Avenue, Futian District,
Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at the
end of the reporting period (together referred to as the
“Group” and individually as “Group entities”).

The Group is primarily involved in the water environment
management business in the PRC. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except as otherwise described in the
notes below.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”). Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group entities are measured
using the currency of the primarily economic environment
in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s presentation currency. All
financial information presented in HK$ has been rounded to
the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2FEH

RABTERANEMMRIIA—EEREARE
PREEAT), FEFINBIESRZZAEIR
RF ( "HIMERZER ) EREH. &
EANBABRREEFHSTOINTRE
HIRFEF S R PEEMRZAPESEAK
SERERABDRTERTERIERS
a.

AR ML Clarendon  House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda, FELZLEM S AHEARIF
( "E" ) FHEAXREXE
10035 ZR5FRMT SHARE261E,

SZEVSREREETATDRENEATE
EFREALENMSBRE (KR "FE
Bl" , BmiRy "SEEIEE ) .

RERAFTEEFENEKIMERE R
B, ARENERWSEILEERIISS. 1§
THEAERIERISSIMNES.

R
EHIEHE

A IRFRIZR (ERYSREEN)
( "ERFEMSREEN" ) .

i ER

PRTXHHERTIRBE, FUSBKRER
R SERA E

TIGERSIIRES

AREEELEHAART ( "ARMH"
) . FERABSHISERALAIINSIRE
I=Pas; gt SEiloNy Ny 2y Y e S 2t
MERIEST ( "IDgELET” ) HHE. BW
AERBIIUREIT, MBRELEDS
R, BRAHEREN, FELABHIIRNY
BERERNSANENEEERER
BIFAL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRRMIE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

24

3.1

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has
made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements and
information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year are included in
note 4.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities.

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(i) Business combinations

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prepared for the same reporting date
as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are
applied to like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated in
full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

2.4

3.1

RHIEGE (££)
(EFFHET R A5t

EEEERA IS IRENEFHENA
EHANSTBERIINAE, RS-, &
R, AR HER S ST IATF
W, i RRIR. SEIRERAEERRI T
it

EEESMHERSIETTREXRIR.
St ETEXEIHERET Z AR
RFAHAZ IR HREIERIA.

B EARS TR R E VB IRETTEEKRT
RIS BERNABRAMER, LURER
R—FRRIRRAATTRRREE TR E
BEXEENEER.

FESIHBERICE

TS BERERUSIREE RGN
EERAINA, FREANTEMIMA.

EHEMFWSSH
iy AwsE

GEMBIREBREAATRENE
REFF—LFt+-B=1+—H
NEZEZ B IERVBERERNSER
=, WHEEUSIRERARES
BZMBIRENREEHSEAT
—H. XUBRTHRZZMEER
FBA—HRISIEBER.

REARBESABZENERS
FPEREER. W\, ZRA. RSEH
RN R TSI SRR,

MEARBKWE (BIREEBYS
EHEINEE) TAGEUSERE,
BEEREFIEEHEIRAL,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(cont’d)

(i)

Business combinations (cont’d)

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it:

° de-recognises the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost;

° de-recognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest;

° de-recognises the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity;

° recognises the fair value of the consideration
received;

° recognises the fair value of any investment
retained;

° recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or
loss; and

° reclassifies the Group’s share of components

previously recognised in other comprehensive
income to profit or loss or retained earnings,
as appropriate.

The Group elects for each individual business
combination, whether the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree (if any) that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation are
recognised on the acquisition date at fair value,
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by another
IFRS.

3. EERIBHRLE (8)

31 BHEUMFAINSEH (&)

(i)

WESH (&)

MBATRIN S SIREDEEIFE
BRiNES, BPEEAILAMESSEERS
BRANEE HINSHRIFIA.

X B ABNERNERETE
&), BRFEREHEIN, WEXHE
MR ZHITRUTIE, NERA
AL NBEATINEHIR, BB
N

BT ER AL HA R
(IERE) RO

. RIKEMELR LEFRIAD
BRIRA G

° BWEMNEZRIEIATA
NENIIBRERIFEE
B,

. BRASMERALEX

i

o BRASMEENITERR
RERINME;

. BREREITTAFIER;
&

o BERENEXBKRNIE
BHEXNHEESE W
AEE R R 5 B F
i

MBI SEHNS, FERASE
BEARMESIEETHEBEAT
AIPPARF#MEZ R ALA, HHE
BWW AT Z IR, AR
REARIHAENINE, FRF
HIFG AL EIEERNEERA
DECFEFBIF, IEERNEZ
HAEREIRRRNMETE, bR
IEEMEPRM SR S ENERR A
BTt EEM,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(cont’d)

(i)

(iif)

Business combinations (cont’d)

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of
the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount of non-controlling interest
in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latter
amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised
as a gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the
acquisition date.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group. Losses applicable
to the non—controlling interests in a subsidiary are
allocated to the non—controlling interests even if
doing so causes the non—controlling interests to have
a deficit balance.

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but does not have
control or joint control of those policies.

3.1

EESUBERICE ()

EHEBUANSSH ()

(i)

(i)

(iii)

WESH (&)

XATNEFHIMRRINE (K
ITRIREIBIESRRNE) 56
ZH Z R RIRESL T HIBRIRAY
RAMEZIAR T EFPEUSHIN
WSTFETHRNSFE T R INED T
ROES, FIANEE. XOHNEH
MNBIRRNE (ER TN
ISR RMNE) SWEBZEFF
BRSBTS RMEZ
MNFEFFBUSAIR LTI T3
INGFEFRRMENEN, BHER
TS HARER.

s sa

MERRREZRAERAEZEHAIST
R, SREFFES SRS
B ERAIX PSS E L Z=ERT
TaElik, BEEADELELIRE
MMM %S ERRES, MAEE
B HIiZsLr. MRATSRMSIR
RHEHRSERE, EEEHE
ISR IETANGEVSHRE.

MBEATNSIBREELERS
1EHZER), LISAERFRMINS
HBERRIF . MERRAIE
AR ERN 5 SIRE D BRI
m, BPEEMNIAMESSEEHEMRIN
mHITIRIIA,

EARBP RIS IRERS, XIS
B AT BRI AIRRIREIRE
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7, (EFTEEBEHEE SEMTS
—EHEEHZFBERRIHIE.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(cont’d)

(iif)

Associates (cont’d)

Interests in associates are accounted for using
the equity method. They are recognised initially at
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of equity—
accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the
date that significant influence commences until the
date that significant influence ceases.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted as goodwill and is included in
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment is included as income in the
determination of the entity’s share of the associate’s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the investments in
associates are carried in the consolidated statements
of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associates. The profit or loss reflects the share
of results of the operations of the associates.
Distributions received from associates reduce the
carrying amount of the investment. Where there has
been a change recognised in other comprehensive
income by the associates, the Group recognises
its share of such changes in other comprehensive
income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and associates
are eliminated to the extent of the interests in the
associates.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint venture, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

3. EERIBHRLE (8)

31 BHEUMFAINSEH (&)

(iii)

BKELE (&)

BERTHRELSGEENIK. #0i8
RPN, PSR B,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(cont’d)

(iif)

Associates (cont’d)

After application of the equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in an associate. The Group determines at the end of
each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to bring the accounting policies in line with those of
the Group.

Non-controlling interests

For each business combination, the Group elects
to measure any non—controlling interests in the
acquiree either:

° at fair value; or

° at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
and therefore no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Adjustments to non—controlling interests arising from
transactions that do not involve the loss of control
are based on a proportionate amount of the net
assets of the subsidiary.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the
Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non—controlling interests
and other components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

3.1
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3.1

3.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra—group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra—
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Foreign currency

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non—-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non—-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency differences are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into HK$ at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is allocated to
non—controlling interests.

3.1

3.2

EFESUBERILE ()
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(vii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRRMIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 3. FESUBERICE (45)
3.2 Foreign currency (cont’d) 32 9ME (£2)
(i)  Foreign operations (cont’d) iy BT ()

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety EeaEEto HE RIS
or partially such that control, significant influence EHINR. BRI EEEIN
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the B, N5Sizgshlssiaxaysimie
foreign currency translation reserve related to that BRI EMENDREIRE,
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as ERHER RS SIRIN—ED. &
part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group REANHERBEATIEBO NG
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but FHREBEHIN, NRit+SERIHEx
retains control, then the relevant proportion of the o EFAETIESRNG., &
cumulative amount is reattributed to non—controlling ERANEEKRENTHAERIER
interests. When the Group disposes of only part ONEHRBE AN OEILER
of an associate or joint venture while retaining B, MRITEERIEXEBD =R
significant influence or joint control, the relevant PDEEIR.
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss.
If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from ETF AR KFH T RITRA KT
or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned L H S Z W = e =2 VT S VA
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, then SBMIE, WzBr4ailxE
foreign exchange differences arising from such item BRGNS SR B II—E85.
form part of a net investment in the foreign operation. Eit, ZESHEE e EREE T
Accordingly, such differences are recognised in other N, FESNDIREEETRL,
comprehensive income, accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

3.3 Financial instruments 33 #HTEH

(i) Non—derivative financial assets (i) FEGTER B~

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables RERAEET R MBI E 24 H
on the date when they are originated. All other AR NZE AR MG, T
financial assets are initially recognised on the trade BEMESREF T35 BERIRH
date. A
The Group derecognises a financial asset when HEEFNEIISRENGLINF
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the BlEi%, HERZMEELIEEE
asset expires, or it transfers the rights to receive RENEGAONF, BFZRZ+5HE
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which T SREE PRI RERD K A E]
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership R, SEBLEILLITLRBIFEN
of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither EREBD KGR ER, LARFFR
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and TRBEEI LA, MK
rewards of ownership and does not retain control EARIAEXEE™. &%
over the transferred asset. Any interest in such HR IERIA SRS == e B R BB
derecognised financial assets that is created or MBI E RIS HIA I — IR
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate R,
asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.3  Financial instruments (cont’d)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position when, and only when,
the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group classifies non—derivative financial assets
into the loans and receivables category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
financial receivables arising from service concession
arrangements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances,
short—term deposits and short-term balances in
financial institutions with maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition that are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value,
and are used by the Group in the management of
its short—term commitments. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, restricted bank
balances are excluded whilst bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are included in
cash and cash equivalents.

3. EERIBRLE (8)

33 #HTE (&)

(i)

FEFTEEMB (£L)

LENEFERTEENFTIRHE
BXEFEIIL $EE RN
WA MBEARN, SRMETR
RRATLMEERE, BXSETY
FINRERTIR.

REFBIMTESRE R NAE
BNV eSS

TR R
ENSIVE N T S SR )

WEMREM, BEIRERTS
FHRRMNMERIE". XL
BIRASMEIMEEIERN 525
BRAHEIA, TEAIIRHEIAG, SR
RzHT I s PR SRR 2R A S R
RRHTRERKITE.

WM EENE N INEF
4D, LTSRS LAt R WK TN
SRS EENLHAERAINIL
RIS,

HERIPZFNHY

NekNESFNMBERSER.
SHAERNEIEI R A B WA BERE
=ANBEUTREHSRIIELE
R, HUEEIRRSMEZAIK
BAEXR, BFREHASMBAEXNE
MIMeFMIEREEIRE. 5
GEUEREXRMS, ZREIRT
FRHAABIEER, MRITESIR
BREREE, FURAERNEE
BT DN—EBD, ANAE
NMIREFMND.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRRMIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 3. FESUBERICE (45)
3.3  Financial instruments (cont’d) 33 #HTE (&)
(i)  Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d) ()  FHTEERE™ ()
Service concession arrangements IREFFIFIREHE
The Group recognises a financial asset arising from REAEBERFEMELINF AT HAT
a service concession arrangement when it has an RMAEE R MOER S I AL
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or REAERIEI £ e E Mt £ RR =
another financial asset from or at the direction of i, AERAESFHARSIERFEE
the grantor for the construction or upgrade services LRSS RET. ZEFSR
provided. Such financial assets are measured at fair BEAHARHR A RINMET B,
value upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial NS, SRS IR
recognition, the financial assets are measured at ITE.
amortised cost.
If the Group is paid for the construction services BN ER SRS E Y ER FER
partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible PDUSREF=S AT RE D AT E
asset, then each component of the consideration is 32T, MIZAN IR SRR
accounted for separately and is recognised initially W, FHWBZERNBELRMERRIA
at the fair value of the consideration (see also note (Z18FE3.5(i))
3.5(ii)).
(i)  Non-derivative financial liabilities (i) JETESHGE

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued AERAERSIES RITHEY%R
on the date that they are originated. Financial IMRSBIUES. RIS EHFPRIT
liabilities for contingent consideration payable in HEN SRS SRTRIE HEF
a business combination are recognised at the A. FTEHERMAR (BiFRL
acquisition date. All other financial liabilities (including MBI ANIRENRR) RT3
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or 288 (AIAREFARIES LI,
loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which NEMTENTARZEE) YR
is the date that the Group becomes a party to the Ao
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its REATFENRECHER. BUE
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, BT SRR,
or expire.
Financial liabilities for contingent consideration BRASESEHFNTHENNNE
payable in a business combination are initially RURRMIIRIR A SNMERA. B8
recognised at fair value. Subsequent changes in N AN BRGNS EERE T
the fair value of the contingent consideration are A,
recognised in profit or loss.
The Group classifies non-derivative financial REFABIETTESRAOERIFEAE
liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. fhe Rt SR, BXERRERY]
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair R A RN EIDRUE A E R 532
value less any directly attributable transaction costs. SRR, PIRTANE, BXE
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial BRERBUR R LI ERA
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the =,
effective interest method.
Other financial liabilities comprise borrowings and Hitb St mEE S R BT IKER
trade and other payables. ra=EIVANENTT

108 CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

REVEAIKSBIRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3.3

3.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
(i)  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

(iv)  Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value;
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

- Buildings: 25 years

- Plant and machinery: 5 to 10 years

- Leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures: 4 to 5
years

- Motor vehicles and office equipment: 4 to 5 years

Assets under construction included in plant and equipment
are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for
use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.

33

34

EFESUBERILE ()
EHTR (£)
(i)  ARF

BERDEINE. SRITEER
BRAVEERATA R RIR
B (ORMEHIRSTMm) .

(v) frE2HMIR

TETRARIERSSNERIA, N
B3 2 AT A R E R P
N REIANG, TETIRERR
sehETE, MEZENERETH
e

Yk, ERIRE

Yok, | ERIRE TR IR AN, T
IRTASS, Yol | B RIRE IR
KitFIERRIHRERKTE.

k. T BRIEE B ARSI
A EFRERIHETIH. FRital{ERSERN
T:

- ¥F: T+hEF
- TERITMILSE: AZE+HE
- THEMIEE, FAIRESE: NERE

- AERDAERS: NERF

I BRiREFHERAR A ERARSAIER
LEAHEIR.

EETRETN. | BERIZERIWEMN
ERTREREE], MASEANTEHE T
B,

FERAEDTEBFFERT, Wk, T
BRIRENTHFAE. EREHMHTIR
FEHITER, WEHTEZE,

oAk, T RIRE T HES TR R R
FRE BT E R FITRART L LT
o AHAEFEIRARNKER SRS T
AR IR F R NIRE.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—z tamge | 109



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3.

3.5

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Intangible assets and goodwill

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non—controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash—generating units (CGUs),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or
group of CGUs) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of
the CGU retained.

3.

35

EESUBERICE ()

THRE=RBE

(i)

BE

BN, IHERINGERIE
HASBNRAER BT HIKET5
FENRNAEEIRARMME=EZ
RETET W SRR BB NS 5=
NETEBERNRRZEM, SN
REAIE S SR T EERTS
BAERRRNME, WEXEREE
I RTERE A RNIE
Y.

atEAE, BERMARETAR
THRERKLITE, BESEHTRH
BN, TFRESFHSIBEREE
SRIKEMERT REH IR ERT, 1F
SEINERIRENR. FURENIKT
5, AEFAMISSFHKIEREH
FE B KB AR ECEFRERT A
BHNEEPREAIS MRS
HETa e~ HETTER, HF
BREANEMEHRERES S
EEizFRTaATAml.

H{ERETIHEE ERXRI RS
HETT (e~ HETAR) B9
WEIESEMERE. MIEFHETT
(MEF-HETaER) RS
BUETIKEME, ESIARER
K. MEEWARNRERETST
HIHAiE%Em,

M EEHEERS~HETT (8
BErHEBTAsl) mizBirIEs
DASBHHE, NEEEH SR
SRR, BHEWSHIRXEE
HALSHIKENE. EZFE
THERNFERBHESSAIERY
IMERBIREI S HEBTTERD
FLITE.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.5 Intangible assets and goodwill (cont’d)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising
from a service concession arrangement when it
has a right to charge for usage of the concession
infrastructure. An intangible asset received as
consideration for providing construction or upgrade
services in a service concession arrangement is
measured at fair value upon initial recognition by
reference to the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset
is measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are initially
capitalised at cost which includes the purchase
price and other directly attributable cost of preparing
the asset for its intended use. Capitalised computer
software licences are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are measured at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of
intangible assets less their estimated residual values
using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or
loss. Goodwill is not amortised.

3. EERIBRLE (8)

35 TRBFRBE (£)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

RS1FFEEREHE

LAREAENHERHTRENE
AR ZRRT, ESMARSYS
FFERENZHFENET R, 1R
EIRSFHTE ENTHHR RIS
BUERRSS TS ENEI R
&=, ERIARESEMR
HIRSHIRRMNE, BRRNELT
B, IetiNGE, TRErEMA
HERTHIEER RTHRERAITE.

Bkl

T NBYFE ARER A AR SR R A
(BB R ER - IA B ER
BREMEREREAE) BAW.
ERAAIEB I ANIERRIR
PR IRER TR R R R{ERAR T

B,

SRR

TR R MR AR R R
RIR{EIRAIT &,

IS

RESIHRBER SRS ER™
R AR SR B IR 75 =)
"R, FIERME (BERER
FERERBENE) | TE
RS TEIREE BRI,

BB

BRI E S AT A=A
R IR A A E R RIS
MIE, F—RTFREHIA. &
EFRIE,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MASSIRRMBE  Colelos o

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 3. SITBERICE (88)
3.5 Intangible assets and goodwill (cont’d) 35  FEEEREGE (4)
(viy  Amortisation (cont’d) (vi) fEEE (%)

The estimated useful lives for the current and AEERMRFENTRTAIERE

comparative years are as follows: PRE0T:

Concession rights Over the service FFEENR  IK/SKEET HER
concession period of 20 “tE=1TT"FM8
to 32 years of the water/ RBFRFEERE
waste water treatment
plants

Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years ERRER +E-_+5F

Computer software 5 years EE ARt e

Backlog contracts 3 years EEaE =

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual T, (ERERERISNMET

values are reviewed at the end of each reporting BIBERIRSIEEE (ULEM) .

period and adjusted, if appropriate.

3.6 Land use rights 3.6 AHEMEIR
Land use rights are measured at cost less accumulated e FRR R RS A R R S B R e
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. RS, HRTE T (S A EOAE S RAER
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight— N FHRERTHF) DBELEERSA
line basis over the respective lease periods of the land use SREIA,
rights, which range from 25 to 50 years.

3.7 Leased assets 3.7 HEEE
Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the N EFFIRE S AR E NS AR,
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance bR ERRIFRE S K ARSI
leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is NG, FEESEREARNMESSREES
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value EIVMEN R EE AWK, TEHAS,
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. B E TR A S BIEE N,
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.
Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised in EEESREERE, BATEASEFANT
the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position. %ﬁ/ﬁ%?\]%l«lﬁﬁw

3.8 Inventories 38 5%
Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and BT EAER TS RS KA R
consumables used in the repairs and maintenance of BIEMEI R TR ERm AR A
the waste water treatment plants, are carried at cost less (&Dﬁ) N EJZZFS‘R?EJ_?EH:I'E'JJ?LJVI‘
provision for obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated B, OERWEEF T H RIS
based on the first—in—first—out principle, and includes Eﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬂl_ﬁuf)uﬁ*bbﬁlﬁﬁf‘iﬂ']
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other EfpEA, E:ﬁﬁﬁ B= S RIEENK
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and I MELER S AR TS,
condition. When inventories are consumed, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.9 Impairment

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through
profit or loss is assessed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event(s) has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset, and that the loss event(s) had an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that
can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
can include default or delinquency by a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on
terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor will enter bankruptcy, and
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the Group.

Loans and receivables

The Group considers evidence of impairment for
loans and receivables at both specific asset and
collective levels. All individually significant loans and
receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All
individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified. Loans and receivables that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together loans and
receivables with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses
historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues
to be recognised. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of an impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

3. EERIBRLE (8)

39 mE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3.

3.9

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment (cont’d)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)
Associates

An impairment loss in respect of an associate is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 3.9(ii). An impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non—financial
assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for
use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year
at the same time. An impairment loss is recognised
if the carrying amount of an asset or its related CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test,
for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
aggregated so that the level at which impairment
testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

3.

3.9

EESUBERICE ()
e (5E)
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(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.9 Impairment (cont’d)

(ii)

Non-financial assets (cont’d)

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate
separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than
one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs
on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for
impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which
the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs),
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

3.10 Employee benefits

(i)

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which related services are rendered
by employees.
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3.10

3.11

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(ii)

(iif)

Short-term employee benefits

Short—term employee benefit obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid under short—term cash bonus or profit—sharing
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share—based payment
awards granted to employees is recognised as an
employee benefit expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which
the related service and non—-market performance
conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised as an expense is
based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non—-market performance conditions at
the vesting date. For share-based payment awards
with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair
value of the share—based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true—up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre—tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.12 Revenue

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed
in the contract plus any variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments, to the extent that
it is probable that they will result in revenue and
can be measured reliably. When the outcome of
a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the contract.
Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless
they create an asset related to future contract activity.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to survey of work performed. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to
be recoverable. An expected loss on a contract is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements

Revenue relating to construction or upgrade
services under a service concession arrangement
is recognised based on the stage of completion of
the work performed, consistently with the Group’s
accounting policy on recognising revenue on
construction contracts (see above). Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which
the services are provided by the Group. When the
Group provides more than one service in a service
concession arrangement, the consideration received
is allocated by reference to the relative fair values
of the services delivered when the amounts are
separately identifiable.

Operation income from service concession
arrangements

Revenue from operation services are recognised
when the related services are rendered.

Finance income from service concession
arrangements
Finance income from service concession

arrangements represents the interest income on the
financial receivable arising from a service concession
arrangement, and is recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.

3. EERIBRLE (8)

312 A

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EEShH

BRBANBESRNENDIRE
M, BIMEHIEEIEEE. BR
RRIR, (BRMEEARER®R
BN, BESHFAILAAEITE.
HEESENERET EIATT
S, SRKRANZERZIHEER
mPHIA. BRI SEERFLL
A, BUERISTESKKE
EESE XA NIERSN.

FTIHIHERSRIEHTIER
BEFTE. SZESRNERT
EI SRR, SRS
TR EIRI B E BRI AHHIA.
BEATH S REEE R P
e

RS1FFEEREHE

ERSFATEENZAF NSt
BUERS B RAIWNRIEEHIT T
BN ITHETFLRA, H558E
ERPAZIES RN STTEER (
REX) —H. BESRSENGE
REFRGIRSAIBAEIIA. S
ERAERMRBEFTFEENTHT
RAEE TR, WAERXESE
ATEMRPIAIRS, SR SRR
FTRIRSRIEE A RN EHITH
Bc.

ESIHTEENTHIINEE A

EERSINERHEAERIRS I
e

RSIFFEEREZHIIISIEA

IRSBHFFTFEENZHRIYSKRNE
ERSFTEENTH SR
RIYRIREIF RN, EERBRL
FEEERE PN

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—z tamge | 17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRRMIE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet
and is amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Where the grant relates to income, it is recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expenses, over the term of
the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on cash
and cash equivalents held in banks. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings that
are recognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
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3.16

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Tax (cont’d)

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

° temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able
to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

° taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax
consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses,
tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.
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3.16

3.17

3.18

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Tax (cont’d)

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax,
the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest
may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of
tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of
judgements about future events. New information may
become available that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities,
and such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in
the period that such a determination is made.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise warrants issued by the Company and share
options granted to employees and directors.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

The Group operates in a single business segment which is
the water environment management business in the PRC.
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3.19

3.20

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as
insurance contracts and treated as contingent liabilities
until such time as they become probable that the Group
will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
A provision is recognised based on the Group’s estimate of
the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but unpaid
at the consolidated statements of financial position. The
provision is assessed by reviewing individual claims and
tested for adequacy by comparing the amount recognised
and the amount that would be required to settle the
guarantee contract.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards
applicable to the Group that have been issued but are not

yet effective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers, and
introduces new contract cost guidance. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The new revenue standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

The Group is primarily involved in the water environment
management business. The Group has performed a
preliminary impact assessment of adopting IFRS 15 based
on currently available information. This assessment may be
subject to changes arising from ongoing analysis until the
Group adopts IFRS 15 in 2018.

The Group plans to apply the changes in accounting
policies retrospectively to each reporting year presented,
using the full retrospective approach. The Group expects
that the cumulative effect of the initial adoption of IFRS 15
will not be material. The expected changes in accounting
policies will not also have significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 2018 onwards.
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3.20

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 brings together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The impairment
requirements in IFRS 9 are based on an expected credit
loss model. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group will not restate comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. Based on
the preliminary assessment undertaken to date, the Group
expects that the cumulative effect of the initial adoption of
IFRS 9 will not be materiala and the Group does not expect
that the adoption will have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements from 2018 onwards.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, when effective, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees —leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
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3.20

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
IFRS 16 Leases (cont’d)

used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16
upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose
to take advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted.
As disclosed in note 28(b) to the financial statements, at
31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$ 6,887,000. Upon adoption
of IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need
to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short
term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen,
and new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Critical judgements, and

assumptions

accounting estimates,

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each
reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and
assumptions (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Financial receivables and/or intangible assets under IFRIC
12 Service Concession Arrangements

The Group recognises the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial receivable and/or an intangible asset under a
service concession arrangement. However, if the Group
is paid for the construction services partly by a financial
asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to
account separately for each component of the operator’s
consideration. The consideration received or receivable
for both components shall be recognised initially at the fair
value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service
concession arrangement between the financial asset
component and the intangible asset component, if any,
requires the Group to make an estimate of a number
of factors, which include, inter alia, fair value of the
construction services, expected future water treatment
volume of the relevant water treatment plant over its
service concession period, future guaranteed receipts
and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. These estimates, including revenue recognition
under the financial asset and intangible asset components
are determined by the Group’s management based on their
experience and assessment on current and future market
conditions. The carrying amounts of the intangible assets
(“concession rights”) and service concession financial
receivables at the end of the financial year are disclosed in
notes 11 and 15 respectively.

EXHMR. SitEitRER (8)

(a1 PEE LRI EEFIT

TXERERFKZERRIR, UKTFIR
SHARSEETTHIA R b EE
kiR, HEAARSEY T —MEE
ERFRAGEKESRFHEOREZE
KNPz

HEYSIREIEFERSIEER 125
IREIFIFEERKHE THIZ BT
R/ TTEHT

REFRRHEIEIRSS TAREUN IS IRENRY
N FANERSFHFEENZH TS
RARWCR IR /ST B, PR, BA
SRR ERIEIRSS T ERRI 22 AR LA
BT IRE D ATEE S, W
EEEVSENED BMAK, WE
DRICHERYIHN R A FAMERIIE T

B,

IRIRSBFHTRENZHRIINIFO ANE
REF o RE A (W8) . &
EHAFEMSHRERFHGTT, BERE
RBHASNME. BRKEIE EHIRS
FAFEERURRNTUARIOKGEE, R
SREREBRARAMRERAN, FRIEREES
RO IRLET BIZF ISR ENIE.
ZE i (BEESRMETRAEHI
ANHIN) BRHRAERAEEERELUERNZ
K3 B B K R iip BRI h T E
. THMBREFER, £THET ( "R
BN ) RSRSHTFEERBXIER
RY R B RKE (1B 7 BY TR E 6 B B iE
10955E.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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MSIRMNE

Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and
assumptions (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of non—financial assets other than interests in
subsidiaries and goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non—financial assets at each reporting
date. Non—financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Estimating the value—in—use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash—
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (other than goodwill and concession
rights) are disclosed in notes 10 and 11.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based
on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
loans and receivables are disclosed in notes 15, 17, 18 and
19.

Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the interest in a
subsidiary is impaired. To determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment, the Company
considers factors such as the industry performance,
technology changes, operational and financing cash flows.
Management will also consider the financial conditions and
business prospects of the interest.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on the forecasted performance of the subsidiary. The
carrying amounts of the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
at the reporting date are disclosed in note 13.

4.

EXHM. SitEitRER (8)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

4. Critical judgements, accounting estimates, and 4. EAHE, SiHEiTRRg (4E)
assumptions (cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d) 1T A BEEMIIEEFRE (4)
Percentage of completion of construction work BETERT T ESE
The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to AERARERSH IR THEMRIAZ
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end BB, FEGiTEmETHERNA IR
of the reporting period. Significant assumptions are required HTIEER, MEINEARIR. AKEH=
to estimate the recoverable variation works that will affect BESRIENHE, SZHHENEhHE
the stage of completion. The Group reviews and revises ESRET.
the estimates in each construction contract as the contract
progresses.
Impairment losses for goodwill BERE
Goodwill is allocated to the water environment management RIEERSITHENSE36SETRE, B
segment that are expected to benefit from the synergies of o EEE S ETFT S FhEZERIK
the combination for the purpose of impairment assessment, NBEZEERED AR TR ERE M,
which requires significant judgement. The Group XEEEHEXHM, AREARERSE
determined that the group of cash-generating units to which BEZUNETHBETTHEAREDFNER
goodwill was allocated reflected the lowest level at which REENMEREENREER, BizA
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting and was not BFREKTF—PEEDER.
larger than an operating segment in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least rEAZEVEFEEREERSHIUR
on an annual basis. This involves an estimation of the value B, XEEWHKSEREZWES~HET
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is BROERNER T, EATHERN
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to B, AEREHITEEMSTHETH
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from Witk FME R, HEERRESENIGI
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable xR, LMEEEXISRENIE. TR
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of £H, BENWKEMNEEMGE12RE,
those cash flows. The carrying amount of the goodwill at the
reporting date is disclosed in note 12.
5. Revenue 5. 'ON
Group
AEH
2017 2016
—F—tfF FEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTIT
Construction service revenue from IRSFATFEENLHRY
service concession arrangements SRS 2,111,292 1,133,784
Finance income from service IRSBIFTFEENZHR
concession arrangements =TI 601,204 538,775
Operation income from service IRESFFEENLHRY
concession arrangements ey =11 /PN 878,426 811,830
Construction contract revenue and BEIEEERWARIA
technical services income BRI 711 9,648
3,591,633 2,494,037
126 CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

6. Other income 6. =11 PN
Group
FEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF “EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Government grants* BTN ED* 11,422 6,491
VAT refund IREFIEN 114,049 106,834
Gain on disposal of equity interest HE—EMELEING
in a subsidiary Ao ER - 402
Sundry income ZETIIN 4,338 13,939
129,809 127,666
* Government grants of HK$11,422,000 (2016: HK$6,491,000) HE_ZE—+t&+”"-B=+—H1
were granted during the year ended 31 December 2017 to FE, AEHARKREFE BT
subsidise certain water/waste water treatment plants of the 11,422,00050 (Z&F—/REFE: BH
Group in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other 6,491,0005T) , LARMEAEREHER
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants. There is ETK/ASKEEE, BREREENZE
no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grants AN Z RIAAFR G EMMHESE. B
in the future. BIABSRIEARERA T HEBTSERA
%A,
7. Net finance costs 7.  MSBERFE
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF TEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Finance income U ETVON
Interest income on bank deposits RITEAAFI BN 12,463 7,631
Finance costs 55%:M
Interest expense on: Bz H:
Bank borrowings RITEK 211,109 194,689
Corporate bonds NEfRE 22,971 -
Amounts due to intermediate R EER A E)
holding companies BN 2,947 2,977
Amounts due to fellow NTRRMEAR
subsidiaries FRIA 4,364 7,557
241,391 205,223
Net finance costs V=2 b 228,928 197,592
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 127
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

8. Profit before tax [&TREIERF
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Included in cost of sales: TEANEHERA:
Amortisation of intangible assets TR A= 79,396 85,937
Included in administrative expenses: T AfTEEZEF:
Amortisation of intangible assets TR = EEs 723 353
Depreciation on property, plant b, TERISE
and equipment = 14,960 14,986
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,  &&#l. T BERIRE
plant and equipment Z (&R /5% (23) 369
Operating lease charges: ZEMRE:
Minimum lease payments — = Bvis DS
hire of premises TR 9,552 8,340
Included in other operating TTARMEE
expenses: A
Foreign exchange loss RTEAPS 4,239 55,887
Staff costs: RTRA:
Wages and salaries IHENHSE 170,717 175,807
Defined contribution plans ERRHFRT R 44,678 46,219
Welfare and other benefits Erdlysasyiehali 20,507 21,451
Fees paid to auditor of the EfANERITHITE
Company: 2B
Audit fees CRAE3E] 460 696
Non-audit fees JEEHITERA - -
Fees paid to affiliates of auditor ENALABE AR
of the Company: FrEgZEFa
Audit fees Eaag=4z3) 1,920 2,763
Non-audit fees IERITEER = -

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

Income tax expense o. FR{STHAX
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT
Current tax expense: BPERRIRSZ -
Current year REE 110,840 96,212
Under /(Over)-provision in prior SEFERERE/
years (R 3,592 (1,380)
114,432 94,832
Deferred tax expense: EERERRIRST Y -
Movements in temporary HEMER
differences RLYH)| 149,380 61,304
Under-provision in prior years HEFEERERE - 8,725
149,380 70,029
Total income tax expense FR{SHZEA S 263,812 164,861

The Group’s tax assessable profits were entirely derived
from the operations of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

No provision for Singapore and Hong Kong income tax
was made as the Group did not earn any income subject
to Singapore and Hong Kong income tax during 2017 and
2016.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory
rate of 25% of the assessable profits under taxation
ruling of the PRC. During 2017 and 2016, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard rates
or fully exempt from income tax under the relevant tax rules
and regulations.

RERRINAFR B SRR T A EEFE
LNJEVNST NI

TE—EFERTFT—NEF, BTAEH
FEREUE /A NI PSR R B
TSR, BTSN
EBTEHRIELRE.

RIEPENRSAE, FEWSHIBRIUS
RIEN NI EF) 25 %REEREITE. T
“E—EFERTFNF, RIEEXAIR
SMNEGER, EFFERBRARRRR
HERERRIS0% IR, BEREARAIN
5.
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9. Income tax expense (cont’d) 9. FR{STRER (£5)
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hTT BhTIT
Profit before tax PRI BIZF 844,605 537,476
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% 125% i ERITERIRIT
(2016: 25%) (ZEF—7"EF: 25%) 211,151 134,369
Effect of tax rates in foreign HNEERENX AT R
jurisdictions =1 25,759 5,466
Tax concession Tl TUEE IR, (12,296) (14,124)
Profit attributable to an associate HEF—EEE T ZFE (26) -
Non-taxable income JERIZRFUIN (15,952) (12,559)
Non-deductible expenses AATHEOSZ 24,536 17,090
Current year losses for which no FH IR NBIER IR A
deferred tax is recognised =t 7,405 6,564
Utilisation of tax losses not IR ERFIARIFIR
recognised in prior years SiR (5,897) (943)
Under-provision in prior years HEFEREARE 3,592 7,345
Withholding tax on undistributed FEMREAERS BT
profits of PRC subsidiaries FRERF{SHL 25,540 21,653
263,812 164,861
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10.  Property, plant and equipment 10. ¥k, TBERIgES
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold Motor land held
improvements,  vehicles for own
furniture and  and office use

Plant and fixtures  equipment Construction BErER
Buildings machinery HEMMIRIE, SERM  inprogress Sub-otal ZiEE+iy  Total
BF TERIE FAREE QL=gE 2 HEEIE it ez 28
Group FEHE HK$000  HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
#hte Bhfrw BhTr #htr #EFFx EhFx #EhFr #EhTw

Cost 7773
At 1 January FEE

2016 —B—H 97,841 47,790 4,802 52,602 12,956 215,991 7,826 223817
Additions e - 4 3,044 7,816 785 11,649 215 11,864
Disposal of a HE—EME

subsidiary AEH - (18) (64 (389) - @r1) -
Disposals = - - (441) (5,231) - (5,672) - (5672
Transferred from  BEETLRE

construction in 9N

progress 2,778 4,269 - 6,300 (13,347) - - -
Exchange LR

adjustments (6,613) (3,353) (410) (4,027) (316) (14,719) (528)  (15,247)
At31December ~ FZE—RE

2016 and +-B=+-H

1 January 2017 B-E—tE

—B—H 94,006 48,692 6,931 57,071 78 206,778 7513 214,291

Additions e 105 24 3,062 6,550 - 9,741 - 9,741
Disposals QHE - (18) (478) (1,258) - (1,754) - (1,754)
Transferred from  BEERETRE

construction in 2N

progress - - 80 - (80) - - -
Exchange NI

adjustments 5,953 3,083 433 4,511 2 13,982 476 14,458
At 31 December FE—tE

2017 +-A=+—H 100,064 51,781 10,028 66,874 - 228,747 7,989 236,736
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

10.  Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 10. k. TBERIESE (£5)
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold Motor land held
improvements,  vehicles G GIT
furniture and  and office use
Plantand ~ fixtures  equipment Construction BErER
Buildings machinery fEE¥IMLE(E, ISERM  inprogress Sub-total ZigEtiy  Total
BF TBERIE FUREE OB88 HEEIRE it Wi b5t
Group FEHE HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
#htre BEfTx #hTr #hFtrx #EhFfx EdFx #EhTx EdTx
Accumulated g giiil=)d
depreciation s
and amortisation
At 1 January T5F
2016 —B—H 14,735 9,462 3,179 32,495 - 59,871 1,359 61,230
Disposal of a HE—EE
subsidiary NE - (17) (20) (146) - (183) - (183)
Disposals = - - (424) (4,792) - (5,216) - (5216)
Charge for the AEERIER
year s 4,685 2,055 803 7,137 - 14,680 306 14,986
Exchange NITAEE
adjustments (1,157) (716) (226) (2,292) - (4,391) (106)  (4,497)
At31December  FTE—REF
2016 and +ZB=t—H
1 January 2017 R-E—tF
—B—H 18,263 10,784 3,312 32,402 - 64,761 1,559 66,320
Disposals oE - (3) (248) (945) - (1,196) - (1,19)
Charge for the KEERIER
year i 3,792 2,199 1,822 6,800 - 14,613 347 14,960
Exchange NI
adjustments 1,234 750 233 2,288 - 4,505 109 4,614
At 31 December F_FE—tF
2017 +-B=1+—H 23,289 13,730 5119 40,545 - 82,683 2,015 84,698
Carrying amounts TKE#E
At31December  FTE—REF
2016 +-B=1+—H 75,743 37,908 3,619 24,669 78 142,017 5954 147,971
At 31 December FE—tE
2017 +=B=+—H 76,775 38,051 4,909 26,329 - 146,064 5974 152,038
132 CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =+—HIRIEFE

10.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 10. Pk, TERIES (£)

Motor vehicles
and office
equipment

Company ¥ /NG| SERDAERSE
HK$’000
EhTT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2016 FEF—F—HF—H 24
Additions i 34
Exchange adjustments e (2)
At 31 December 2016 and FEFt+A=+—HBK
1 January 2017 “F—tF—HF—H 56
Disposal QE (15)
At 31 December 2017 FE—tF+-RA=1t—H 41
Accumulated depreciation KitkiA
At 1 January 2016 FTF—"F—H—H 21
Charge for the year REETIRR MRS 5
Exchange adjustments CeARE (1)
At 31 December 2016 and FTFRF+A=1+—HK
1 January 2017 —F—t&—HF—H 25
Charge for the year REEHTIRR RS 7
Disposal WHE (15)
Exchange adjustments IEE (2)
At 31 December 2017 FE—tF+"B=1+—H 15
Carrying amounts MKEHE
At 31 December 2016 FTFRF+ZR=1+—H 31
At 31 December 2017 FE—tF+-RB=1+—H 26
The analysis of carrying amounts of properties is as follows: Y AR E M E DT -
Group
FEEHE
2017 2016
—T—tF —FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhT T BHTIT
In the PRC (outside Hong Kong): "EHE (F8LMES) -
— medium—term leases - HRERFEE 82,749 81,697
Representing: R&:
Buildings M 76,775 75,743
Interest in leasehold land held HEFERZHEEL
for own use % 5,974 5,954
82,749 81,697
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

11.  Intangible assets 11. FTR&E~
Concession Patents and Computer  Backlog
rights trademarks software  contracts Total
Group F5HE HFEER SARMBIE |/IERE #ESE k]
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
#BhFx @bk BhFrx  #EhFx  EhTw
Cost 573
At 1 January 2016 FE—RE-HB—H 1451493 26,419 2,418 30,619 1,510,949
Additions 1=E - - 988 - 088
Disposal of a subsidiary — HE—EELAR (3,385) - - - (3,385)
Exchange adjustments CeER (96,046) (2,098) (203) (2,029)  (100,376)
At 31 December 2016 FFEF+ZA
and 1 January 2017 =t+—HRZEF—tHF
—B—H 1,352,062 24,321 3,203 28,590 1,408,176
Additions e 219,993 - 1,418 - 221,411
Exchange adjustments 5T EEE 97,288 1,540 246 1,810 100,884
At 31 December 2017 FF—tF+ZA
=t+—H 1,669,343 25,861 4,867 30,400 1,730,471
Accumulated RitheH
amortisation
At 1 January 2016 FF3—7%—HF—H 53,825 4,687 1,305 11,057 70,874
Amortisation for the year ~ ANEEREH 71,750 4,224 353 9,963 86,290
Exchange adjustments LSRR (6,675) (494) (102) (1,166) (8,437)
At 31 December 2016 FFEF+ZA
and 1 January 2017 =t+—HRZE—tHF
—B—H 118,900 8,417 1,556 19,854 148,727
Amortisation for the year ~ ANEEEEffH 66,095 4,166 849 9,009 80,119
Exchange adjustments SRR 9,582 663 125 1,537 11,907
At 31 December 2017 TF—tF1+-R
=t+—H 194,577 13,246 2,530 30,400 240,753
Carrying amounts TREHE
At 31 December 2016 FFEF+ZA
=t+—H 1,233,162 15,904 1,647 8,736 1,259,449
At 31 December 2017  FZF—tHE+R
=+—H 1,474,766 12,615 2,337 - 1,489,718
Service concession arrangements RS2 = THE
Concession rights relate to the Group’s service concession R EN RIS A ERANIRSIFEEN
arrangements. The significant aspects of the service ZHE, IRBERFEENTHENEAS IR
concession arrangements are summarized as follows: R
(@) The arrangements are concession arrangements (a) BXLHIERIEERUSIREIETE
for waste water treatment plants with various local ERLERBE12E [ REEFHR
government authorities in the PRC under IFRIC 12 EWZHE 52N EXMBFL
Service Concession Arrangements. KSR TR R HRF R ENL
HE
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L SRR

1.

Intangible assets (cont’d)

Service concession arrangements (cont’d)

(b)

The intangible assets of concession rights arose
from waste water treatment plants located in different
cities in the PRC. For these arrangements with
concession periods ranging between 20 years to 32
years, the Group (the operator) receives the right to
charge users a fee for using the services which the
grantor collects and pays to the operator.

All the water/waste water treatment arrangements
state the rights and obligations for the grantor and
operator as follows:

(i) The operator has the obligation to treat the
required amount of water/waste water and
also to ensure the treated water fulfills the
standard quality requirements of the grantor.

(ii) The infrastructure including the plant and
equipment, “know—how”, operations manual,
handover report, design of infrastructure
and related documents for the waste water
treatment plant will be transferred to the
grantor or any grantor appointed agencies at
the end of the concession period.

(i)  The arrangement is terminated only when
a party breaches the contract or due to
unforeseeable circumstances.

(iv)  The operator has the obligation to maintain
and restore the water/waste water plant to its
operational condition upon transferring to the
grantor at the end of the concession period.

Waste water treatment plants with intangible
assets amounting to HK$283,953,000 (2016:
HK$267,231,000) as at 31 December 2017 were
pledged to secure the loans taken up by the Group
(note 20).

11.

TRZEF (88)
IRSHHTEENZHE ()

(b) FFERENNLHEREMNTH
EAEETRYS KR, Fbd
FFEESRN T —+FE=1=
FHLHMS, A5H (B5E)
RN AR ERBEXRRSAER
ETHWER, 1ZZERAERINAL
BHXOFIZEE.

() FTEK/SKEEL AR BRI
ARGEEBRIRF R LT

() EEEAERELENEN
X/EIKE, ARIBIRED
REIBRIKFFERWNARR
BiREEX,

(i) TSKAET BEMIRE (
BETBERRE. T
R, BIFRA. TER
5. BEiRENIRITRE
RKXMH) BTHRIFRES
ERIER FRVNAGE
RAEERHARIEA.

(i) BRXRERBE—HTEY
ZBRTEBETAITRRL
ABIE, FTaRIL,

(iv) HERITFEEHEREER
AR/ BRGEET
RS, ZEEREREERR
WEK/BKAEERT EHIE
BN,

(d FIE—EtHF+ZA=+—H,
SR 7™ 283,953,000
NIRRT (ZF—RF: Bm
267,231,0005T) BEIBEAKREHR
IRENGYER (BgiE20),
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12.  Goodwill 12. BE
HK$'000
11 T
Cost D%
At 1 January 2016 FF—7"F—HF—H 1,268,925
Exchange adjustments ST (83,447)
At 31 December 2016 F_E—NFt+_B=1+—H 1,185,478
At 1 January 2017 F_EF—t5—HF—H 1,185,478
Exchange adjustments sSCEEEE 74,444
At 31 December 2017 FF—tF+-RB=1—H 1,259,922
The goodwill arising from the acquisitions is attributable WA S IR A T E BT a7 &
mainly to the expected synergies from combining operations W75 &3 EHIFRER ERRES.  FREAUL
of the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired T EHIRS EHA< AT R,
is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Impairment testing of goodwill A RET
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been yﬁ;mg;m—tﬁﬁg, BEOOBEKINEE
allocated to the water environment management segment. SOJENER
The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating KBS AESPRME T~ HE TN
units within the water environment management segment AW EILImIPRIBEFERMNETE, &
was determined based on a value in use calculation using FiEEREEECREN6%-10%FE
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering Ry AEMSERE T MEHREFTRIGG
a five-year period using a growth rate of 6%-10% approved . BFRTEmLGEmNIRIEHTIER
by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the $911.5%, BITHERHIMS RETNE
cash flow projections was 11.5% and cash flows beyond 3%t IR gfgﬁmﬁifg%ﬂ%
the five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate KRSV IAETIE, IR L
of 3%. Management determined the budgets based on —E—+t5+= ﬁ_-l-—El#iErI'Tm/)'JZ{E
service concession agrrangements governing the relevant HE.
operations. Based on the assessment, no impairment
provision was necessary as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L SRR

13. Interests in subsidiaries 13. KIEXENE
Company
b /NG
2017 2016
—E—tF FEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hFr BhFIT
Unquoted equity instruments, EFLEHRATE,
at cost BRA 11,680,932 10,985,487
Impairment losses UEAIEERES (4,488,176)  (4,220,965)
7,192,756 6,764,522
Amounts due from subsidiaries Il B E=YN=IENI 4,507,495 2,426,051
11,700,251 9,190,573
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- MY B AT E. REBETFaR
free and the settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur KERHTITRITTAKATEEEE. ATFEX
in the foreseeable future. As the amounts are in substance SR ERANBDTHEABRISRE
a part of the Company’s net investments in subsidiaries, B—EB, HuRAARERITREIRES
they are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. o
The changes in impairment losses in respect of interests in MR A BN RMERETFERZZHU
subsidiaries during the year are as follows: :
Company
F: /NG
2017 2016
- ey v S
HK$'000 HK$'000
EmhFr BhFIT
At the beginning of the year == 4,220,965 4,520,491
Exchange adjustments CeiEEE 267,211 (299,526)
At the end of the year Fk 4,488,176 4,220,965
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13. MERBENEE (&%)

Details of the significant subsidiaries at the end of the FUBREEXR, EXMEATNIFEN

financial year are as follows:

:

Principal place
of business/

Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by the Company
11K /NG A
China Everbright Water Investment holding British Virgin 100 100
Investments Limited (“CEWIL”) EERR Islands (“BVI”)
FENERKSIRETRAT RBHRTRS
( "IKS|/E" )
Ocean Force International Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited REER REBHRREFD
Joyer International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
FHERFRERAT "R REYERRRD
Aqua Shine Group Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
R REE/RREED
China Everbright Water Investment holding, Singapore 100 100
International Pte. Ltd. technology R&D, Ny
FEYEAKESERAABIRA AT business development
and management
services
wrEER. RERIR.
WS REREERS
Everbright Sponge City Sponge City PRC 70 70
Development (Zhenjiang) construction, operation FE
Limited* and R&D
JeXistsigmaR (B1) BIR BEEmEIR. 1EENR
»nat 0173
Everbright Water Suizhou River restoration works PRC 78.4 N/A
Water Environment TERIE TR FE
Management Limited*
HARIKSHEM KRG EEBR
NE)
Everbright Water (Nanning) River restoration works PRC 79.6 N/A
Limited (‘EB Water Nanning”)* AERETRE FE

FARKS (A7) BRRE
( "FXRKSET" )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/

Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FEBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIWS iERRRIZIE = FEEFriFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF T HF
% %
Held by CEWIL
7k SIREER
Everbright Water (Qingdao) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited SR as
(“EW Qingdao Holdings”)
FRKSS (BB) ERERNE
( "FRKSBBESIER" )
Everbright Water (Zibo) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited R 't
FEAKS (EfE) RBRAF
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited REE ab
FERKSS  (FFFE) EREIRAE
Everbright Water (Wuxi) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited RS s
FERKS (TH) ERERAE
Everbright Water (Dezhou) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited R 't
FERIKSS (FEM) ZRBIRAT
Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Holdings Limited St as
HEKIKS (TRM) =RBIRAT
China Everbright Water Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Management Limited RS )
HEDERKSEEGRAT]
CEW Corporate Services Corporate services Hong Kong 100 100
Limited WPIRS i
FENERKSIRSERAT
Everbright Water (Suizhou) Investment holding Hong Kong 100 N/A
Holdings Limited St 't

FEAKS (REM) ERBIRAE]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

WASSHRRRBIE oo

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13. [IERABNEE ()
Principal place
of business/
Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by EW Qingdao Holdings
R KKSE BIERRIER
Everbright Water (Qingdao) Waste water treatment PRC 60 60
Limited TSIKAbIE FE
(“EB Water Qingdao”)*
HAKS (BB) BRAR
( "FKRKSBBES" )
Held by Everbright Water (Zibo) Holdings Limited
HB¥XAKSS (El8) ZEIRBRARIER
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited* Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
FEAKS (i) BRAF* 57K HE
Everbright Water (Zibo Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Zhoucun) Water Purification TSIKAbIE FE
Co., Ltd.*
FEAIKSS (EEE) 1$7KER
N
Everbright Water (Boxing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* S7KALEE HE
KRG (1B3%) BRAE*
Held by Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited
B¥XAKS (ElE) BRAEER
Zibo Everbright Water Energy Waste water source PRC 100 100
Development Company heat pump FE
Limited TS7KIEHRER
B EARKSREFF R BIRAT
Held by Everbright Water (Ji’nan) Holdings Limited
BXKKS (Fr) EIRARAENER
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) Waste water treatment PRC 95 95
Operating Limited* and operation services ==]E]
FAKS (BE) BEBRAE SR RIZERS
Everbright Water (Ji'nan Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Licheng) Limited* 757K R ==1E3|
FERIKSS (FrEalhiE) BIRAE*
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MISSRaRMIE

BE —F—CF+_A=1—HIHIFE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/

Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FEBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIWS iERRRIZIE = FEEFriFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF T HF
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Ji’nan) Holdings Limited (cont’d)
HXAKS (3F) ZIRBIRAENZR (48)
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* TSIKAbIE FE
FERIKSS (55F8) BIRAE*
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SRR FE
KRS (BEE) BRAE*
Everbright Water (Juxian) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* TSI FRE
FAKS (BR) BRAE*
Held by Everbright Water (Wuxi) Holdings Limited
H¥XAKS (F8h) EIRBIRARIER
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Waste water treatment PRC 70 70
Limited (‘EB Water Jianyin”)* TSIk FE
KKK (GIFE) BIRAE
( "FeRKSImR" )”
Everbright Reusable Water Reusable water PRC 100 100
(Jiangyin) Limited* FhKERIA HE
FERFKFIA (IFE) BRAF*
Everbright Water Treatment Waste water treatment PRC 100 N/A
(Jiangyin) Limited* and construction and FE

FEAKGIE (7IBR) BRAT*

maintenance of pipeline
network
TSKA IR R EREIR
FN4ESF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/7

WASSHRRRBIE oo

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13. MERBENEE (&%)
Principal place
of business/
Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities EE;ETE/ ownership interest
LEEM FES iERRREIZit = F LB FriFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tFE "TAF
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Dezhou) Holdings Limited
KK (B ) IZIRBRAENER
Everbright Water (Dezhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SRR FE
HHIKS (M) BIRAF
Everbright Water (Lingxian) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* S7KALIE HE
HRKSE (RE) BIRAT*
Held by Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Holdings Limited
BFXAKS (M) =RBIRAENER
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SR HE
FRIKSS (Fifr) BRAE*
Everbright Water Operating Waste water treatment PRC 51 51
(Xinyi) Limited* and reusable water |
FHRKBEBE (Fnfr) BRAF SRR K EFIA
Held by China Everbright Water Management Limited
HAPEXRAKSEERRAEIER
Everbright Reusable Water Reusable water PRC 100 100
(Nanjing) Limited* FhKERIA HE
HRFKFIA (Fm) BRAF*
Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Water investment and PRC 100 100
Limited* management FE
FRIKS (R BIRAE* IKSIRENERE
142 CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

REVEAIKSBIRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MISSRaRMIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/
Country of

incorporation

Proportion (%) of

Name of company Principal activities EE;E=E/ ownership interest
KFEM FEIWS iERREIZit = FEBIFSFREIELHE
2017 2016
—B—t& —FF
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited
H¥AKS (Rl BRARIEER
Beijing Hankesen Environmental R&D and consultation PRC 100 100
Technology Co., Ltd. on water treatment FRE
JERIFRIMERR B IR AT technology
KRR A S
RS
Everbright Water Investment Investment consulting PRC 100 N/A
Consulting (Shenzhen) Limited &% &iA FE
HAOKSIREmE (RYI) BIR
27
Held by Beijing Hankesen Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
HILSHIRFIMR R AR A Sz
Beijing Everbright Water Investment and PRC 100 100
Investment Management investment thE
Co., Ltd. management
ARSI REEFIRAT] SRRIGREE
Held by Beijing Everbright Water Investment Management Co., Ltd.
HIERAAKSBIREEEBRADIER
Everbright Water (Beijing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* TSIKAbIE FE
KARKS (dbR) BRAF
Everbright Water Purification Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Nanjing Limited TSI FE
HRKEFEERBERAE]
Everbright Water (Binzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited TSI FRE
FRIKS (EM) BIRAF
Sanmenxia Everbright Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Limited T57KANE ==]E3|
=ik AKSZEIRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRRMIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) M AENEE (£5)
Principal place
of business/
Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by Beijing Everbright Water Investment Management Co., Ltd. (cont'd)
HILERAKBIRZEERRATIER (88)
Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. Waste water treatment PRC 90 90
KERKKSBBRAE SRR HE
Everbright Water Technology R&D and consultation PRC 100 N/A
Development (Nanjing) Limited on technology FE
FHRKSRHRRE (FBBR) BIR IMRATARFFRLA
Y= R &I
Ji'nan Everbright Water Supply Water supply, PRC 80 N/A
Limited* construction and thE
FENAHIKERAE" operation of water
source and water
supply facility
KITREIRIEELR
HKEBEZIE. IETEHF
Held by Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd.
HAEFEKSHIRA =M
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Malanhe Waste Water 757K R ==[E3|
Treatment Co., Ltd.
REREMEERF SI=57K
RIEBIRAT]
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Chunliuhe Waste Water 757K R FE
Treatment Co., Ltd.
KIERAMEERFNAISK
RIEBIRAT]
Dalian Siergou Water Co., Ltd. Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
KIEF)LGXESBRAE] ey HE
Dalian Lvshun City Waste Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. T57KANE ==]E3|
RERIR 5 KRG RAT]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MISSRaRMIE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/
Country of

incorporation

Proportion (%) of

Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
ACIE B3 iERRREI I FEBIFRISFRBIXELHI
2017 2016
—B—tE —TEHF
% %
Held by Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (cont’d)
HRXEFEKSERARDIZE (L)
Dalian Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. 757K R FE
KERIR=E S EERAE
Dalian Dongda Environment Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Group Pulandian Water Co., SRR HE
Ltd.
KIERKIMEERAEL=EKF
BIRLAE
Dongda Group Zhuanghe Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd. 757K FE
RIAEREKSEIRAE
Panjin City Waste Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd. 757K FE
B KGERRAT
Anshan City Water Operating Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd. TS7KRbER FE
BIIHMKSEZEERATE
Dongda Group (Shenyang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Hunnan Water Co., Ltd. 757K R ==]E3|
RIAEHR (ULbH) EmkSE
FRAE]
Dandong Dongda Waste Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd. 757K FE
FRRIKSKGER R AT
Dongda Group Tongliao Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Co., Ltd. T57KAME FE
RIAERABITKSBIRAE
Dalian Puwan New District Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Dongda Waste Water T57KANE ==]E3|

Treatment Co., Ltd.
KEEBHXRATKE
BRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. USIRERMNE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

MiB AR (48)

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13.

Principal place
of business/

Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (cont’d)
HAXEFEKZERL =M (£2)
Dalian Bonded Area Dongda Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Waste Water Treatment TSIKAbIE FE
Co., Ltd.
REFRRXRASKEEGRAE
Held by Ocean Force International Limited
HOcean Force International Limited{Zhi&
Newsussex International Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited R REHRTRD
A ATERR AR AT
Biopower International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
EYNREERRERAE] REER REYERARS
New Efficient Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
FIMRBRAT R REYRRRD
Bio-Treat Resources Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
R RELERREED
Sky Billion Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
RIZBERAE] REER REHRTED
Ocean Master International Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited LRI RBHRREFD
Bio-Treat International Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
SHBERERAT R REERRRD
Held by Newsussex International Limited
HifiERRERRR AR
Sugian City Cheng Bei Water Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Treatment Co., Ltd.* 757K R ==]E3|

BEEBHI RS R RBRAT*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/

Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FEITE/ ownership interest
LEEMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by Biopower International Limited
BEYEhEEERRERARER
Sugian City Cheng Bei Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Wastewater Treatment T57KAN R ==]E3|
Co., Ltd.*
BEmiEd LSRR EAIR
YN=IM
Held by New Efficient Limited
HFHEERA EHERR
Everbright Water (Yangzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SRR FE
FHERIKSS (M) BRAE*
Held by Bio-Treat Resources Limited
HBio-Treat Resources Limited}z=ig
True Global Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
FrERBRAT QLRI RERRRS
Held by True Global Limited
MRk EEBRARDER
Everbright Water (Xianyang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* S7KALEE HE
FEAIKSS (RiPR) BRAE*
Held by Sky Billion Limited
HBX(ZBRAEER
Everbright River Basin River-basin ecological PRC 100 100
Remediation (Nanjing) restoration FE
Limited* EER
fXmERE (FR) BRAFE"
Everbright Water (Nanjing) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* TSI FRE

FEKKSE (FAR) BRQE"
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/

WASSHRRRBIE oo

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13. [IERABNEE ()
Principal place
of business/
Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities FEBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIWS iERRRIZIE = FEEFriFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—F—t&FE —“FEF
% %
Held by Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited
HXAKS (BAR) BRAEER
Everbright Industrial Waste Waste water treatment PRC 60 60
Water Treatment Nanjing 757K R ==]E3|
Limited
KR T RKIBFERBIRAE
Held by Ocean Master International Limited
HOcean Master International Limited}=ig
Oriental Fortune International Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
Limited R &
FIKERRERAT
Held by Bio-Treat International Limited
HEBEFFERADER
World Pioneer Investments Investment holding BVI 100 100
Limited R REGERTRD
EFRCEBIRAT
Everbright Water (Lianyungang) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* TSR FE
KKKS (E=B) BRAE
Everbright Water (Suzhou) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SRR FE
HRKS (M) BIRAE
Held by World Pioneer Investments Limited
HWorld Pioneer Investments Limitedz=hg
Everbright Water (Kunshan) Waste water treatment PRC 100 100
Limited* SR HE
HAKSE (BU) BRAE*
Held by Aqua Shine Group Limited
HAqua Shine Group Limited =A%
Victor Best Holdings Limited Investment holding BVI 100 100
SRR REH RIS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =+—HIRIEFE

MSIRMNE

13.

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

13. MEXASNEE (£8)

Principal place
of business/
Country of

incorporation

Proportion (%) of

Name of company Principal activities FBITE/ ownership interest
LERMR FEIS iERRRIZIE = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—B—tF THF
% %
Held by Victor Best Holdings Limited
HVictor Best Holdings Limited#z=p%
Tianjin Hanquan Environment Investment holding PRC 100 100
Technology Limited* RS FE
RBNRIMRRHERA T
Held by Tianjin Hanquan Environment Technology Limited
HBXENRINMFREBRAEER
Jiangsu Tongyong Environment Construction PRC 100 100
Engineering Co., Ltd. engineering FE
1B G TREAIRAT BIETE

Registered under the laws of the People’s Republic of China as
foreign investment enterprises.

Registered under the laws of the People’s Republic of China as
Sino—foreign co—operation joint ventures.

All significant subsidiaries are audited by member firm of Ernst &
Young Global in China for group consolidation purpose. For this
purpose, a subsidiary is considered significant as defined under
the Singapore Exchange Limited Listing Manual if its net tangible
assets represent 20% or more of the Group’s consolidated net
tangible assets, or if its pre—tax profits account for 20% or more
of the Group’s consolidated pre—tax profits.

EW Qingdao Holdings, a wholly—owned subsidiary of the
Company is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water
Qingdao’s registered capital. The remaining 40% registered
capital is contributed by the PRC non—controlling interest
stakeholder. EW Qingdao Holdings is fully entitled to the net
profit of EB Water Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint
venture period. From the 15th year of the joint venture period
onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared
by EW Qingdao Holdings and the PRC non—controlling interest
stakeholder on a 98:2 basis.

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB
Water Nanning’s registered capital. The remaining 20.3526%
registered capital is contributed by three PRC non—controlling
interest stakeholders. Except for one of non—controlling interest
stakeholders, who is committed to contributing 0.0097% of
registered capital, shall not be entitled to the net profit of
EB Water Nanning, the Company and other two PRC non-
controlling interest stakeholders share the net profit of EB Water
Nanning on the basis of their respective proportion of registered
capital contribution.

BgiE:
(a)

(b)

T}EEF EEEEMRZAIEREE

REPEEREMHIATIHEESE

ik,

FEEERBATNBRARERSH
MERTETE. Mitme,
RS CrOF MR, SN
NRER AT SR a S ET AT,
BFESHA20%HIA L, SHABIEAT)
BRER A SRS SRR RN
20%=LLE, MiEWEADSEINE

o

HAIKES B BEBREE NN A S S
B60% EREA, HARA0%IITAAR
FIrhE SRS AR, JAKSS
ESERT AR NS 8EE
KAKEEDBZSER., MBS+ AE
aEiE, KAkSERZARFIGH
KAk B B FE TR R
RIRI8 22 LIS,

ARNEEEENNAIKSET79.6474%
BOEMBER. H3R20.3526%HEMEA
H=FPEIHERNERERLHE. RT
HEEIEN0.0097 % ER R ARIIFI=RRAY
TRIR, TNEEHAKSETNEE
Foh, RAREREMRE R EIFERER
é—?ggﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁtlﬁ{ﬁﬂ?ﬁ FERKGSrEET
UERA,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/

M35 HRERMIE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

13. Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 13. [IERABNEE ()

Notes: (cont'd) BE:  (82)

(c) As at 31 December 2017, the bank loans from International © F-—T—tE+-B=+—8, &
Finance Corporation were secured by shares of certain /L\\%E ﬁ@ﬁﬂéﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁ'?}?u
subsidiaries, which amounted to HK$906,410,000 (2016: EFWEATNRMGEIKE, £
HK$516,874,000). F#EF906,410,0005T (ZF—A

&: 816,874,0007T) .
14. Interest in an associate 14. BEXEING

Group

AEHE
2017 2016
—3—tF “FREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
i1 e BhTT

Qindao Haibohe Water Operating BEEERTKSEEER

Limited NI 1,445 1,327

In December 2016, the Group has disposed of its partial FoZ—NEF+=H, AERATESEX

equity interest in Qingdao Haibohe Water Operating Limited ZEFGRATEIIETFS SIS HTIKSE

(formerly known as Qingdao Everbright Water Operating EEERAT (BIRESNAKESRE

Limited) (“Qingdao Haibohe”) to Qingdao Water Group RAS) ( "S3SHE" ) NBO’R

Co., Ltd. Upon completion of the transfer, the Group’s N, Bil=gE, AERFSEEEIN

equity interest in Qingdao Haibohe was reduced from B E99% /D EA9%, 5SS TR

99% to 49% and Qingdao Haibohe was classified as an IS A EFREEE A E,

associate of the Group accordingly.

Qingdao Haibohe provides services to the Maidao SR NS BNEE SRS

Waste Water Treatment Plant and Haibohe Waste Water SIS KRR IR ARSS,

Treatment Plant in Qingdao.

Details of the associate at the end of the financial year are FMBERESR, Ba T ET:

as follows:

Principal place
of business/
Country of
incorporation Proportion (%) of
Name of company Principal activities EE;ETE/ ownership interest
LEEMR FEIS iERREIZit = FEEFRiFFREIRELE)
2017 2016
—F—tF —FF
% %

Qingdao Haibohe Water Waste water treatment PRC 49 49

Operating Limited S7KAbIE FE

BEERIKSEERRAS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MSIRMNE

14.

Interest in an associate (cont’d)

The summarised financial information in respect of Qindao
Haibohe Water Operating Limited, based on its financial
statements and a reconciliation with the carrying amount of
the investment in the consolidated financial statements are

14.

BREQTNG (£)

BETFEHUSIREUR SEEMSIREMRE
WEESFAOXNW, 53@8RUSERt
BEET:

as follows:
Summarised statements of financial position sSIRREHIE
2017
—s—tfF
HK$'000
BhT
Current assets mEN&rE 45,545
Non-current assets IERENEF 329
Total assets BEr 45,874
Current liabilities stk (47,099)
Non-current liabilities etk -
Total liabilities Bk (47,099)
Net assets BT (1,225)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  ZAEFZERZLL A 49%
The Group’s share of net assets ANERAR 5EFRFDER (600)
Goodwill on acquisition WEF= R & 2,045
Carrying amount of the investment ENKENE 1,445
Summarised statement of comprehensive income L HEIREERITIE
2017
—F—tF
HK$'000
BhT T
Revenue W 80,458
Profit after tax from continuing e ERERIE
operations 323
Other comprehensive income HithemEWES 41
Total comprehensive income SHEWESER 364
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

15.

Service concession financial receivables 15. SERBHEHHTFEESRIEXNERIRISRIR
Group
FEH
2017 2016
st “E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhHF BmTIT
Non—current IEREN 10,313,724 8,179,732
Current e 1,200,539 791,609
11,514,263 8,971,341

The significant aspects of the service concession
arrangements are summarised as follows:

(@)

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the local government
authorities (the “grantors”) for water/waste water
treatment plants which are located in the PRC
for concession periods ranging between 10 years
to 32 years. Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain water/waste
water treatment plants in the PRC. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste water treatment
plants in good condition. The grantors guarantee that
the Group will receive minimum annual payments
in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry
of the concession periods, the water/waste water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be
transferred to the grantors.

The service concession arrangements do not contain
renewal options. The standard rights of the grantors
to terminate include failure of the Group to construct,
upgrade or operate the waste water treatment plants
and in the event of a material breach of the terms of
the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to
terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for water/waste water treatment service
from the grantors and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements.

RESFIFEENZHNEE S ISR

T:

(a)

FERZHWEATS SHBAFH
B (EBRA" ) BTRENE
FK/BKEE T TR EN
T HITFEEPRN T TFE=T
—F. RIEZFRSHTEENS
H, AERmRTT. BiENR/ETT
KE. EBEREFMLTHER
IK/EIREEERT . AEEABREE
FEKE RPN, VA
fRIE, MBEXTHIMS, FEER
AIESFREERERIEIR. 5T
GEHBHE, KISKEE R
BXRIRIEISHEIRINAFTE.

IRBFATFEENZHA B S5
#. BNAZ TR ENZHRY
IREAI IS AERARAERIE.
FHRBUEEIEETS KR, LR
NEREEiER. RNERALIE
FRFEENZHINNATRERFIR
&+ REEMIRRUAMEUK/Z7K4E
HEIRSE, LAIMUEETEE
.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

15. Service concession financial receivables (cont’d) 15. SESSIFESPHEENERRNICGRIR
(&%)

(b)  Water/waste water treatment plants with service by FIE—HLF+B=+—H,
concession financial receivables amounting to HESRKRSEFLRENBEXNS
HK$3,958,932,000 (2016: HK$2,163,047,000) as BN ISR InE M 3,958,932,0005¢
at 31 December 2017 are pledged to secure loans (TE—NEF: #BmM2,163,047,000
taken up by the Group (note 20). Service concession 7o) B9K/SKANE EEEE S
financial receivables totalling HK$11,514,263,000 REBRAKNER (FFiE20) . F
(2016: HK$8,971,341,000) bear interest at rates _F—tFt+"B=1—H, 5k
ranging from 4.90% to 7.83% (2016: 4.90% to SRR ENIERAIS RN R
7.83%) per annum, of which HK$589,969,000 RER#EM11,514,263,00075T (
(2016: HK$402,996,000) are due from a non- T/ N5 #BmM8,971,341,000
controlling shareholder and HK$617,792,000 7o) , HIRFEEZR490%ET7.83%
(2016: HK$593,009,000) are due from a related (ZE—EFE: 4.90%FE7.83%)
company as at 31 December 2017. The amounts itR, E4i#Em589,969,0005T
are not yet due for payment and will be settled by (ZE—RE: #BmM402,996,000
proceeds of water treatment to be generated during 7C) AIRUEFEAR BRI T
the operating periods of the service concession 617,792,000 (ZE—7F : B
arrangements. Amounts billed will be transferred to M593,009,0005c) JIRIUTRKERLY
trade receivables (note 17). No impairment loss was FRIR, ZEFIE RIS T,
recognised by the Group at 31 December 2017 and HERSERFELENHEE
2016 in respect of the service concession financial RABIFRF= A RK MBI . B
receivables. RESTHFEZR/BIKIR (BFiE

17) « FTTE—EHFERIFE—R
F+ZA=1+—H, x&EEAHTH
SRSEFEENEXAISRIRIK
IR EIREK,
16. Inventories 16. =&
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
Bt “E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhHF BmTIT
At cost: A
Raw materials and consumables BN ZFER 14,342 14,323
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

M35 HRRMIE

17.  Trade and other receivables 17. RUSTMCER B EL{th RUSTER TR
Group Company
FER F28)
2017 2016 2017 2016
—B—tF “FNEF ~E—tF EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
#hFT BHTT L1t wan BHFT
Non-current E | 35
Other receivables E{th SR FRIR 10,515 9,863 = -
Current inah
Trade receivables RIITHEER 413,777 429,595 = -
Amounts due from VL) E=YNE
subsidiaries EI] - - 1,834,010 2,096,933
Other receivables and LAt IBGRIR
sundry deposits LS 240,358 84,301 - -
Prepayments T FRTN 151,724 74,843 = -
805,859 588,739 1,834,010 2,096,933
Total RER 816,374 598,602 1,834,010 2,096,933
Trade receivables represent revenue from operation R Efesk iz EREZWAR SR
services and the billed amounts of the service concession SR E NGRS N ISR E A
financial receivables. Trade receivables are non-interest AR, MEHEEARTRIE, E(=SHER
bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days credit terms. —igH30FE90H., BHE_E—tF+—
Included in trade receivables of the Group, HK$20,456,000 B=+—H, mEit\KEFRARKIKEEIER
(2016: HK$19,600,000) are due from a non-controlling IR, #mM20,456,0007C (ZF—/5F:
shareholder and HK$10,937,000 (2016: HK$10,546,000) #119,600,0005T) FRIIEIERRAR SR
are due from a related company as at 31 December 2017. MM 10,937,0005c (ZFE—NF: &
110,546,0005T) FIRIKRER A BT
The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are AANBZ MK BATTINCHKR, &8
unsecured, interest—free and recoverable on demand. R R ERRERT AT (A,
All of the current portion of the above balances are BARRE R E RS S T F—ERW
expected to be recovered or realised within one year. {EES N
As at 31 December 2017, included in other receivables of F_S—tH+"B=+—H, x&EFH
the Group is a consideration receivable of HK$29,657,000 eI IR E BN E =T HERIT
(2016: HK$29,790,000) due from third parties arising from KT S IREZEHF R E NI £
disposals of service concession rights held by the Sugian #M29,657,0005T (ZFE—/N5F: B
plants. 29,790,0007T) .
The Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk is RERARANTFEEZ (=BAXETFHEE
disclosed in note 30(c). 30(c)ifEE,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L SRR

18.  Fixed deposit with maturity period over three months 18. Z=ABLALEEER
Group Company
AEEH F: /NG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tfF —FEF —F—tfF “FREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhT T BHTIT E#hT T BHTIT
Fixed deposit TEHIERR 83,125 - - —
As at 31 December 2017, the fixed deposit had a maturity F_E—tF+"B=+—H, Ei~F
of 180 days from the date of acquisition. The balances were MEMWXHI180HFI. REAXEIR
principal-protected with an annual interest rate of 3.8%. b, FEHRZESI3.8%,
19. Cash and cash equivalents 19. MERMEFMNY
Group Company
AEH ¥ /NG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tfF “FNEF —E—tfF “FREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi- 1 2 e BhTIT i1 2 e BhTIT

Cash on hand and FEUERRT

bank balances RER 2,074,414 1,359,401 27,783 30,716
Short—term deposits ~ $GHAFER 547,278 543,340 = -
Balances in financial SRR

institutions 95,000 - - -

2,716,692 1,902,741 27,783 30,716
For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash HEATSREENS, NERMESEN
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprised: YIEEE -
Group
FEH]
2017 2016
—T—tF “BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EmhF BhFIT
Cash and cash equivalents MERMESENY 2,716,692 1,902,741
Less: Restricted bank balances W ZIRTRITERK (547,278) (543,340)
Less: Balances in financial i SRR
institutions (95,000) -

2,074,414 1,359,401
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

19. Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d) 19. MEFRMEEMY ()
FE—tHF+"B=1+—H, £/E
FEREWIHE21HEHE. REALER
B, FRitaEIRER4.4%.

As at 31 December 2017, the balances in financial
institutions had a maturity period of 21 days from the date
of acquisition. The balances were principal-protected and
carry the expected rate of return of 4.4% per annum.

ZIRFIRI TR CIRIRAIRITENIRIT R

The restricted bank balances are pledged to banks for bank

loans (note 20).

SRR (BEiE20) .

20. Borrowings 20. &
Group Company
F:3-SE | ¥ VNG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tF —FE —F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT E#hFr BhFIT
Non—current 3Eifiah
Bank loans RITEGK 3,546,995 3,366,091 896,655 1,203,692
Corporate bond NEfES 1,181,035 - 1,181,035 -
4,728,030 3,366,091 2,077,690 1,203,692
Current i
Bank loans RITEIR 1,903,722 1,521,407 1,356,402 756,892
6,631,752 4,887,498 3,434,092 1,960,584
Group Company
F: 35| F: /NG
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF FEF —E—tF FREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b T e BHTIT bl e e BHTIT
Repayable: VAN =2
— within 1 year - —FR 1,903,722 1,521,407 1,356,402 756,892
— after 1 year but - —FLUEE
within 5 years RELUA 3,897,204 2,736,178 1,665,766 674,421
— after 5 years -RFEUE 830,826 629,913 411,924 529,271
6,631,752 4,887,498 3,434,092 1,960,584
156 CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L SRR

Borrowings (cont’d) 20. B (8D)
Term and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as KBRS TN 4T :
follows:
Nominal
Year of interest rate Carrying
Currency maturity per annum Face value  amount
&b FUHRLE(R BYEFHE ‘E HKESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhTT BhTr
Group RER
2017 St
Secured bank loans BIBRITER
—floating interest rate ~ —FEIFIER usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,032,986 1,017,838
e
— floating interest rate —F oI RMB 2019 - 2032 90% to 100% 1,164,539 1,164,539
AR of PBOC rate*
FEARRTHE
A990%ZE100%*
— fixed interest rate —EEF=R RMB 2019 2.88% to 2.90% 525,184 525,184
AET 2.88%%2.90%
Unsecured bank loans  FiiBRITHRR
— floating interest rate —FENFIER RMB 2018 - 2038 88% to 100% 1,281,158 1,276,764
AR of PBOC rate*
FEARRTHE
HI88%ZE100%*
— floating interest rate ~ —iZ&FI= usD 2018 1.20% t0 1.90% + 899,099 898,219
e LIBOR
1.20%%E1.90% +
LIBOR
— floating interest rate ~ —ZEIFIER HK$ 2018-2020 1.00%to 1.75% + 569,500 568,173
Bmh HIBOR
1.00%ZE1.75% +
HIBOR
Unsecured corporate P N1
bond &5
— fixed interest rate -EER=R RMB 2022 4.55% 1,187,500 1,181,035
ART

6,659,966 6,631,752
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COMSEEMEE et

20. Borrowings (cont’d) 20. £33 (88)
Nominal
Year of interest rate Carrying
Currency maturity per annum Face value  amount
(7] SUHREE{R BYEFE [ = KEEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
BihTr -1l
Group (cont’d) AEH (8)
2016 —FRE
Secured bank loans BIRITRER
—floating interest rate ~ —FEIFIER usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,086,680 1,068,827
e
— floating interest rate —FEIRE RMB 2019-2023  90% to 100% 834,994 830,034
ARM of PBOC rate*
PEARRTHRER
A990%Z2100%*
— fixed interest rate —EEF= RMB 2019 2.88% to 2.90% 498,920 498,920
AERM 2.88%%2.90%
Unsecured bank loans  FHEHRRITEFR
— floating interest rate —F oI RMB 2017 -2026  90% to 120% 1,597,960 1,597,960
AR of PBOC rate*
FEARRTHER
AJ90%Z=120%*
— floating interest rate ~ —ZEIFIR usD 2017 -2018  1.20% to 1.90% + 892,630 891,757
e LIBOR
1.20%%1.90% +
LIBOR

4,911,184 4,887,498
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L SRR

Borrowings (cont’d) 20. 833 (88)
Nominal
Year of interest rate Carrying
Currency maturity per annum Face value  amount
{7 FUHALE(R BYEHE mE KESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhTrT BhTr
Company b /|
2017 —5—tF
Secured bank loans BIfRRITER
— floating interest rate o SIS usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,032,986 1,017,838
e
Unsecured bank loans  FoHEiRRITHER
— floating interest rate - R usD 2018 1.20% to 1.90% + 899,099 898,219
e LIBOR
1.20%%1.90% +
LIBOR
— floating interest rate - FEFER HK$ 2018 - 2020 1.00% to 1.50% + 337,000 337,000
Bmh HIBOR
1.00%%1.50% +
HIBOR
Unsecured corporate TR AT
bond 5
— fixed interest rate - EER= RMB 2022 4.55% 1,187,500 1,181,035
N0
3,456,585 3,434,092
2016 -
Secured bank loans BIRRITER
— floating interest rate - FERR usD 2025 2.50% + LIBOR 1,086,680 1,068,827
e
Unsecured bank loans  FCHEIRRITHR
— floating interest rate - &R usD 2017 -2018  1.20% to 1.90% + 892,630 891,757
e LIBOR
1.20%%1.90% +
LIBOR
1,979,310 1,960,584
* PBOC rate denotes the People’s Bank of China base lending * FEARRTRRZETREARRITHN
rate EOERTRIR,
HIBOR denotes the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate HIBORZIEFBIRITRIAFEFIZR,
LIBOR denotes the London Interbank Offered Rate LIBORZEE(CHURTTRIARFEFIZ,
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M35 HRRMIE

BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

20.

Borrowings (cont’d)

On 22 June 2017, the Company was approved to issue
the corporate bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
up to RMB 2,500,000,000 in a single or multiple tranches
within 24 months. The first tranche of the corporate bonds
of RMB 1,000,000,000 was issued to qualified investors
in the PRC on 24 July 2017 with a nominal interest rate
of 4.55% and a maturity of 5 years. The interest shall be
paid annually and the principal of RMB 1,000,000,000
would be paid after the maturity. According to the terms of
the corporate bonds, the Company is entitled to adjust the
interest rate of the corporate bonds after three years from
the issue date and the bondholders have an option to sell
the corporate bonds back to the Company at a nominal
price in the meanwhile.

Secured banking facilities of the Group are secured
by certain revenue, receivables and intangible assets
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements and bank balances of the Group. Such
banking facilities, amounting to HK$2,924,874,000
(2016: HK$2,554,133,000), were utilised to the extent of
HK$2,707,561,000 (2016: HK$2,397,781,000). Among
the secured banking facilities, HK$352,157,000 (2016:
HK$522,662,000) are guaranteed by the Company with
such facilities of HK$352,157,000 (2016: HK$522,662,000)
utilised at 31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2017, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to HK$4,589,334,000 (2016: HK$4,398,347,000),
were utilised to the extent of HK$2,743,156,000 (2016:
HK$2,489,717,000). All of the non—current interest—bearing
borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of the
non—current interest—bearing borrowings is expected to
be settled within one year. Among the unsecured banking
facilities, HK$949,610,000 (2016: HK$1,536,736,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and such facilities of
HK$866,485,000 (2016: HK$915,776,000) were utilised at
31 December 2017.

20.

85 (8)

FE—tEABZ1+H, AATEE
EFZ+HEMNBRUBRERSELFAA
TAEEERS/HART2,500,000,000
TGRS, FE—tFtHA=+
NE, A EEFEEEERERELRT
#E—it AR 1,000,000,0005cA B &
%, BNFIERAL55%, HARAFALE,

MEREST, PBEHEAEART
1,000,000,0007¢. IRIBATMREIE
R, AFIENERTHIER=FREEA
DERENFIR, SER, FEFEAT
ERBATREUB MNEHELR A E.

AERZ BIRIPRTIRIERLETEAE
BIiRFISFEENZAMERAIN. M
AR TR BT LARARIT KA,
ZFRITIRIENEM2,924,874,0007T (
ZF—7\E: #M2,554,133,0007T)
LR BFABM2,707,561,0005T (ZF
—NE: #2,397,781,0007T) . EH
IRRRATIRIET, HF#m352,157,000
7T (2B #M522,662,0007T)
HAXDRMER. T2FE—tF+Z
B=+—H, LRRETENREIMN
#mM352,157,0005c (ZF—7\F: B
522,662,0007T) .

F-E—+tE+“B=+—H, LK
HIRITIR{ENHEM4,589,334,0005T (
—Z—NE: #B4,398,347,0005T)
, HhEshAEm2,743,156,0005T (
—ZE—NE: #BM2,489,717,0005T)
. TEERNMTERTIRBERBEAN
. MIERDITERAEFST—F
RiEE., ELEBRTEES, HPB
949,610,0005c (ZE—7F: &M
1,536,736,0005T) HHALNEHRMHIER.
FIE—tEF+TB=+—H, £tiAE
EPENEEENEM866,485,0007T
(ZF—7"E: #B™915,776,0007T) .
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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20.

Borrowings (cont’d)

Banking facilities of HK$3,377,205,000 (2016:
HK$3,237,392,000) are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios
as at 31 December 2017. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. At 31 December 2017, such facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$2,878,162,000 (2016:
HK$2,616,432,000). The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
30(d). As at 31 December 2017, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
Certain banking facilities also restrict some of the
Company’s subsidiaries from declaring or paying dividends
to shareholders without obtaining prior written approval
of the banks or require the Group to process waste water
treatment operating fees via respective financial institutions.

Included in “Bank loans” are the following loans from a

20.

85 (8)

FIE—tEF+THA=1+—H, &€§:Ah
#M3,377,205,0005C (ZB—/NE: &
/M3,237,392,0007t) RURITIREMTS
ETEXAERAVSLERIFIAER.
ERERBERBXREAOER, WBERK
N EHMNEKREER, FTE—t&E
+ZB=+—H., EXEECEBm
2,878,162,0005c (ZFE—/"5F: BM
2,616,432,0007t) . AEASERGE
BXHAZTNEEER. ~AERASER
NS A — B THIE30(d). F
—F—tE+ZBA=1t—R, * &EFHE
EREXIZIURENFINER. ETHRT
BETRFEAADETHBATEAREER
RIRITERIPEIVET, RRESEIRES
TR, SERAERABIIEENMS
HISRAMIESKAMRIEE 25,

RITEMEETIRXEKRITRANR

related party bank: Vs
Group
AEE
2017 2016
—F—tF BN
HK$'000 HK$'000
bi-{i e BhTT
Loans from a related party bank KRERSRITIR AR - 32,499
Company =15

The Company provided guarantees to banks to secure
banking facilities provided to certain Company’s
subsidiaries. Intra—group financial guarantees comprise
guarantees granted by the Company to banks in respect of
banking facilities amounting to HK$1,301,767,000 (2016:
HK$2,059,398,000), which include HK$1,218,642,000
(2016: HK$1,438,438,000) drawn down as at 31 December
2017. The periods in which the financial guarantees expire
are as follows:

RRBFRITREER, (FAETHWE
NEBRGRITRENER. EEART
B SEREERANDNETAE
M1,301,767,0007T (ZF—7\5F: B
2,059,398,0005T) AYIRITIRIEMMERTT
RUNBRESTEEHE—_T—tF+
B=1+—HERAIEM1,218,642,000
7T (ZF—/REF: #Bm1,438,438,000
7T) « WMSERREHDRNT

Company
¥ VNG|

2017 2016
—F—t# —EBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTT
Within 1 year —EFLR 235,844 490,275
After 1 year but within 5 years —FLUSERFEUR 982,798 948,163
1,218,642 1,438,438
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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21. Trade and other payables 21. RIS B Eth RS FRIR
Group Company
r: -3 FAF
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tF TEREF —F—t&F TENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
E&hFr BhFIT E&hFrT BmFIT
Current il
Trade payables RZIIKFR 1,124,924 499,315 - -
Amounts due to fellow IVENIEESRIE
subsidiaries YN=TE/I] - 150,182 = -
Amounts due to RSHEAT]
subsidiaries B - - 105,889 345
Amounts due to AR faal)al: i
intermediate holding PEIFRIA
companies - 78,336 - -
Amounts due to an R —EEE
associate PN EIFRIA 7,116 1,555 = -
Dividend payable AT R 22,444 - = -
Interest payable NATFIR 43,963 6,467 43,805 6,429
Other creditors and HAB R TR
accrued expenses TR ERF 355,118 201,383 5,837 13,881
1,553,565 937,238 155,531 20,655
As at 31 December 2017, other creditors include F_E—tF+"HB=1+—H, EfR{fT
a guarantee deposit of HK$14,144,000 (2016: HINEEH BN T —BaI= SR a0
HK$14,249,000) from a former director of a subsidiary. FigeBm14,144,00050 (ZE—HF:
#Bm14,249,0007T) .
Trade payables totalling HK$982,950,000 (2016: F_E—tF+"H=+—H, Hit+B
HK$411,797,000) represent construction payables for the M982,950,0005¢ (ZEFE—7RTF: B
Group’s Build—Transfer, Build—Operate—Transfer and certain 411,797,00050) BIR{TREGR N ANERE
Build-Own—Operate arrangements as at 31 December EERE. Bt mE-ERh e TEE-A
2017. BIEETH N BIE TR TR,
As at 31 December 2017, amounts due to the intermediate F_E—tEF+"-A=1+—H, NfIHaE
holding companies was Nil (2016: HK$78,336,000). EIRATSFINSREAE (CZE—NE: B
m78,336,0007%) .
As at 31 December 2017, amounts due to fellow F_E2E—tF+"_A=1+—H, NfIER
subsidiaries was Nil (2016: HK$150,182,000). MBATMIARMAT (ZE—RF: B
m150,182,0007%) .
The amounts due to an associate of the Group and REFAMNF—EEEE NSNS AN
the amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are M EABRRINGHR,. B8, HM|
unsecured, interest—free and repayable on demand. IRERFEATEIR,
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Deferred tax liabilities 22. BIERINGAE
Group
FEHE
2017 2016
—FT—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hTT BhTIT
Deferred tax liabilities BRI {5R 1,270,846 1,051,692
Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year: FRBIERR ARSI T
Service
concession
arrangements  Undistributed
and intangible profits of
assets subsidiaries
IRSBIFHFEEN [RIEVAGIE S Others Total
THER TR &= S EeFE Hifth Sk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT EhTT EhTT EhTT
Group FEHE
At 1 January 2016 FEF—HF
—B—H 956,118 113,364 (14,259) 1,055,223
Exchange adjustments ICoeiEEE (66,053) (8,782) 1,275 (73,560)
Recognised in profit or FHREPHIA
loss (note 9) (BfHiE9) 48,376 21,653 - 70,029
At 31 December 2016 FE—FEF
and 1 January 2017 +—-—B=+—H
R_F—tE
—B—H 938,441 126,235 (12,984) 1,051,692
Exchange adjustments CeaEE 61,811 8,785 (822) 69,774
Recognised in profit or FHREEPHIA
loss (note 9) (BFiE9) 123,841 25,539 - 149,380
At 31 December 2017 F_E—tEF
+—B=1+—H 1,124,093 160,559 (13,806) 1,270,846
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22. Deferred tax liabilities (cont’d) 22. BIEMIRGAE ()
Unrecognised deferred tax assets KGN B BITE~
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect AERFFRH T I E A BIERR IR
of the following items, because it is not probable that future 7=, REARERIAATREARKATRER
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can BrwfmERmSAEREBLUEH.
use the benefits therefrom.
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hFr BhFIT
Tax losses expiring within 1 year BF—EFRRIHINHRS SR 14,970 22,330
Tax losses expiring after 1 year BF—FRERFREEN
but within 5 years ESIR 83,184 81,870
98,154 104,200
23. Share capital 23. &
Group and Company
FERRE LT
2017 2016
==t —EBRE
No. of No. of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
EiEazEE EiEREE
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
Tz EhTr Tz #hFT
Authorised share capital:  EERS:
At the beginning and end FHIREER
of the year 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares of SizmEsm
HK$1.00 each, issued 1.005T, B%17
and fully paid: REE:
At the beginning of the year 5] 2,609,908 2,609,908 2,608,014 2,608,014
Issue of shares pursuant RIELABRARTTRY
to a scrip dividend scheme  &1TA&% 15,734 15,734 10,177 10,177
Share buy—back i E - - (8,283) (8,283)

2,625,642 2,625,642 2,609,908 2,609,908
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MSIRMNE

23.

24.

Share capital (cont’d) 23. BRE (4E)
During the year, the Company declared the dividend KNTDFERESLUER0.003 75 104K
of SGD0.0037 per ordinary share for the financial year TTEBRES B __E—NEVBEERNF
ended 31 December 2016. According to the result of an H, RIBANERESNMESIEEFLLE
election between a cash dividend and a scrip dividend by KREERER, AT EMEIRF
shareholders of the Company, dividends of SGD2,183,081 2,183,081 c, F-B—LE,H
were settled in cash and 15,733,870 shares were issued —t+ - HiEEmEEES SRR RIE
on 22 June 2017 to settle the remaining dividend payable BB AR &1T15,733,87008E @ARAE D
of SGD7,473,578. Accordingly, the number of issued Az HRIG7,47 3,57 8F N3 ToRIBEFY .
ordinary shares of the Company was increased by 0.6% to N, AAEERTEZEREEHIEINE
2,625,641,871 shares. 2,625,641,8718%, 110.6%.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EERBREENKEANERIKRS, F
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to BENEREAS FRBREHE KRR
one vote per ordinary share at meetings. All shares rank —EMLtLHS5IRE, ERMDED 54
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. NERRE D EEE RSN,
Reserves 24. fESF
Group Company
F:3-SE | F: VNG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tF —FE —F—tF R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhFr BhFIT E#hFr BhFIT
Share premium AR 1,266,248 1,240,300 56,198 30,250
Foreign currency HhhiEEE
translation reserve (22,051) (579,620) (492,810) (1,084,703)
Statutory reserve EEMES 200,799 155,635 = -
Contributed surplus  BINBRIES
reserve 1,229,302 1,229,302 7,639,082 7,639,082
Other reserves Hithfitgg (2,181) (2,181) 64,953 64,953
Retained earnings REBERFI 2,559,424 2,144,843 79,382 77,524
5,231,541 4,188,279 7,346,805 6,727,106

(@)  Share premium

The share premium account may be applied only for
the purposes specified in the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

During the year, the Company allotted and issued
15,733,870 new ordinary shares to ordinary
shareholders who had elected to participate in the
scrip dividend scheme. Accordingly, the Company
recognised share premium of HK$26,116,299 arising
from the issuance of such shares and the additional
listing fee of SGD30,000 (HK$167,993) would be
recognised as a reduction to share premium.

(@)  BREiEH

RADENMIKF NI BT (BRA—
NN\—FREE) REERE.

AKABFEARMEES SRR
BitRz EBRBREEARET
15,773,870/ @A, M,
ANBTEMIAKRIT EIRBRD AT
EZ2RDENHET26,116,299
T, ARITHEEREENEE
#£30,0005I03%oT (78 167,993
7T) BMBRADEMN IR,
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BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

24.

Reserves (cont’d)

(b)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from that of the
Group’s presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Foreign Enterprise
Law applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC,
wholly—owned subsidiaries are required to make
appropriation to a statutory reserve. At least 10%
of the statutory after tax profits as determined in
accordance with the applicable PRC accounting
standards and regulations must be allocated to the
statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the
reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, the statutory reserve may be used
to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus reserve

The balance arose from the reduction of share
premium after offsetting the accumulated losses.
Pursuant to the special resolution at the Special
General Meeting of the Company on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to credit of the
Company’s share premium was transferred to the
contributed surplus reserve and the contributed
surplus reserve of HK$4,470,556,000 was utilized
to offset against the accumulated losses of the
Company as of that date.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise share option reserve,
capital reserve and other reserves.

24.

s (88)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

INTIREREE

SrhiREEEISREREETNESA
ERIHREEHARAIEINLS A5
RRATFERIC O ER.

EERE

RIEERTHERBEAT (S
%) |, EBEMBLREIHEE
fESEEHIkE. RIBERNTES
THENRAE, ZD10%AEER
REBNASEEEAERS, BE
RiHERE S IAENRBATEME
AEI50%AMIE, FREXRFENR
HitE, IEEMETRTIREE
R SIREEIMEARRIEMER
x, EEHEEAEATATENRE
REIRFRITIRE.

HABREE

W REMAFRRITSREERN
BHEm. RE-_S—ASF+Z
BT+HRBZETHAANBRRE
ASFHBTANSEIRINE, AN T
BRADENMNEHKESRETR
EIREMNBRES. B, Bh
4,470,556,000TTHIM N B IES
HRTREAATDEHEZANRLT
SR,

BfthfEe

HitbtE S LIEiNEE. B4AMES
R R fthEE.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

25. Earnings per share 25. SEREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) FIREINEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated on ERERBNIZEEARNTRERMN
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to S AEFARFRUAVBEERE &
shareholders of the Company divided by the T BRI EIYEGTE.,
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.
Group
FEH
2017 2016
—T—tF —TREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhFr BhFT
Profit for the year attributable to KEEANBRERR BT
shareholders of the Company 513,356 349,343
Weighted average number of FRBRITEERRAIINN
ordinary shares outstanding 98 (FRR)
during the year (thousand shares) 2,618,228 2,605,887
Basic earnings per share (HK$) SREARF) (&) 0.196 0.134
(b)  Diluted earnings per share (b) FHEIEEREF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is the HE—E—tHF+"B=+—HK
same as the basic earnings per share for the years —E—ANF+-B=+—HLEF
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 B, BFAL TIHELERTERE
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential EEZINNEERR, Bt AR
ordinary shares which were outstanding for both M EEN SR ERFTE
financial years. FESEREABRFIITESEE
|E_|o
26. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 26. HZAMEREXRMEE
(@)  Major non-cash transactions (a) EFEAIEHEIS

During the year, the dividend of
HK$21,450,000 declared to the non-controlling
shareholders are not yet settled by the Group,
and recorded in “Trade and other payables” in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and has no cash
flow impact to the Group (2016: Nil).

V)

TAFER, FEFAMEK
X EEERREESH
E#Em21,450,0007T,
FTE—EFtTZRA=+
—B, EEEMZRRE
B9 N A TR SR 2 LAt I A 5K
WFIER, MAREALR
EREFW (ZF—

F: x) .

(i)

Ky

/N
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BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

26.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 26. ZSMEFREFXRMIE (80
(cont’d)
(@)  Major non-cash transactions (cont’d) (@) BFBAIHEERE (%)

(i)  During the year, the interest accrued for (i) TFARFEER, KERAMREER
corporate bonds of HK$22,971,000 are not AT FIRHY A SR ERIF
yet settled by the Group, and recorded in BHiEm22,971,0005¢, F
“Trade and other payables” with other interest —_E—tE+"B=1+—
payable of HK$20,278,000 in the consolidated H, SEMNCFESTD
statement of financial position as at 31 20,278,000 c—EELEE
December 2017 , and has no cash flow impact A 54K 750 2= B9 R4 W 3R
to the Group (2016: Nil). HBR APPSR, X

AERALTRERER T (
“FNEF R .

(i)  During the vyear, the Company issued (i) FARFEAR, KRATEKIT
15,733,870 new ordinary shares to settle the 15,733,870 @R LA
dividend of HK$41,850,000 for the financial YHBEECE—NET+T
year ended 31 December 2016, which were B=+—HLEUWBEEZ
paid to ordinary shareholders who had elected REEMm41,850,0007T,
to participate in the scrip dividend scheme, ZERBEXTFEES
and has no cash flow impact to the Group 5l BREIT B
(2016: HK$40,427,000). BR, WAEHALIER

BEEMW (ZTF—XRE: B
m40,427,0007%) .
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) B ERIERIGET )
activities
Amounts
due to
Amounts intermediate
due to fellow holding
Interest subsidiaries companies
Borrowings payable F{JRFRIIE RfIHEZR
56N RIFIR YACIEAN YACIEN G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-]l T EhFT BT E#mhFT
At 1 January 2017 FE—tF
—B—H 4,887,498 6,467 150,182 78,336
Changes from financing ~ BiAMEIHE
cash flows PSR 1,511,724  (198,753)  (154,928) (79,034)
Interest expense FMEZH - 241,391 - -
Foreign exchange CoeEE
movement 232,530 (5,142) 4,746 698
At 31 December 2017 FT=—tF
+—_B=1+—H 6,631,752 43,963 - -

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FESEAKSBIRAE]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L SRR

Related party transactions 27. XKEXBIZS

FTAVBFE, BT AVSREEMED
FriREERIR 25, AERE SKETIEN
AhENETHITNIERRS:

During the financial year, other than those disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties on
terms agreed between the parties:

Compensation of directors and key management personnel BEREEETEAISIR
Group
AEEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hFr BhFIT
Salaries, bonuses and related e, LB RER
benefits 19,285 12,420
Directors' fees sEES 1,163 1,071
Defined contribution plans TERURERT R 283 175
20,731 13,666
Comprising amounts paid/payable to:  GIEE(I/RMIT THIE T LE:
Directors of the Company AATESE 9,267 8,313
Other key management personnel HittFEZEEAR 11,464 5,353
20,731 13,666

(@) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related party bank which is under
the common control of its ultimate controlling party:

@@ AERASRAZHREERSERHNX

BRSRITHIT 7 T IIXRERTS 25

Group
EH
2017 2016
—B—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhFr BmTIT
Interest expense FEZH 1,238 2,362
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

27. Related party transactions (cont’d)

(b)  The Group entered into the following related party
transaction with a related party securities company
which is under the common control of its ultimate
controlling party:

27.

KERBRZ (48)

(b) AERASRZREERITEHEIANE

FREHT T TR RS :

Group
AEHE
2017 2016
—FT—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hTT BhTIT
Underwriting fee G 5,759 —

(c) The Group entered into the following related party

(0 AERSHIHERRERHIT T TS

transactions with non—controlling shareholders of the KBRS
Group:
Group
AEHE
2017 2016
—s—tfF TEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BhTIT
Revenue from operation EERSWN 45,775 47,668
Finance income MASSUWIN 21,462 24,809

(d)  The Group entered into the following related party

d) AERASHEHXEBATHITT TIIX

transactions with a related company of the Group: B 5
Group
EE
2017 2016
—T—tF —TREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
b1 BhFT
Revenue from operating IEERFUIN
services 47,720 39,773
Finance income AN 45,616 47,157

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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27.

Related party transactions (cont’d)

(e)

The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with fellow subsidiaries of the Group:

217.

KERBRZ (48)

(e)

FEFASHEZEMBEARHTTT
FIXKERTT3Z5

Group
HEH
2017 2016
—B—tfF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhHFr BhTFIT
Rental expenses HexH 5,245 3,804
Interest expenses FEZH 7,311 10,533

The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with an associated company of the
Group:

(f)

FEFSHEERRT T TR
BXT53253:

Group

F: 355
2017 2016
—T—tfF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTT

Service expense for SIKANIE] HIEE YR 2R
operation of waste

water treatment plants 41,717 —

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is a
PRC state—owned entity. The Group operates
in an economic regime currently dominated by
entities directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC
government through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliations and other organizations
(collectively “other government—related entities”).
The Group engages in a wide variety of transactions
with the other government—related entities including,
but not limited to the provision of water/waste water
treatment and construction services, bank deposits
and borrowings, and utilities consumptions. Such
transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business and having due regard to the
substance of the relationships, the directors are of
the opinion that there are no other material related
party transactions that require separate disclosure
other than the transactions and balances disclosed in
these financial statements.

(9

FEAREERAATERER. &
SR ERE— AR RBUFEHISE
REESHNEFERRTIZE,
BXEZEHILR R P EBAAET
BB, RIS, MEL
eI RS (%
R EAIAFERSER ) o A&
B SRR ST T2
ZHRZ, BiE (BRRT) =it
IENBEREIRIENZIERSS. RIT
TRRER. ~AREE, %%
RBEEAEARN R B SEREH
#17. ERDEBEREFASEFEL
HHXERE, EFIAA, BRTEAY
BIRERATRBNRR B IR, F
FoEth T BRI R EE A KRER TS

==

XZe
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

28. Commitments 28.
(a) Capital commitments

The Group has the following commitments as at the
reporting date:

&g
(a)

ZExEE
FiREHER, AERAREBINT:

Group
A&
2017 2016
—8—tf “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BhTIT
Capital expenditure on purchase ~ WE¥NL. ERIZES
of property, plant and equipment  Ei&E BEHEAF S :
and construction of plants:
Contracted, but not provided, EITAERREUFSIRE
for in the financial statements RtkE 681,615 857,124
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) ZEHEEFE

At the reporting date, the Group was entered into
several operating lease commitments for office
premises and staff accommodation. These leases
do not contain renewal options and there were
no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering
into these leases. At the reporting date, the
future minimum lease payables under these non—
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

TIREAH, FEACSHDREY
W RTEEIT I SRR
., BXREEFESEHHEEERY,
INBESIT A XEEMYAE
FREIMEIRREL. FHREBH, 1]
EAIRRIEEREERENM
ABR( AR SRR (RIS ERAN T~ -

Group

EH
2017 2016
—B—tF EB—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BhFr BhTFIT
Within 1 year —FLIA 11,079 6,807
After 1 year but within 5 years —FLIEERFELAN 4,575 5,239
After 5 years Eakz=y = 2,312 544
17,966 12,590

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
E_E—FE A =+—HILRIREFE

MSIRMNE

29.

Segment information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Board
of Directors for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
disclosed in note 3.18. Segment results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and
expense, interest—bearing borrowings and related expenses
and income and deferred taxes. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
operating segments.

Business segments

There is only one operating segment as the Group’s
operations relate to water environment management for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

° Water environment management — Engaged in
sponge cityconstruction, river-basin ecological
restoration, waste water treatment, water supply,
reusable water, waste water source heat pump,
sludge treatment and disposal, research and
development of water environment technologies and
engineering construction.

Geographical segments

All of the Group’s revenue are derived from the Group’s
operations in the PRC. All non—current assets are located in
the PRC.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
transactions with two local government authorities in the
PRC (2016: two), the revenue from which individually
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. The revenue from
these customers during the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to a total of HK$ 1,000,850,000 (2016:
HK$966,103,000).

29.

PERER

FEDEPERIEARERAAMERD RIRERR
SRE. TERENREFSSTERHR
ZFRS, MEDERRMITAERIN.

MFRE D BRI TTBERETHHES. 18,
DES. BERREEEERARTE
—DEIME, LANBSBAESIEREM b
THERIIE. ROENMEETEGER
WHFRZER. TR SHERKAISIH.
WNFGBERI, HEREHEMNEEDH
LAERL FIIRTFIREZZEDER.

WS HE

HE-T—LER-S—ETTA=+
—BLLFE, AEERLS S RATSLS
BBEFRE— AT REEESH:

° KIMBLZEIRE - WEISEHT
BiZ. RBESES. SKAIE,
K, ATEAIK, RKERE. 5
RE. IRERAARSFH AT
TR,

WX 5EE

RERAR BRI IRBEAERARNFEL
. FEIERSE TR ERA.

EEEF

BE_T—tF+A=1t—HLEFE,
FEABSW (ZF—AF: BD) &
E SBT3, RRmR5E
P ARERBRNRI10%LA L, BEZF—
tFE+ZRB=+—HILFE, kE8LAE
FHIN S8R9 1,000,850,0007T (
ZF—\EF: #M966,103,0005T) .
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BE _F—CF+_A=1—HIHIEFE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

29.

30.

Segment information (cont’d)
Major customers (cont’d)

The aggregated revenue from construction services,
finance income and operation income derived from
local government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$3,531,522,000 (2016: HK$2,387,031,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in note
30(c).

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s activities are exposed to
a variety of financial risks such as market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s and the Company’s overall risk
management strategy, which remain unchanged from
the prior year, seeks to minimise adverse effects from the
unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group and the Company continually
monitor the risk management process to ensure that an
appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s and Company’s activities.

The Board is responsible for setting the objectives and
underlying principles of financial risk management for the
Group and the Company. The Board will review and agree
on policies for managing each of these risks as summarized
below.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s and the Company’s exposures
to interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s
interest—bearing assets and liabilities. The Group
does not enter into interest rate swaps to manage its
interest rate risk.

29.

30.

FEBER (£E)
EEEF (&)

BE_E—tHF+THE=+—HLHF
B, REHEYBBANEHNEIERS
KA., MWSWARBEEBRANEGIT BT
3,531,522,0007¢ (ZE—RE: BM
2,387,031,0007t) . BXREFHERE
SFIXBEIFBERTHE30(0).

M5 MBS SR EIRREER

RERARAFABRIWSZERZTS K
b, BlaNmANES (BEFERKR D
MBE) . ERRKERREIXG. FEFR
AABNBARKGEERE T EFEH
TER, HSRKERERS/HIHIART]
MR EAV S ZRIAFIFIE, &
EARA N EHFERERNEEERERF, L
BRENIS S i1 2 [BEUSIE SR TE.
FEFARAREEPRERNICEEBERR
AR, URMTIHIRRRAERA R AT
WSS9,

BEERTNTERARTATREVS X
FEEBITRERREN. EFESRBHEER
INEETNEEERBER, MzSFEERTIE
LU

@)  FEmAE

MEXEEIEERTENARNE
EARFIERERTAHFERENM
IRENBIRPG, AEFRANTIRIF
KN EESAERRIHBEK
RBEXR. AEFAFRRANERE
HLIETEEAR NS,
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L SRR

30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)  30. MEXISEIEEIFREE (&)

(@) Interest rate risk (cont’d) () FUEXE (£)
The table below sets out the Group’s and Company’s TFREIN T AREAREAANTTIRS
exposure to interest rate risk at the reporting date. HERFrESAIRIZRIX .
Group Company
FEHE ¥ /N
2017 2016 2017 2016
—S—t&F TEREF —S—t&F “E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BhT T BmTIT BhHFr BhTFIT
Fixed rate BEfEIR
instruments
Fixed deposit with =/MBULEE
maturity period over  HEiTER
three months 83,125 - - -
Cash and cash merise
equivalents EMY 642,278 543,340 = -
Borrowings R (1,706,219) (498,920)  (1,181,035) -
(980,816) 44420  (1,181,035) _
Variable rate FEhfIETR
instruments
Cash and cash nEkils
equivalents EMY 2,074,414 1,359,401 27,783 30,716
Borrowings R (4,925,533)  (4,388,578)  (2,253,057)  (1,960,584)
Trade and other NATIRFRE
payables (EIVARESNI - (228,518) - -

(2,851,119)  (3,257,695)  (2,225,274)  (1,929,868)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’'d) 30. WMEKISSEBEIRRBERE (4E)
(@) Interest rate risk (cont’d) (a) FUIEXE (£)
Sensitivity analysis BRI
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates of the WMAERRAANTFEGEARAIFR
Group’s and the Company’s floating rate borrowings HI—BENMNERNTD, AERR
would (decrease)/increase the Group’s and the ARBNRHRAIRFEEL (O
Company’s profit before tax by the amounts as Y /EINTYSER, eSS
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other RSB EMETE (B2
variables, in particular foreign currency and tax rates, ) (RIEARZT,
remain constant.
Group Company
AEEH ¥ /NG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tF —FE —F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhTT BHTIT EhTT BhTIT
Floating rate FEIA:
instruments:
100 basis points  EF—8E%
increase e (28,511) (32,577) (22,253) (19,299)
100 basis points ~ FE—EN
decrease Ho 28,511 32,577 22,253 19,299
(b)  Foreign currency risk (b)  gPiEXEZ
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair SR RIEEEM T RN RMNE
value of future cash flows of a financial instrument HARI S REE CETNMKEN
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign RIS, 29325 (ANZEFAREIR)
exchange rates. The Group and the Company are VASEASSARRThEE R LASM BT
exposed to foreign currency risk when transactions RS, AEBARANENEESE
such as expenses and borrowings are denominated MRS, SEIZXERIEXET
in currencies other than the functional currency of FEIFINETT. B, E=TKRER
the Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this TTo
risk are primarily Singapore dollar (“SGD”), Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$”) United States dollar (“‘USD”) and
European dollar (“EUR”).
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)  30. WMESRIESEEITREE (£)

(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (b)  srBMEE (4E)
Exposure to currency risk IEIEZ L XG
The following tables indicate the instantaneous TRENMUETREHERYAER
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would BEAMMZCRFLHHEIMET
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group o], MATBEMXEEAEEZ%E
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting BAT, BINAERZBRHEIRF
period had changed at that date, assuming all other AIREF=EZ BIRY RS, BLTS,
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it AERRIEETHEMERmZHE
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ TG A BT SETTZEAIEL
and the USD would be materially unaffected by any FCEREBEAFN, FAETT
changes in movement in value of the USD against mz&=kaEmSs, BF8TS
other currencies. The impact of foreign exchange T, SRRz I E
rate fluctuations with respect to the assets and =8

liabilities denominated in USD is insignificant as HK$
is pegged to the USD.

RMB SGD HK$ usD EUR
ART®  #lET & EST BXTT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
Bghfx #EPFFr #EPFx BEFFx EFFx

Group HEH
2017 —F—t5
Financial assets SRIE
Cash and cash nerne
equivalents FN 9,294 1,916 140,917 226 5,036
Amounts due from R ERARNT
group companies (net) IR (%41) 394,324 - 267,142 2,214,012 -
403,618 1,916 408,059 2,214,238 5,036
Financial liabilities SRR
Borrowings 2R - ~ (337,000) (1,916,057) -
Trade and other R
payables TR (7,685) (918)  (6,034)  (22,667) -
Amounts due to group  RIYERAT
companies (net) IR (%8 - (55) - - -
(7,685) (973)  (343,034) (1,938,724) -
Net exposure XIS 3R 395,933 943 65,025 275,514 5,036
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)  30. WMESRIESEEITREE (£)
(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (b) MBS (4E)
Exposure to currency risk (cont'd) AR Z RS (4R)
RMB SGD HK$ usD
ARD Fhnigrc &mh E
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EhFT EhFT BEhFrT #EhF
Group FEHE
2016 —T—EF
Financial assets R
Cash and cash MERINEEN
equivalents 91,969 2,511 149 127,106
Amounts due from v SEiN=TE N
group companies (net) (%E0) 226,724 10,267 35,703 2,202,240
318,693 12,778 35,852 2,329,346
Financial liabilities SRR
Borrowings 5K - - - (1,960,584)
Trade and other R MR ELAtD
payables RZfHER (6,981) (1,675)  (10,924) (7,710)
(6,981) (1675)  (10,924) (1,968,294)
Net exposure XUBE 5T 311,712 11,103 24,928 361,052
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 30.

(b)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

Exposure to currency risk (cont'd)

SRS ERBRREBIR (42)
(b)  SMBMEE (£2)

EIEZ RN (48)

RMB SGD HK$ usb
ART Fihnigrc Bh ESH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BhF T BT T
Company ARHE
2017 —F—tF
Financial assets RIS~
Cash and cash MERIMNEENY
equivalents - 506 26,114 114
Amounts due from NWEERF A TIFIR
group companies (net) (%E0) — 4,591 325,795 556,357
- 5,097 351,909 556,471
Financial liabilities SRR
Borrowings R - — (337,000) (1,916,057)
Trade and other NATRKER B EAth
payables RIf2R - (324) (6,034) (22,667)
- (324)  (343,034) (1,938,724)
Net exposure IXUBS I $ER — 4773 8,875 (1,382,253)
2016 —B-RE
Financial assets ERIEE~
Cash and cash MERIMEENY
equivalents — 1,299 149 23,038
Amounts due from MW EER N BIFIR
group companies (net) (%EN) - 32,692 185,350 2,202,240
— 33,991 185,499 2,225,278
Financial liabilities ERIGR
Borrowings EREN - - - (1,960,584)
Trade and other RAFMKER R EAth
payables JVZREN - (1,675) (10,924) (7,710)
- (1675)  (10,924) (1,968,294)
Net exposure IXUBS 48R - 32,316 174,575 256,984
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 30.

(b)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening)
of RMB, SGD, HK$, USD and EUR against
the respective entity’s functional currency at 31
December would have affected the measurement
of financial instruments denominated in a foreign
currency and increased/(decreased) profit before
taxation by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
and tax rates, remain constant.

SRS ERERRBIR (42)

(b)

MBS (42)
SRS

FT+=B=1+—H. AR®. #0
T, BhH. SETRETTHRAERSE
RINEELS R RES BT HE/ ('
18) BaFmLsbhitHhaERT
BRNtE, FEN/ (D) BRiE
BARNSIUNT. WERMEDHE
IRFTEEMEZE (FBIEFERE
R) RIFFE.

Group Company
F: 335 ¥ /NG|
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F—tF B —F—tF “FNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EhT T BhTIT EhT T BhTIT
RMB against HK$ ARmED
— strengthened 10% —FHE10% 39,593 31,171 = -
— weakened 10%  —JB{E10% (39,593) (31,171) - -
SGD against HK$ HrmRTT e s m
— strengthened 10% —-FHE10% 94 1,110 477 3,232
_ weakened 10%  —TE{E10% (94) (1,110) (477) (3,232)
HK$ against RMB BhRARD
— strengthened 10% —FHE10% 6,503 2,493 888 17,458
_ weakened 10%  —TEfE10% (6,503) (2,493) (888) (17,458)
USD against RMB =T AR
_ strengthened 10% —FHE10% 27,551 36,105 (138,225) 25,698
_weakened 10%  —TE{E10% (27,551) (36,105) 138,225 (25,698)
EUR against RMB  EUTRART
— strengthened 10% —-FHE10% 504 - - -
— weakened 10% -TZ{E10% (504) - - -
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer or
counterparty fails to discharge an obligation resulting
in a financial loss to the Group and the Company.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying
amounts of the related financial assets presented on
the consolidated statements of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
service concession financial receivables and trade
and other receivables. The Group establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of service concession
financial receivables and trade and other receivables.
This allowance account in respect of service
concession financial receivables and trade and other
receivables is used to record impairment losses
unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the
amount owing is possible. At that point, the financial
asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount
charged to the allowance account is written off
against the carrying amount of the impaired financial
asset.

For service concession financial receivables, the
counterparties are local government authorities
in different provinces in the PRC. The service
concession financial receivables are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade and other receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and whether the trade and other
receivables are recoverable are estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and
the current economic environment.

Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions which are regulated. For
other financial assets, the Group minimises credit
risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

30. MERKEESEEIFRBE (4)

(@]

=1e:

SRR RISE P EIIF T REER
ITREFANAERARANTNERN
SBIRRRIXBL.

BT A LA ETIRRG,
FEFHIGRIRSERXE A
WRRFTS RSB THEX ERETH
KEM/MEL.

REFANERAKEEERE SRS
PR ENIEXI SRR
TR BB RKERIR,  AE5 ]
R T Ri{ERE, HASIRSEHT
ZERERAY S RARIKRIUN R
TR EL At BRI~ A AR ST
. SRSFTFEEERNE
RN WKL R TR MM R B L Ath Rz
SLMERAYRE P BLACRRE
IR, BUAREEIANAKATEE

EEER LRI, LR T,

ERESBAAARATILE, it
NKRBERFISTSTEERES
REES = HOMKTE /.

SRS AR ENIEXRAI SR
BEImmsS, NFEAAFERRE
RSIBUATAE, SRR
S5 IRF TR ERERI SR
LTI

FEFANEERRIFERITE NI
SRS RIKERIATARER, LARAR
B ERR R SRR R
Rz IR EL At SR IR &5 AT LA
TR

e EMFERER TR IREN
RIT RS/, HEMESRIE
Ms, AEFARSEERTRAIYY
FHElE, EUAEERRRRER
£,
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B E _E—tF A =1+—HILRIEFE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 30. WSKISEEEIRREE (8))
(c)  Credit risk (cont’d) () 1ERAME (%)
Significant concentration of credit risk BEXEASEFXG
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in WNEFT. (T E e R AL AT
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly AR BT F T F=ER U
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate N, MESZEXENFEAIER
credit exposure is significant in relation to the XX ASEFNEAEARETS
Group’s total credit exposure. The Group’s credit BEXKN, EAHREANKE
exposure is concentrated mainly in the PRC, where B, NREANEAXKESES
its operations are based. E, BHEEEA.
The ageing of trade receivables that were past due FiRes HEFE @R R SR ANk
at the reporting date is as follows: BT
Group
FEHE
2017 2016
—g—t&F —TREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hTT BhTIT
Not past due P S ek 222,142 183,956
Past due: E8HR:
— 1 to 30 days -—ZF=++H 40,250 54,864
— 31 to 90 days -=t+—ZN1H 32,578 35,520
— 91 to 180 days -n+—=—8/\+Hd 13,685 43,749
— 181 to 365 days -—B/\+—Z=/~1+hH 25,391 54,314
— more than 1 year but - —FLAHBEZFLR
within 2 years 74,860 48,800
— over 2 years - _FLE 4,871 8,392
413,777 429,595
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(c)

Credit risk (cont’d)
Significant concentration of credit risk (cont’'d)

As disclosed in note 17, the Group had a
consideration receivable of HK$29,657,000 (2016:
HK$29,790,000) due from third parties arising from
disposal of service concession rights, the ageing of
which is as follows:

30.

SRS ERERREBIR (42)

(©)

1ERREL (5E)
EXERETXE (%)

WMANMET17RRIRE, AERHEA
BE=FMEXREAHERSHTF
ZLENRMZENRKITN BT
29,657,0007¢ (ZB—AEF: &
/29,790,0007T) , EMKEHHT
nr:

Group
AEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
E#hFr BhFIT
Current REN 12,433 13,591
Past due: [wheni=iR
— within 1 year - —FLAA - 4,841
— more than 1 year but - —FLHEZFLRN
within 2 years 5,147 4,841
— over 2 years - _FLE 12,077 6,517
29,657 29,790

Based on historical default rates and customers’
credit quality, the Group believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of trade
receivables, including those which are past due, as
the counterparties are local government authorities
with insignificant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group and
the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group monitors its
liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and
to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

(d)

RIESEENXEREFNERR
B, FEBIANSFTIR K KR
(RIECEERIRIIRER) THRIR
BiRE, RERANFLHERAKKE
FARERAIZEBF.,

EDL

RENNE RIEREFRANTEIREE
BITHEIEANASS X SSHIXBE. AR5
FEEABRRAINEG, FEFE
BEENARBHINENRNESFNY
RIEWEE, MEAFTERIZER
MRS IFHRRESRE RN,
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(d)  Liquidity risk
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the

Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows.

30. WMSRIEESEEIRRBER (£)

(d)

REIREE (%)

TRESIRTAORITRRES RED
M ARERARA L EIESRRHREIE]

&,

Cash flows
HERE
Contractual Between
Carrying  cash flows Within 2to 5 After
amount WAIE 1 year years 5 years
HKEEH e —FR  ZERF  AFLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR #hFrx #EhFTx #EhFx EhTrm
Group FEH
2017 —S—tf
Borrowings B 6,631,752 7,462,103 2,143,558 4,384,549 933,996
Trade and other N IRER R ELfth
payables IVENEN 1,553,566 1,553,566 1,553,566 - -
8,185,318 9,015,669 3,697,124 4,384,549 933,996
2016 —B—REF
Borrowings R 4,887,498 5,527,833 1,722,863 3,102,516 702,454
Trade and other IVERflesora=ticl
payables RIfTER 937,238 947,468 947,468 - -
5,824,736 6,475,301 2,670,331 3,102,516 702,454
Company ¥ VA
2017 —S—tf
Borrowings G 3,434,092 3,878,444 1,469,559 1,968,978 439,907
Trade and other NATIRER R ELfth
payables RIIER 155,531 155,531 155,531 - -
3,589,623 4,033,975 1,625,090 1,968,978 439,907
2016 - ¥
Borrowings R 1,960,584 2,232,417 824,031 817,906 590,480
Trade and other IVEpjlesora=ticl
payables RIfTER 20,655 20,655 20,655 - -
1,981,239 2,253,072 844,686 817,906 590,480
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31.

Fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non—financial assets and liabilities. Fair
values have been determined for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability.

Determination of fair values
(@)  Non-—current borrowings

Fair value is calculated based on discounted
expected future principal and interest cash flows. The
discount rates used are based on market rates for
similar instruments at the reporting date.

(b)  Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
(including trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
the short period to maturity. All other financial assets
and liabilities are discounted at the market rate to
determine their fair values.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount rate
is a market-related rate for a similar instrument at
the reporting date.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Service concession financial receivables (note 15), trade
and other receivables (excludes prepayments) (note 17),
fixed deposit with maturity period over three months (note
18), cash and cash equivalents (note 19), trade and other
payables (note 21) and borrowings (note 20)

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities
are reasonable approximation of fair values, either due
to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate
instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or
near the end of the reporting period.

31.

K{feHiE

FEFANZMATTBERNIRERAES R
NAFERETRARNARME. AR
BEHTFHER/SIRECHN, KUTH
EEE. BERARE, WEMERIR
AU — B TR E B R R EN
EPIREE.

RAMERIEE
@)  JFREIEEE

RN ERRIETEIRE A S RA
BRMERERIMItEmk.
AT IREEETIRE ARSI T
BRyminFi=,

(b) BftEmE~REGHE

FH AR —FRISRIE R AR
(EHE RIS R e EL At TR T,
MERMEEMYLARL (TR
EEMATAI) EEIHBHARE,
WEKEMHMERRESSHARMN
B1EE. FrERMERERAR
PATARIZITIN, LIREE QRN

1E.

LERITNRESRES AN, it
FkRENEZUEEENREMN
TR, MmN FRER
HASRIU T ERmIAERAIE,

BHEHEHBGEILAMNE

SRBIHTFEETRXRI SRR (
BHE1S) . ROKRKEKREMBRMERI (2
BEMAERIN)  (MHE17) . =PBRE
EHER (MHE18) . MERMESEFMNY
(BHET9) . RAIMKERREAERIFRIN (
BHiE21) K&K (BHiE20)

REGHIOMLR, RSB~ NE
RAEKENES M EESE, TRES
B, BFFRSHHAREE, FRsr
NS IVLEN TN oA E WS 8T I VAR BN
IHKEMNMESHEARMMEES.
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32. Capital management 32. EFREHE
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to AEFAEEAANTERNERERSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going A F L TN N REFEENER
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so 25K, JIRABRERANESE KN E. N
as to maximize shareholders’ value. In order to maintain K SCIMIRERER AN, ANEFTREE
or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may BEESIRSE. KITHIROEESHE
adjust the amount of dividend payment, issue new shares F. FH, BAEEBRHTEE].
or obtain new borrowings. There is no change in capital
management policies during the year.
The Group’s and Company’s strategies are to maintain REFARANTHIRBEEREERRKT
a prudent balance between the advantage and flexibility FrigitZ i b & RIEE SR KM el 58
afforded by a sound capital position and the higher return IRERERERIRME Z A4S FEE
on equity that is possible with greater leverage. 15,
Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net B, NEFFRRERSITINELERIGE
debt against equity ratio. The net debt against equity ratio AR, BRSNS LR R IR FRSIRIA
is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is BREITE, #RSREAR (SR
calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the consolidated TUERFR, AEIERNEAT I R R ISR
statements of financial position of the Group, excluding INGER) BIERIESSENMiTE, Sl
current tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities) less cash IR, RIS,
and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises share capital,
reserves and non—controlling interests.
Group
HEHE
2017 2016
—F—tF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
EmhFr BhFIT
Net debt RS 5,468,625 3,921,995
Total equity RSB 8,541,805 7,191,702
Net debt against equity ratio BRSNS LR 0.64 0.55
The Group is in compliance with all externally imposed HE_FE—tFt+_A=1+—HR_F—
capital requirements for the financial years ended 31 NETZB=1+—HIEVEEE, A&EH
December 2017 and 31 December 2016. FFERMBINREMINEAREK,
The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to AERATFHERMBEADER R 4ERF—
contribute to and maintain a non—distributable statutory MR DIRRSEEMES. ZAEHEERIE
reserve fund whose utilization is subject to approval by the iRt EBERLBE. BE"F—
relevant PRC authorities. This has been complied with by tEt+“A=+—HAZF—7"F1+H
the relevant subsidiaries for the financial years ended 31 =t+—HIVEEE, SEXMEA AT
December 2017 and 31 December 2016. BT T IZIAE
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33.

34.

Subsequent events 33.

Establishment of a new subsidiary

On 23 February 2018, the Company announced that it had
incorporated a subsidiary known as E+B Umwelttechnik
GmbH in Germany to carry out technology research and
development and provide engineering, procurement and
construction services.

Dividends

After the reporting date, the following exempt (one-tier)
dividends were proposed by the directors. As the proposed
final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, it has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December

HARRERIR
RN —RERIHELE

FIE-/\FZTBEZ+=H, &3
EREEEMRZ T —RIELTE+B
Umwelttechnik GmbH, FEFFERA
AAEFRHTRE. XWAEZRS.

iR

THREBR, FATEFEBWIKK=
Tt BFEZ —RIEAREER
RE. NEERNDIRZRBREAEE
RERFENEFEREAS CHUERT
AIfESE, BERAERSHREEBANR

B#E+"RB=1t—H

Group and Company

FEERFLE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
SGD0.0049 (2016: SGD0.0037) EEREER%0.00495 N T
per ordinary share (2016: 0.0037FFINI%TT) 77,003 53,611

Authorisation of financial statements for issue 34.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 22 March 2018.

WESEE P iid):

TSRV ERNTDEEFLT_F—/\
F=R T+ HRGIE.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
S BRRETERE

Authorised share capital : HK$10,000,000,000

EERRA #m™10,000,000,00055

Issued and fully paid-up capital : HK$2,625,641,871
BRITHESTAERIRA #8M2,625,641,8715T

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
REME ZEk, BREEMNEST1.00T
Number of shares : 2,625,641,871

REE

Voting rights : One vote per ordinary share
REN BN

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

BN ST
NO. OF NO. OF

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
BEARUR BRFHE Bt RRnEE B3t
1~99 426 7.55 11,095 0.00
100 ~ 1,000 1,204 21.34 609,614 0.03
1,001 ~ 10,000 2,306 40.86 11,064,597 0.42
10,001 ~ 1,000,000 1,681 29.79 101,133,387 3.85
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 26 0.46 2,512,823,178 95.70
TOTAL =it 5,643 100.00 2,625,641,871 100.00

As at 21 March 2018, no shares issued in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) were held as treasury

shares or by any of the Company’s subsidiary.

BET-/\F=A"1+—H, AEFRFTRFTEITHRD ( "FIRRB" ) REUFAEFERITE, BREAQFET

)N 2R

Based on the information available to the Company, approximately 25.06% of the equity securities of the Company
are held in the hands of the public. This is in compliance with Rule 723 of the Listing Rules of the SGX, which
requires at least 10% of a listed issuer’s equity securities to be held by the public.

BETFANBIMERNEUE, AAT£925.06%RNEBAREE. ZEERSHRA EHANE723&0EK, BAREDR

A EHAENEMIESAI10%LA L.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
eete oo RRPXGRTER

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
BI=+XBRER

NAME NO. OF SHARES %
2 FhRsE a7tk
1. CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED 1,965,344,904 74.85
PENERKSBIERBIRAE]
2 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 132,079,641 5.03
3 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE) LIMITED 124,640,442 4.75
4 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 93,851,722 3.57
5. DB NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 70,284,300 2.68
6 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 24,522,461 0.93
7 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 20,169,749 0.77
8 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 19,609,280 0.75
9. MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 19,505,517 0.74
10. DBSN SERVICES PTE. LTD. 6,929,630 0.26
1. UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 5,387,869 0.21
12. CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 4,779,021 0.18
13. DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 3,683,404 0.14
14. PU WEIDONG 3,308,100 0.13
15. CHIEW CARLTON 2,800,000 0.11
16. ABN AMRO CLEARING BANK N.V. 2,724,317 0.10
17. UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 1,941,458 0.07
18. MERRILL LYNCH (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 1,914,693 0.07
19. CHEONG SAE PENG 1,511,684 0.06
20. KOH HOCK SENG OR KOH PENG YEOW CHARLES 1,206,114 0.05
TOTAL Eit 2,506,194,306 95.45
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

/

BT RS R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

B
DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST
BEiEfa (B
NO. OF NO. OF
NAME OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER SHARES HELD % SHARES HELD %
EEREEH RS Bt KRS Bt
China Everbright Water Holdings Limited 1,965,344,904 74.85 - -
FENEAKSIERERAT
China Everbright Environmental Protection — - 1,965,344,904 74.85
Holdings Limited®
FREYEAIMAERER AR
China Everbright International Limited® - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
FENXAERERAE
Guildford Limited® - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
Datten Investments Limited® - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited® - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
FENAEAGRAE
China Everbright Group Ltd.® - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
FEEARERARDAE]
Central Huijin Investment Limited™ - - 1,965,344,904 74.85
FRCEIREFREEAT
Notes:
i

(1)

China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited, which is the holding company of China Everbright Water Holdings
Limited, is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by China Everbright Water Holdings Limited.

PEFEARIMAMERBIRARATEN RS IERERATZIZRATE, FANPENAKSERERATHFENAQBSROZEEEN

China Everbright International Limited is the holding company of China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited and is
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited has an interest.

PENCKERERADATENAMIMERERATDZIZRAT, FANPENAMRERERATHFEIAABERNZE AN,

Guildford Limited holds more than 20 per cent. but not more than 50 per cent. of the total issued shares of China Everbright
International Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright International Limited has an
interest.

_G__l{%q%g&_i;rpited FEHENAERERABSRNEII20%LLE (BEFREBE50%) , AXNPENKEFRERAEIFEHALATIRGD
=88 T,

Datten Investments Limited is the holding company of Guildford Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Guildford Limited has an interest.

Datten Investments Limited J9Guildford Limited Z3=&/NE), F3JGuildford LimitediFE AN TIRD ZH [EENE.

China Everbright Holdings Company Limited is the holding company of Datten Investments Limited and is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Datten Investments Limited has an interest.

hEYCAERBRA T IDatten Investments Limited ZIR& N E), FEXIDatten Investments LimitediFEHANT D EE BEAES.

China Everbright Group Ltd. is the holding company of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Holdings Company Limited has an interest.

PEVERERRD RBANFTENAAEAGRATZERAT, FNPENAERABRATFENAAEROZHAENE.

Central Huijin Investment Limited holds 55.67 per cent. of the shares in China Everbright Group Ltd. and is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Group Ltd. has an interest.

PRCERBERBEATFETEARERD A B IRIDEAI55.67%, HYPENAEARDATHFENALBRNDZEIEHEN
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

As at

wxteemnn  BRIGETER

(i) Relationship between the Company and each of China
Investment Corporation and Central Huijin Investment
Limited

Each of China Investment Corporation (“CIC”) and Central Huijin
Investment Limited (“Huijin”), which are each ultimately owned
by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (“State
Council”), is deemed to have a controlling interest (via Everbright
International) in the issued share capital of the Company.

Based on the information furnished to the Company, below is
shareholding structure of the Company:

() FRESHEREEREELHRRIC
ERERRSIEARNXR

PERFBRIELT ( "HiR" ) MPRCE
RRBRIERT ( "ILE" ) HRERPLEA
RIEMEESE ( "ESk" ) 8, PRiC
SERIDERERYARTNERTRAEREE
R En.

BT REHBANTNER, TERMTALTN
BRSNS :

State Council

ESk
[ 100%
China Investment Corporation
PEIREERSEIAE
| 100%
Ministry of Finance Central Huijin Investment Limited
WAEER hRCEIRERRSREAT
44.33% 55.67%
China Everbright Group Ltd.
hEY KRR A E)
100%
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
HENKEERRARE
100%
Datten Investments Limited 45% 100%
55%

Guildford Limited

Everbright Investment & Management Limited

AKIREEERIRAT

39.22%

2.38%

China Everbright International Limited

FENKEIFRIRAS

100%

China Everbright Environmental Protection
Holdings Limited

RENAMREIREIRAE

100%

China Everbright Water Holdings Limited
HREAKSBIERERAE

74.85%

China Everbright Water Limited
REXRAKSHERAE
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
/ ﬂi*ﬂﬁi‘l’"ﬁ*ﬂ- As at 21 March 2018

BE_F—/\(F=F"+—H

Management Philosophy of Huijin and CIC

Article 11 of the Law on State-Owned Assets provides that
the State Council and the local people’s governments may, if
necessary, authorise other departments or bodies (“Authorised
Bodies”) to perform the function of an investor in respect of
state-owned enterprises on behalf of such government. Article
14 of the Law on State-Owned Assets further provides that such
Authorised Bodies shall not intervene in the business activities of
the enterprises in which they invest except to legally perform the
function of investors.

Huijin

Huijin was established in December 2003. The members of
Huijin’s board of directors and board of supervisors are appointed
by and are accountable to the State Council. Huijin, in accordance
with authorisation by the State Council, makes equity investments
in major state-owned financial enterprises and shall, to the extent
of its capital contribution, exercise the rights and perform the
obligations as an investor on behalf of the State in accordance
with applicable laws, to achieve the goal of preserving and
enhancing the value of state-owned financial assets. It does not
conduct any other business or commercial activity, except for its
equity investments in the state-owned enterprises, and does not
intervene in the day-to-day business operations of the enterprises
in which it invests.

ciC

CIC holds the shares of Huijin in accordance with a directive
issued by the State Council. However, the investment business
of CIC and the share management function conducted on behalf
of the State Council by Huijin are completely separated. CIC is a
financial investor and does not seek control of the companies in its
portfolio.

Laws setting out the duties of Huijin and CIC in relation to their
portfolio companies

The articles of association of each of Huijin and CIC provide
that each of Huijin and CIC “shall not interfere in the day-to-day
business operations of the state-owned major financial enterprises
it controls”. The articles of association of CIC further provide that
“as a matter of principle, [CIC] shall not actively seek investment in
domestic non-financial enterprises, except for purchasing overseas
listed stocks, passive shareholdings and other circumstances as
approved by the relevant governmental authorities”.

Under Article 11 of the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the articles of association of a company are binding
on the company and its shareholders, directors, supervisors and
senior management. Accordingly, the provisions of the articles of
association of each of Huijin and CIC as set out above are binding
on each of Huijin and CIC and their respective shareholders,
directors, supervisors and senior management.

QREIES

PE (RWEEHAME) F+—FAE,
ST ARBMGRETE, JUENA
fbEBII. A ( "HWIERIMAE" ) KEREFR
ARBANERHRIEWETHEARS.
(RUVEBHSE) FHOERH—SHE, Hi%
BAERMK LB T H B ARSI TRl EE
EiEnf.

p=

CETFTF=F+_"_AZ, HEEFSMK
SRRBAESFRES, MESKAR. CERE
ESREN, YEEERSMEWHITRIUR
#, NHESARARERKENESERSH
EAATEHBEARFFEITHEANSS, LHE
BEREREESE. BRYESEUHTRAE
&+, ICEAFREMTIEIMEEE, &
FREKRZRRNE W B EEEED.

e

PIRIMEESRESIHFRICENRG. A, &
BRANR WS ICSNERE SR TRERIRINETR
REgeenB. PRIFAVSIKREE, FAIK
MEEEIRE 2 ABRHEH.

Ee= ; DR/INS] 2 W 2

L2 RIATERSMECSMNPR "8
FHEERNEGEREMEVHAREZER
" . PROEEHE—ENE " [(FR] FUE
FENSRIEBAIFEFIEL, 1ERSTEZI) LR
B BAFREEESEXEL THIERIFSF

RIE (PEARKMELTE) F+—FHM
E, NEEEMZARREKE. 55, KWEN
BREEAREBAORA. AL, [CSMPRE
BEHIRENEESREKE. £5. BS0S
REBARIYEEART.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 21 March 2018
#HETEF—/\F=F"+—H

IRGFETER

Board of Directors of Everbright International and the Company

In addition, neither CIC nor Huijin has any nominees sitting on the
board of directors of Everbright International. Similarly, neither CIC
nor Huijin has any nominees sitting on the board of directors of the
Company.

(i) Not regarded as “controlling shareholders”

On the basis that each of Huijin and CIC does not in fact, and
is unable, under the laws of PRC, to, exercise control over the
Company, the SGX has confirmed that each of Huijin and CIC will
not be regarded as “controlling shareholders” of the Company for
the purposes of the Listing Rules of the SGX (the “Listing Rules”).

Accordingly, each of the State Council, Huijin and CIC and their
respective associates (other than Everbright Group and its
associates) will not be regarded as “interested persons” of the
Company and consequently, will not be subject to the rules and
requirements under Chapter 9 of the Listing Rules governing
interested person transactions. For the avoidance of doubt,
Everbright Group is regarded as a “controlling shareholder” of the
Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules and accordingly,
Everbright Group and its associates are subject to the rules and
requirements under Chapter 9 of the Listing Rules governing
interested person transactions.

5, PIRMIC SRR BEFS 5N KEIRAY
BER., B, PRITCEHRREBREESS5SH
NEWEER.

(i) ICEMPRAET "=IRIFE"

RIEPEEEAONE, (CEMPRAENELNE
i, BEL ECSMFRKEEN AR TL
i, FEHRAERERE LSRN, T
SMTRABTAATN "ERERE .

Hit, ESk. CEMPREEZBEXEKTT
(FEENAEAREXES) ITNETAAH
A9 "KERATL" |, BEUISARZHHRAT LA
NEXTREALTZZAEMERNAE. AR
REX, BUHEHRAT EMAMNIMES, SAEERBHEN
ARAFEN "ERIRE" | B, XAERARE
KEKTT I ZH AT LB N ER T REXA
TR BHEANEREIE
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

/

3 For the fi al ded 31 D b
T e

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting
of China Everbright Water Limited will be held at The Pan Pacific
Singapore, Pacific 2, Level 1, 7 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square,
Singapore 039595 on Wednesday, 25 April 2018 at 9.30 a.m. to

transact the following businesses: . LATieEg LA TEI:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS HiESEIR

1.

To receive and consider the Directors’ Statement and Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and the Auditor’s Report thereon.
BRUHENESSFBUREE—F—tFt+ - A=1+—HLINVEBFEELHIT MBS ERERAE
BHitiRE.

ZEH, FEXKXKSERABFERFRSE
FE—/)\FNB_+HBEP=LFNH=1+
DEMMNBEEBETKECS RSB Bz REF
JBE—EPacific 22T (BR4R: 039595) &

(Resolution 1)

(SB1LIRIY)

2. To declare a final tax exempt 1-Tier dividend of S$0.0049 per ordinary share for the (Resolution 2)
financial year ended 31 December 2017 as recommended by the Directors. (5B2IARIN)
BREEESEN, EMRRBE_F—tF+-B=1+—HLNUBFENESKZER0.00495
DT — R RIS,

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$200,000 for the financial year ended (Resolution 3)
31 December 2017. (2016: S$200,000/-) (SB3LRIN)
ESIBE—F—tF+ "B =1+—HLENYBFERIEEEE200,0005IMKTE. (ZF—X
F: 200,0005IMKTTEE)

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the following Company’s Bye-laws,
and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election:

B MRIBATEEMENSSRNES, BEBERRISET:

(@)  Mr. Zhai Haitao [Bye-law 86(1)]; (Resolution 4a)
Bigstt (AE=ES86 (1) K] (5B4aliTRIY)

(b)  Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul [Bye-law 86(1)]; (Resolution 4b)
MiflgesRE [ARIEESS86 (1) K1 (5B4bITRIY)

(¢)  Ms. Cheng Fong Yee [Bye-law 86(1)]; and (Resolution 4c)
MU [AEIETESES6 (1) &1 (SBACTRIY)

(d)  Ms. Hao Gang [Bye-law 85(6)]. (Resolution 4d)
MRIZLE [AEE=FESE85 (6) K] . (5B4dIRIY)

5. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company, to hold office until the (Resolution 5)
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix their (SB5IARIN)
remuneration.

EFE(EErnst & Young LLPARATFIHD, AHEE T FERFASERAL, FHENES
SR,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E_E—tF+ A =1+—HILRIEFE

FERFASEN

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary
resolutions with or without modifications:

6. Authority to allot and issue shares

(@)

That, pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, and the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), approval be and is
hereby given to the Directors of the Company at any
time to such persons and upon such terms and for
such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute
discretion deem fit, to:

(i) issue shares in the capital of the Company
(“Shares”) whether by way of right, bonus or
otherwise;

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options
that might or would require Shares to
be issued or other transferable rights to
subscribe for or purchase Shares (collectively,
“Instruments”) including but not limited to the
creation and issue of warrants, debentures or
other instruments convertible into Shares;

(i)  issue additional instruments arising from
adjustments made to the number of
Instruments previously issued in the event of
rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(notwithstanding THAT the authority conferred by
the shareholders may have ceased to be in force)
issue Shares in pursuance of any Instrument made
or granted by the Directors while the authority was in
force.

provided always that:

(i) the aggregate number of Shares to be issued
pursuant to this resolution (including Shares
to be issued in pursuance of Instruments
made or granted pursuant to this resolution)
does not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the
total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company, of which the
aggregate number of Shares (including Shares
to be issued in pursuance of Instruments
made or granted pursuant to this resolution)
to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company does
not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the total

RIS

EZRFEY (WARIES) LUITEERY (218
BEAZIEN) -

6.  PDEFRITRIZNS

(@) RIEAASEEMFIKE ZAMIE
FRABBIRAE ( "#FF" ) £
AN, FNAATEESHERE
HeMBBANEEGHALIGE
BRHEEIANIEGHIF

(i) Edfth. IREEMS
XERITRERG ("2

B )

(i) (FHEEFIEESES
REITRIDNEL. HiY
B, ERE AT AR IEAY
NI EL W LA B AR 4 B9 AR
(B "XE ) B8
FBERRTEIRARITN
IE. REEE TR
NERRIDHISE;

(i) EFHEE. IFRIHERNK
K17, REEZEIETH
XiEE B AT
1=, #

(b) (RERFENAREEAHFEN)
LIRNENE, RIEEESMEN
IR FRIGRERITATRE.

MFFET5=EIR:

(i) WMEFRNEFRITHOA
BIRMD L (BERER
R PT1E H B iR F BRI SCIE
BFRITHREG) FEd
ERITREIRMDEE (R
BREERFR) #950%,
Hepdrztthlm A SN
BRERTHRERG LS
#H (BIERERRYAE
HERFHIXEBRFRT
k) FEZERTA
BRDBE (FSRFE
=) 1920%, BHREAR
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

3 For the fi al ded 31 D b
T e

/

number of issued Shares excluding treasury
shares of the Company, and for the purpose
of this resolution, the issued share capital
shall be the Company’s total number of issued
Shares excluding treasury shares at the time
this resolution is passed, after adjusting for;

a) new Shares arising from the conversion
or exercise of any convertible
securities, or

b) new Shares arising from exercising
share options or vesting of share
awards outstanding or subsisting at the
time this resolution is passed provided
the options or awards were granted in
compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8
of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST
(the “Listing Manual”); and

c) any subsequent bonus issue,
consolidation or subdivision of Shares,
and

(ii) such authority shall, unless revoked or varied
by the Company at a General Meeting,
continue in force until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting or the date by
which the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is the earlier. (Resolution 6)

(See Explanatory Note i)

WME, BERTAEKRAE
NAEIE AR ZER, &
UTEMAZEENERTT
NEARHDEE (FEER
) -

a) EBRETEEAT
RIS T RIFT
NERID, B

b)  WNEREAEARDIZRE
RIBREHALAT (L
FMY ( "EHF
M) S/N\ESEVII
EOETH, TR
WSS A IR TR
NS F BE
RN IR T
TR ERF AR
m; &

o {EAURENIRK
&R1T. ABRHG
BHERD, AR

(i)  BRIFFEERTERFAS
ERBISHENR, ZFXR
REZBREETNEE
REKXSERIGERENE
RGBT T NFEEREK
228 (UHEBREER
#E) ALk, (FB6LRIY)

(TOHEi58I)

7. Authority to allot and issue shares under the China 7. EHRENAKSERATUBRKERITR
Everbright Water Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme (the ( "PABRMKEiR" ) Im T~ B A ThR
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”). PEMA.

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to RNESSA IS BRI TIRIELARRAA
allot and issue from time to time such number of Shares as Btk el seEE S Bl A TAEMEER
may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the ANEIR&D . (SB7TTRRIN)
Scrip Dividend Scheme. (Resolution 7)

(See Explanatory Note ii) (B L2 B5I)

8. Authority to grant options and issue Shares under the China 8. EFEYARKSERADRTRAINGIT
Everbright Water Limited Employee Share Option Scheme ¥ ( "RIIABRITER) ) ImTEFEIRAD
(the “ESOS”). RITREIRD RIS,
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E_E—tF+ A =1+—HILRIEFE

FERFASEN

That, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
empowered to offer and grant options, and to allot and
issue from time to time such number of Shares as may
be required to be issued or transferred pursuant to the
exercise of options granted under the ESOS provided
always that the aggregate number of Shares in respect
of which such options may be granted and which may be
issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed fifteen per
cent. (15%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company from time to time.

(Resolution 8)
(See Explanatory Note iii)

Renewal of the share buy-back mandate
That:

(@) the Directors be and are hereby authorised to
exercise all the powers of the Company to purchase
or otherwise acquire issued Shares not exceeding
in aggregate the Maximum Limit (as hereinafter
defined), at such price or prices as may be
determined by the Directors from time to time up to
the Maximum Price (as hereinafter defined), whether
by way of:

(i) market purchase(s) on the SGX-ST; and/or

(ii) off-market purchase(s) (if effected otherwise
than on the SGX-ST) in accordance with
any equal access scheme(s) as may be
determined or formulated by the Directors as
they consider fit, which scheme(s) shall, as
required under the Listing Manual, satisfy all
the conditions prescribed by section 76C of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore,

in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and all other laws and regulations and rules
of the SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable (the
“Share Buy-back Mandate”);

(b)  unless varied or revoked by the Company in general
meeting, the authority conferred on the Directors
pursuant to the Share Buy-back Mandate may be
exercised by the Directors at any time and from time
to time during the period commencing from the date
of the passing of this Resolution and expiring on the
earliest of:

(i) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is held;

BRATEERMMR TN, LIRS
AT ARIEA TAE R TR R TR FROEAL
AREEERITHEILANERNBERD
BRIRITIZFHENATRG RIHRES
AHIR T RIHISR R A BN TIIRIER
TR AR TR R TR RE R RE
SRABEERITRIDEE (FEEFR) B
15%) . (SB8IRIN)

(O L BAIT)
BRAD BN 3 HA
B:

(@) ENEFXTEFATEI TG
X, UEESARENTEE R
BRI (BEXRTX) BINMEWE
FUHEARWBRIT A BT &S
PRET (BXWTX) HERTAE
BRADAILER]:

() HEFXAHHLBWE;
/8

(i) BEBEERINAEHMY
BE IR TE 5l B BV 12T
FWSLIT R E T35 5MESE

(NRMERREF AT
3% ELHE, % F iR
o (EHFEM) EK.
R ERFES0E
(EhE) B76CEMEN
IESESE

FETEHRER—NN—F (2F
E) (BThR) FIFrBEMER
R S RS E B RORTHTSZ TR
( "RRASEIMEER" ) ;

(b)  FRAFMKANEERFAS EEXE
fE, REROEWESIETFES
SR HTHERREREE AR
RINAFEEZEL T BRI R EALE
SEEEIPA NG

(i) ARITFTNEEREFXS
2728,
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
BE _EF—tF A =1+—HILRRFE

(ii) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to
be held; and

(i)  the date on which purchases and acquisitions
of Shares pursuant to the Share Buy-back
Mandate are carried out to the full extent
mandated:;

in this Resolution:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the
closing market prices of the Shares over the last five
market days on which the Shares were transacted on
the SGX-ST, before the date of the market purchase
by the Company, or as the case may be, the date
of the making of the offer pursuant to the off-market
purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance
with the listing rules of the SGX-ST for any corporate
action which occurs after the relevant five-day period;

“date of the making of the offer” means the date
on which the Company makes an offer for the
purchase or acquisition of Shares from shareholders,
stating therein the purchase price (which shall not be
more than the Maximum Price) for each Share and
the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for
effecting the off-market purchase;

“Maximum Limit” means that number of Shares
representing 10 per cent. of the total number of
issued Shares as at the date of the passing of this
Resolution (excluding any treasury shares and any
Shares held by subsidiaries of the Company in the
circumstances referred to in Sections 21(4), 21(4B),
21(6A) and 21(6C) of the Singapore Companies Act);
and

“Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be
purchased or acquired, means the purchase price
(excluding brokerage, commission, applicable goods
and services tax and other related expenses), which
shall not exceed:

(i) in the case of a market purchase of a Share,
five per cent. above the Average Closing
Price; and

(ii) in the case of an off-market purchase of
a Share, five per cent. above the Average
Closing Price; and
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the Directors and each of them be hereby authorised
to complete and do all such acts and things
(including, but not limited to, executing all such
agreements and documents as may be required
in connection with this Resolution and the Share
Buy-back Mandate) as they or he/she may consider
necessary, desirable or expedient or in the interests
of the Company to give effect to this Resolution and
the Share Buy-back Mandate. (Resolution 9)

(See Explanatory Note iv)

10.  Adoption of the interested person transaction mandate

That:

(a)

approval be and is hereby given, for the purposes
of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual (“Chapter 9”) of
the SGX-ST, for the Company, its subsidiaries and
associated companies that are entities at risk (as
defined in Chapter 9), or any of them, to enter into
any of the transactions falling within the categories of
interested person transactions described in Appendix
1 to the Company’s Letter to Shareholders dated
6 April 2018 (the “Letter”) with any party who is of
the class of interested persons described in Appendix
1 to the Letter, provided that such transactions
are made on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the review procedures for such
interested person transactions (the “IPT Mandate”);

the approval of the IPT Mandate above shall unless
revoked or varied by the Company in General
Meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company; and

the Directors and each of them be hereby authorised
to complete and do all such acts and things
(including, but not limited to, executing all such
agreements and documents as may be required in
connection with this Resolution and the IPT Mandate)
as they or he/she may consider necessary, desirable
or expedient or in the interests of the Company to
give effect to this Resolution and the IPT Mandate.
(Resolution 10)

(See Explanatory Note v)

11.  To transact any other ordinary business which may be
properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

AN XUESONG
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

6 April 2018
Singapore
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Notes:

1.

A member of the Company (other than The Central Depository (Pte)
Limited) entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and
who holds two or more Shares shall be entitled to appoint not more than
two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

Where a member appoints two proxies, he/she shall specify the
proportion of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the
whole) to be represented by each proxy respectively.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand
of the appointer or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation,
it must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of its
attorney or duly authorised officer.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or notarially
certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s office
at 50 Raffles Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623
not later than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General
Meeting.

Explanatory Notes:

The ordinary resolution 6 proposed in item 6 is to authorise the Directors
of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the next
Annual General Meeting to issue Shares and convertible securities in
the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50 percent
of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the
Company, of which the total number of Shares and convertible securities
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall
not exceed 20 percent of the total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company at the time the resolution is passed,
for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the
Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a General
Meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 28
October 2005, the shareholders of the Company approved the passing
of the ordinary resolution relating to the Scrip Dividend Scheme. In the
circular dated 11 October 2005, the Scrip Dividend Scheme provides
members with the option to elect to receive Shares in lieu of the cash
amount of any dividend declared on their holding of Shares. The
Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 7, if passed, will empower the
Directors of the Company to allot and issue Shares in the Company
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Scrip Dividend Scheme.

The ordinary resolution 8 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will
empower the Directors of the Company, to offer and grant options and
to allot and issue or transfer Shares upon the exercise of such options
in accordance with the Scheme not exceeding 15% of the total number
of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to
time.

B

4.

BNHFEFERFASHIRENARRR (FR
FEFANBIRAERRS) |, EFFERREFAREL
ERREIRMD, NENEEABEIREEAN
BHHFFRE. KAEATEALEHNA.

WNRMREFFEHEBANEA, MiZaRNFIBEK
BADBINRIEFTFROAD LS (LIRS
MESHET) .

EHEREBANXBAHERAREHBEZ S
BRPOAER. WRFITRIBEANIBHATE
ﬁ, MRINEN B R EHHEEZAENNAR

ZRABE AN BIEAHSSKIEIRNER
PEEMENE (0F) , RAEASZFIERZ
BIE, YT AGTEERFARIXIBHRILS
NSRRI T RTINS B T 550 S B R
57}%#32-01% (HR%%: 048623) HIRMITFEIC

B iR :

BAFFARNAIEIE BRINENENAELR
BESFSRERANNALTENZEN, B
RSN AP E T MEERFASALERITR
BRI EIRIES, TR EIEAITA
BRI EH (FRAEERFR) B950%, Hi
ERIGIAANBMERFERITHNESE BT Z
RGBT BRI TARRDEE (FEREET
%) B920%. ZIUZASAFERRAAS CHHEE
%Ei‘i, BFALB T FERFASHERHE

RE_EFRF+RE - +/\BETAL TR
RIFEAS, ANERFHERE TXTFLURRKER
HHREERY, E—FFRF+B+—HAE
B, LRSI R R R AR E)
RO AR EARIERF S R BRI TR
ERIIREMNE, SBEETARINAISETIEER
WNSRIREY, HRNANBEEARELURN
B RIRSRFRFSE M D EAAIT BRI,

)\ FHFRIN A5 SIS BRI AN RIRET,
BENARNDESSIRAANE FIRUR 2%
HISUARIE R TIARR RIS LTI MBS AR o AoAl
BITABEERTARRDEE (FEREET
BR) 15%RIANEIRRLD.

200

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FESEAKSBIRAE]



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
B E_E—tF+ A =1+—HILRIEFE

FERFASEN

iv. The Company intends to use internal sources of funds, external
borrowings or a combination of internal resources and external
borrowings, to finance the purchases or acquisitions of its Shares. The
amount of financing required for the Company to purchase or acquire
its Shares, and the impact on the Company’s financial position, cannot
be ascertained as at the date of this Notice as these will depend on,
inter alia, the manner in which the purchase or acquisition is funded,
the aggregate number of Shares purchased or acquired, and the
consideration paid at the relevant time. For illustrative purposes only, the
financial effects of an assumed purchase or acquisition by the Company
of 10 per cent. of its issued Shares as at 22 March 2018, at a purchase
price equivalent to the Maximum Price per Share, based on the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 and certain assumptions, are set out in
paragraph 3.8 of the Letter.

V. The ordinary resolution 10 proposed in item 10 is to approve the
adoption of the IPT Mandate to enable the Company, its subsidiaries and
associated companies that are entities at risk (as defined in Chapter 9
of the Listing Manual), or any of them, to enter into certain interested
person transactions with specified classes of interested persons, as
described in the Letter. Please refer to the Letter for more details.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting a proxy form appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to
attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment
thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and
disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents)
for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its
agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating
to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and
in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws,
listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”),
(i) warrants that where the shareholder discloses the personal data of the
shareholder’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its
agents), the shareholder has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/
or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or
its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for
the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in
respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a
result of the shareholder’s breach of warranty.
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In the event of any conflict between the English and the Chinese versions in this Annual Report, the English version shall prevail
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